Public Document Pack

oL BARRY KEEL
ol Chief Executive

Floor 1 - Civic Centre

_ Plymouth
P/ City of é PL1 2AA
ymou; www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy

i

Date  11/02/10 Telephone Enquiries 01752 304022 Fax 01752 304819

Helen Rickman, Democratic

Please ask for Support Officer

e-mail helen.rickman@plymouth.gov.uk

GROWTH AND PROSPERITY OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY PANEL

DATE: FRIDAY 19 FEBRUARY 2010
TIME: 2.00 PM
PLACE: COUNCIL HOUSE, NEXT TO THE CIVIC CENTRE

Committee Members—

Councillor Viney, Chair

Councillor Coker, Vice Chair

Councillors Ball, King, Martin Leaves, Mrs Nelder, Reynolds, Roberts and
Wheeler

Substitutes—:

Any Member other than a Member of the Cabinet may act as a substitute
member provided that they do not have a personal and prejudicial interest in the
matter under review.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of
business overleaf.

Members and Officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the
meeting.

BARRY KEEL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE



GROWTH AND PROSPERITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL

PART 1 (PUBLIC PANEL)
APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for non-attendance by Panel members.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on
this agenda.

MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)
To confirm the minutes of the last meeting held on 7 December 2009.
CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS

To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be
brought forward for urgent consideration.

FEEDBACK FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
MANAGEMENT BOARD - TO FOLLOW

To receive any feedback from the Overview and Scrutiny Board on issues which
concern this Panel.

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 2009 ANNUAL (Pages 7 - 122)
MONITORING REPORT

The Assistant Director for Planning Services will submit a report on the Local
Development Framework — Annual Monitoring Report.

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL HOUSING SERVICES (Pages 123 - 134)

The Assistant Director for Strategic Housing will submit a report on the role of
strategic housing in Plymouth.

HOE FORESHORE SITE VISIT UPDATE

Members will be provided with an update on the Hoe Foreshore site visit that took
place on 4 February 2010.



10.

11.

12.

REVIEW OF SKATEBOARDING BY LAW TASK AND
FINISH GROUP UPDATE - TO FOLLOW

Members will be provided with an update on the Skateboarding Task and Finish
Group.

TRACKING RESOLUTIONS (Pages 135 - 138)
To monitor progress on previous resolutions.

WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 139 - 140)
To review the panels work programme 2009/10.

EXEMPT BUSINESS

To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s)
of business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as

amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

PART Il (PRIVATE PANEL)

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE
that under the law, the panel is entitles to consider certain items in private. Members of
the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.

13.

EASTERN CORRIDOR PROGRESS REPORT (E3)

Members of the Panel will receive a verbal update on the Eastern Corridor.



This page is intentionally left blank



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Public Doggfnent Pack Agenda ltem 3

Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel
Monday 7 December 2009

PRESENT:

Councillor Viney, in the Chair.

Councillor Coker, Vice Chair.

Councillors Ball and Roberts.

Apologies for absence: Councillors Martin Leaves and Mrs Nelder

The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 4.32 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may be subject
to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have been amended.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following declaration of interest was made in accordance with the Code of Conduct in
relation to an item under discussion at this meeting —

Name Agenda item and | Reason Interest
subject.

Councillor Wildy 6. Worklessness: | She is on the local Personal
The Contribution management board of
and Role or working links
Plymouth City
Council.

MINUTES

Resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on 26 October 2009 be confirmed as a correct
record.

CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of Chair’s Urgent Business
FEEDBACK FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD

The Business Manager for Development and Regeneration informed the Panel that the
Management Board had requested that all Panels incorporate into their work programme
feedback on corporate improvement priorities; this had been included in the agenda under
item 8 where slippage on CIP 11 had been identified.

WORKLESSNESS: THE CONTRIBUTION AND ROLE OF PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Several representatives from different organisations and sectors of the Council namely,

Strategic Housing, Social Inclusion, Recruitment and the Shekinah Mission provided the

Panel with presentations upon the issue of worklessness in Plymouth.

The Panel was informed that —

(i) homelessness and unemployment were strongly linked to rates of unemployment;
figures were very high among single homeless, young homeless people and

homeless families;

(i) many people who experienced homelessness or who were rough sleepers had low
levels of qualifications, and many had none at all; many homeless people also had a

Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 7 December 2009



(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

Page 2

history of offending, mental health issues, substance abuse and domestic violence
which resulted in multiple barriers to get into the workplace;

Plymouth Sustainable Employment Programme (PSET) was a unique pilot project
funded by the CLG (Communities and Local Government Department) in order to
explore how to support entrenched rough sleepers and homeless people in hostels to
access training and employment;

PSET provided greater opportunities to reach challenges in the labour market; this
initiative was run by the Shekinah Mission to support homeless people back into
employment;

PSET enabled skilled workers to engage with 12 hard to reach individuals in Plymouth
and move them into sustainable employment;

PSET provided an inclusive programme for people excluded from mainstream society
and employment;

pre employment training was included in the PSET programme and was integral to an
individual's personal development as it provided help with literacy and numeracy and
allowed individuals to become more stable before going into employment;

Shekinah trading had a model of engagement in which work experience was provided
for two weeks to individuals to help them move into employment;

the PSET pilot programme was due to finish in February 2010;
the PSET pilot programme was highlighted as being a flagship for employability;

every homeless person out of work amounted to an annual sum of £7,758 in welfare
benefit payments, £1,341 in income tax and national insurance payments and
£12,000 in lost economic output; it was also estimated that if factors such as
temporary accommodation, unemployment, and the cost of health services, criminal
justice services and support were taken into account the annual cost to taxpayers of
each homeless person could be as much as £50,000;

the financial inclusion unit had received an award for ‘Best Practice’ nationally and
was nominated as ‘Council Partner of the Year’ due to its work with money advice
services;

the financial inclusion unit had formed a questionnaire in order to determine the
barriers to unemployed individuals; the results showed childcare, low wages and debt
were the 3 main factors;

tax credits were a great way to supplement low wages as in some cases it could
double an individual's income;

it was important for a lead to be identified for the issue of worklessness so that a
coordinated approach could be maintained;

Plymouth City Council was a popular local employer as evidence showed that people
in the local area wanted to work for the Council;

Plymouth City Council demonstrated best practice in encouraging people from all
sectors of the community to apply for vacancies;

4.23% of all staff at the Council were from an ethnic minority group;

Plymouth City Council had 20% of the population aged 18 to 29 and 19.75% of the
working population under the age of 31;

Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 7 December 2009



Page 3

(xx)  the Council currently had the following general initiatives, New Deal, Local Employer
Partnership (LEP), Staff Learning and Development and
Plymouth Adult and Community Learning Service;

(xxi)  Plymouth City Council offered a ‘Guaranteed Job Interview’ for applicants self-
assessed as having a disability who also met the short listing criteria;

(xxii)  the Council were offering work experience for people with learning difficulties;
In response to questions raised it was reported that —

(xxiii) it would cost approximately £1000 per person in order to support the PSET
programme; these funds would provide pre employment training and on going
support whilst in employment;

(xxiv)  the PSET pilot programme received great support from the following council
departments, Customers Services, Car parks and Maintenance;

(xxv)  the PSET pilot programme required additional funding in order to continue its work;
(xxvi)  £50,000 was required in order to allow the programme to continue for another year;

(xxvii)  the PSET programme looked at early intervention in order to put processes and
mechanisms in place to help with potential problems with rent, bills and
transportation;

(xxviii) the average wage in Plymouth was £23,000;
The following recommendations were agreed;

a) Tackling Worklessness is essential to the City meeting the objectives set out in the Local
Economic Strategy, Sustainable Community Strategy, Children & Young People’s Plan as
well as a range of other targets. Whilst it is recognised that Worklessness impacts in many
aspects of the Council and partnership’s work e.g. health, learning etc ultimately it demands a
lead service area and can best be addressed from a Strategic Economic Development
perspective

Recommendation: That the Department for Development & Regeneration take on the
ownership and leadership of the Worklessness agenda on behalf of the Council and
that links across Plymouth City Council are accordingly established to a) ensure the
councils role is clearly understood and b) that from an Economic Development
perspective that skills development aligns with the economic drivers of the city and
key sectors

b) The present framework with central and local government and the third sector is too
complicated. The emerging consensus in national policy, endorsed by Overview & Scrutiny is
that operationally Worklessness is best led by the Local Authority, under the strategic
direction of the LSP

Recommendation: that Plymouth City Council take on a leadership role

¢) The Children & Young People OSP will be aware of the Skills and NEETS agenda. The
Growth & Prosperity OSP recommends that PCC reviews its Recruitment policies to become
an exemplar employing body, by providing greater employment/work opportunities for
disengaged groups eg young people, care leavers, young offenders and the longer term
unemployed

Recommendation: That HR work with Assistant Director Economic Dev and his team to
develop a strategy for Plymouth City Council recruitment under the Worklessness
agenda and that CMT endorse this.

Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 7 December 2009



38.

39.

Page 4

DESTINATION SOUTH WEST

The Business Manager for Development and Regeneration informed the panel that
Destination South West was a tracking resolution from a previous meeting in which it was
highlighted that currently there was no councillor representation on the board. At 26 October
2009 meeting the panel was advised that the Director of DSW was happy to attend a future
meeting, however it was resolved that the Assistant Director for Development and
Regeneration (Economic Development) would attend the Panel first in order to provide an
update.

The Panel was informed that —

(i) Destination South West was established more than five years previously in which
£1000 was funded each year;

(i) the aim was to promote Destination South West around the world;

(iii) Plymouth did not have a deep water mooring that was not owned by the Military of
Defence;

(iv) boats have reduced from 25 to 7 annually;

(V) a strategy was being drafted in order to keep the South West on the national and
international radar;

Resolved that the Assistant Director for Development and Regeneration (Economic
Development) be invited to attend a future meeting once the strategy had been completed, in
order to provide the panel with an update.

CORPORATE IMPROVEMENT PRIORITIES

The Head of Transport Strategy informed the panel that Corporate Improvement Priority 11
(Improving access across the city) showed some slippage in achievement and informed the
Panel that —

(i) three milestones in CIP 11 were slipping in the access ability action plan, namely the
access to health facilities, training and employment for young people;

(i) the council had accessibility action plans for 2006-2011;

(iii) access to healthcare (to Derriford Hospital) was identified as a strategic objective for
the Council;

(iv) a draft for the Derriford Hospital Action Plan would be submitted to the Healthy Theme
Group in January 2010;

(V) Derriford was to see considerable development in future years through the Local
Development Framework

In response to questions raised it was reported that —

(vi) a result from a health and wellbeing survey showed that those without access found it
twice as likely to have difficulties getting to Derriford Hospital;

(vii)  the council was trying to improve access via public transport;
(viii)  new shelters and cycle racks had been installed at the Derriford Interchange;

(ix) the cycle network was to be prioritised in the Northern Corridor or the city;

Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 7 December 2009



40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

Page 5

(x) the A386 was to be widened in order to install a South Bound bus lane;
(xi) it was recognised that accessibility in the Local Area Action Plans was key to success;

Resolved that the Head of Transport Strategy be requested to return to the 25 January 2010
meeting to discuss further what measures need to be undertaken to progress Accessibility
Action Plan targets.

HOE FORESHORE SITE VISIT UPDATE

The Chair informed the panel that the Hoe Foreshore Task and Finish Group was due to be
finalised as a final site visit was taking place on 8 January 2010 in order to ensure that
remedial works had been completed.

QUARTERLY SCRUTINY REPORT
The Panel noted the quarterly scrutiny report.
APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED REPRESENTATIVES

The Panel considered the option to appoint a co-opted representative and resolved that this
would be considered again at the next meeting after the Director for Development &
Regeneration had helped to present his plans for the delivery of the future growth agenda.

TRACKING RESOLUTIONS

The Business Manager for Development and Regeneration informed the panel that a
resolution had been passed from the Devonport, Stoke, St Peter and the Waterfront Area
Committee to the Management Board on 2 December 2009 in which the Growth and
Prosperity Panel be asked to consider driving speeds on the Hoe.

Resolved that this be noted but meanwhile the Business Manager for Development and
Regeneration identify whether the Transport & Highways service were already looking into
this issue and to consider this item at a future meeting.

WORK PROGRAMME

The Panel was informed that due to significant pressures in Democratic Support the proposed
extra meeting for ‘worklessness’ which was due to be held in January could not be supported;
it was therefore resolved that this item be scheduled for 22 March 2010. In order to
accommodate this change it was agreed that ‘Strategic Housing Functions’ be moved from 25
January 2010 to 22 March 2010 meeting and that ‘City and Sub Regional Governance’ be
moved from 22 March 2010 to 25 January 2010 meeting.

In response to a question raised, it was resolved that the Director for Development and
Regeneration and the Cabinet Member for Planning, Strategic Housing and Economic
Development be invited to the 25 January 2010 meeting in order to provide the Panel with an
update on the Capital Programme.

Under this item it was also raised that Councillors Lowry and Aspinall would be named
substitutes for Councillor Coker if he was unable to attend the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board.

EXEMPT BUSINESS

There were no items of exempt business.

Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 7 December 2009



Page 6

Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel Monday 7 December 2009



Page 7 Agenda ltem 6

CITY OF PLYMOUTH

Subject: Local Development Framework

2009 Annual Monitoring Report
Committee: Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel
Date: 19 February 2010
Cabinet Member: Councillor Fry
CMT Member: Director for Development
Author: Fiona Northcott
Contact: Tel: 01752 30 4574

Email: fiona.northcott@plymouth.gov.uk
Ref: AD/MISC
Part: 1

Executive Summary:

This report highlights the key messages contained in the 2009 Annual Monitoring Report
(AMR), to assist Member scrutiny of the Local Development Framework (LDF). To
summarise, the key messages are

e Plymouth remains the most successful authority in the country in preparing its LDF.

e ltis on track to achieve virtually all of the ambitious targets that it set itself as part of its
LDF.

e As a consequence Plymouth is in a strong position to progress its long term goals, and is
in a position to take advantage of the economic upturn when it comes.

Corporate Plan 2009-2012:

The LDF is one of the Council’s key strategies for delivering its Corporate Aims, as identified
in the Corporate Plan. Producing an AMR is a requirement of the LDF process. It is seen as
the main mechanism for assessing the LDF’s performance in terms of helping to build
Plymouth’s future by articulating a spatial planning vision and strategy in support of the
Sustainable Community Strategy. The LDF is a genuinely cross-cutting strategy, supporting
the delivery of each of the Council’s strategic objectives through provision of spatial planning
policies and proposals.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

The report has no direct financial implications.




Page 8
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc.
The AMR assesses progress towards achieving the LDF’s promotion of community safety
through the provision of policies to influence the design and nature of physical development.

Equality impact assessment is used in the preparation of LDF documents.

The report has no direct other implications.

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action:
It is recommended that the Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel:

1 Note that the process for preparing LDF documents will change in response to
revisions to government legislation and guidance on this matter.

2 Note the current position reported in the Annual Monitoring Report in relation to:-
Contextual Indicators; Core Output Indicators; Significant Effect Indicators.

3 Note that the 2009 Annual Monitoring Report provides a commentary on whether or
not the LDF Core Strategy Targets are on track to deliver the plan’s key strategic
objectives.

4 Instruct the Officers to take appropriate action to address the issues arising in relation
to those indicators which are currently not on target but which can be addressed
through the planning application process, namely Lifetime Homes and Renewable
Energy Production.

Reason: To respond to the Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel minute
seeking a report on Plymouth’s Local Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report -
to ensure appropriate scrutiny of the Local Development Framework within the government’s
‘Plan, Monitor and Manage’ approach.

Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action:

There are no alternative options as the Annual Monitoring Report is a factual report, required
by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, that the City Council has to produce.

Background papers:
“Plymouth’s Local Development Framework — Core Strategy 2006-217,
“Planning Act 2008”, Office of Public Sector Information, 26 November 2008. (Part 1)

“Annual Monitoring Report 2009”



Page 9

“Planning Policy Statement 12: creating strong safe and prosperous communities through
Local Spatial Planning”

“Regional Spatial Strategy and Local Development Framework Core Output Indicators —
Update 2/2008”

“Local Development Framework Monitoring: A Good Practice Guide”

Sign off: comment must be sought from those whose area of responsibility may be affected
by the decision, as follows (insert initials of Finance and Legal reps, and of Heads of HR, AM,
IT and Strat. Proc.):

Head | N/A | Head | N/A |Head | N/A |Head |N/A |Head | N/A | Head of | N/A
o S
f tr
a
A t
M P
r
0
c
Originating SMT: Member: Anthony Payne, Director of Development




1.2.

1.3.

2.2.

Page 10

BACKGROUND

The Local Development Framework (LDF) Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) is a
statutory document which has to be submitted to Government every December. It is
seen as the main mechanism for assessing both progress in preparing LDF
Documents, as well as the performance of the Strategy - providing the catalyst for any
review or update.

This Annual Monitoring Report is a position statement as at 31 March 2009 and
covers the monitoring year 2008/09 (i.e. it is required to report on development
activity between April 2008 through to March 2009.)

However, this monitoring period covers the time period before the effects of the global
recession would have been fully felt, and the implications of this needs to be taken into
account in considering future progress. In addition, while it is helpful to review
progress on an annual basis, many of the development indicators need to be
considered within a longer timescale (e.g. 5+ years), before coming to conclusions.
For example, when a major development takes place in one year, it often takes one or
two years for the market to assimilate its full potential, which in turn means
correspondingly lower development rates in the following year. Therefore, where
appropriate, this AMR caveats its conclusions within these broader considerations

CONTEXT

The approach to scrutinising the LDF was considered at the meeting of the Overview
and Scrutiny Panel (OSP) on 20™ August 2007. It was agreed that the most effective
approach would be for the OSP to consider the findings of the AMR each January.
The Panel could then advise the Portfolio Holder and officers on any implications it
feels should be addressed:

e through the Local Development Scheme (LDS) - thereby informing the prioritisation
of work in relation to planning policy development and delivery.

¢ In relation to planning policy matters - where the monitoring of performance against
the LDF’s objectives may indicate the need for some adjustments.

Within this context, the OSP needs to consider the following key messages that come
from the 2009 AMR.

KEY MESSAGES IN RELATION TO THE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME

Plymouth remains the most successful authority in the country in preparing its LDF.

As at January 2010 the Council was over two thirds of the way through completing its

very ambitious LDF programme, having:

e Adopted 9 of its original programme of 14 Statutory LDF documents

e Adopted 2 Supplementary Planning Documents: the Planning Obligations and
Affordable Housing (SPD) and the Design SPD

e Adopted the Review of Statement of Community Involvement

e Submitted the City Centre/University AAP (Oct 2009) with the Examination being
held in January 2010

e Progressed the Derriford/Seaton AAP through Issues and Preferred Options
Consultation



3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

4.2.

4.3

4.4

Page 11

e Progressed the remaining 4 LDF Documents through their Issues and Options
stage

This progress has not only provided us with national publicity about Plymouth and its
aspirations, but also given the city a significant competitive advantage by bringing
certainty to the development process and thus facilitating investment. Already a
number of major investments have been completed, or are underway, bringing about a
steep change in the quality, pace and intensity of development.

In looking to the 2010 LDF work programme, there are a number of matters that will
impact on the timetable. These are:

e Changes, in 2008, to the national legislative and regulatory framework has altered
the processes for preparing an LDF

e The need for further evidence based studies to support the delivery of key
proposals in the Derriford, Hoe and East End Area Action Plans and the
Sustainable Neighbourhoods (Key Sites Allocations) DPD and new joint Plymouth
Urban Fringe DPD.

The potential impact of these changes on the LDF timetable are explained in the AMR,
and discussions about these changes are ongoing with Government Office South
West.

KEY MESSAGES IN RELATION TO MONITORING CORE STRATEGY TARGETS

The Core Strategy was prepared with monitoring in mind. Each Section of the Core
Strategy contains a set of Strategic Objectives, amplified by key targets. The AMR
follows this approach of reporting on each topic area in terms of whether its key
indicators are ‘On Track’ or ‘Below Target'.

Whilst this report covers the time period before the effects of the global recession
would have been fully felt, it would seem that Plymouth is continuing to lay the
groundwork for a prosperous future - despite the recession. The city is on track with
virtually all of the ambitious targets that it set itself as part of its Local Development
Framework. They all provide an indication of how Plymouth is moving towards its
vision of creating a city which is one of Europe’s finest most vibrant waterfront cities
where an outstanding quality of life is enjoyed by everyone. Plymouth is in a strong
position to progress its long term goals, and take advantage of the economic upturn
when it comes.

Out of the 40 Targets of the LDF Core Strategy

Targets met or on track to being met 36 | 90%
Below target/ improving performance 3 7.5%
Target not met 1 2.5%

The one target not to have been met is

e (S Target 9.2 relating to the delivery of the Peninsula Dental School by 2008.
Development on the Devonport site just missed this target with a completion date
of 16 March 2009. Reserved Matters were approved for development on the
Derriford site in November 2009 and ground clearance work started in January
2010.




4.5

Page 12

The three targets that are not yet on track to being met are:

1.
2.
3.

CS Target 6.2 relating to the delivery of office development.
CS Target 10.4 relating to the delivery of Lifetime Homes.
CS Target 11.5 relating to onsite renewable energy production.

Mechanisms for improving future performance on each of these targets are set out below

4.6

4.7

1.

CS Target 6.2 relating to the delivery of office development.

In 2008/09 4,868 sq m of office space was completed, up from 1,229 sq m in the
previous year. A major new office development of almost 5,000 sqg m was nearing
completion in Sutton Harbour. Furthermore the City Centre and University Area
Action Plan aims to create a new office core and contains a proposal for 100,000
sq m of office floorspace. This is expected to come forward in the next 5-6 years
which would see this target being met in future.

2. CS Target 10.4 relating to the delivery of Lifetime Homes.

Whilst this year’s performance of 12.4% is below the policy target of 20%, it is a
significant improvement on the previous year’s performance of 9.4%. A patrtial
explanation for the below target performance is the number of dwellings that were
the subject of earlier outline applications or previous submissions to which
Lifetime Homes conditions had not been applied. In order to improve
performance there is now a standard section in the case officer’s report on
“Equalities and Diversities Issues” where Lifetime Homes are addressed and
relevant applications are referred to the Access Consultant who will advise on the
requirement. Other proactive measures being taken to improve performance are:

e a further workshop in November 2009 to reinforce awareness of the importance
of this policy when considering planning applications.

¢ a leaflet is being written for developers on the social and economic reasons for
building homes to Lifetime Homes standards.

. CS Target 11.5 relating to onsite renewable energy production.

19.3% major applications approved between October 2008 and September 2009
had conditions requiring compliance with this policy. This is an improvement on
the previous year’s performance of 10.2%. A number of presentations /
workshops were delivered during 2008 to raise awareness of the requirements of
this policy, and to ensure that the requirements for onsite renewable energy
production equipment are considered early in the design and planning approval
process. All case officer reports are expected to address this issue to ensure
compliance and specialist advice is provided by our Environmental Planning
Coordinator.

However as well as detailing where targets are not yet on track to being met, the AMR
also highlights what has been achieved in the past year or since the start of the plan
period in 2006

Housing

An impressive 98 per cent of new homes finished in the last year were built on
brownfield sites the highest percentage since monitoring began in 2001.



Page 13

e In the last three years 3,071 new homes were built and a further 258 provided
through converting or subdividing properties

e 220 homes were demolished - 218 were Council homes to clear the way for
regeneration projects

e |n 2008/9 1,097 homes were completed
e 290 affordable homes were delivered
e 21 properties removed from the buildings at risk register

e 1.7 per cent of developable land remains derelict - favourably below the national
target of 2.5 per cent

e Although the number of homes under construction fell to 644, compared to 1,613
in 2007, some 274 new homes were started

4.8 Retail space

e 9.61 hectares of employment land were developed - the best in six years thanks to
the completion of Tamar Science Park and Forresters’ Business Park

e However, sites under construction fell from 13.9 hectares to 8.9 hectares

e (Of 1,142 prime frontage shops across the city, including neighbourhood shopping
areas such as Mutley and Crownhill, 103 were vacant in Autumn 2008. This is
likely to have increased by now, although figures are not yet available.

4.9 Planning
e 100 major planning applications determined in 2008/09
e 376 minor applications
e 923 householder and other applications
e Planning Committee approved development to the value of £566 million in 2009

e Development has been approved on 10 Market Recovery Action Plan sites for a
total of 695 residential units and 9,164 square metres of commercial floorspace

410 Environment

e Cann Wood designated a local nature reserve - three more in the pipeline
including Bircham Valley and Radford Woods reserve

e Outline business case approved to manage waste that cannot be recycled, as part
of a partnership between Plymouth, Devon and Torbay councils.

4.11 Transport

e 109,000 passengers used Plymouth City Airport until March 2008 - a 30 per cent
increase

e Number of public transport journeys in 2007/08 20.6 million - up 4 per cent -
largely due to concessionary fares



412

413

5.2.

Page 14
e Total vehicle miles fell to 1,134 million from 1,150 million in 2007

People

¢ Number of economically active in the city’s travel to work area up from 140,170 to
143,405 - an increase of 3,235 in 2006 and 2007 - the latest figures.

e Steady rise in the number of economically active in Plymouth - although the rise
has slowed down the city is still ahead of its target of 1,800 employees a year on
average over five years.

Education

e New primary schools opened at Riverside, Ernesettle, Shakespeare, Mayflower,
Oakwood

e Brook Green Centre for Learning - for young people with special needs

o First life-long learning campus officially opened at Whitleigh incorporating new
facilities for Whitleigh Primary, Woodlands Special School and Sir John Hunt
among others.

CONCLUSIONS

The 2009 AMR has reported that considerable progress is still being made in
implementing the Core Strategy, through a number of delivery mechanism including
the Area Action Plans. This work is providing a very strong foundation for delivering
Plymouth’s Vision, turning aspirations into reality by facilitating the development of key
elements of the Vision. With 11 years to go in the plan period, the City Council can
remain confident that the delivery of its overall vision remains on track.

The main concern, at this stage, relates to the potential effects of the current
recession. However there are no indicators that would suggest that a change of policy
approach is necessary, other than a pragmatic acceptance that it is going to take at
least 2-3 years longer to achieve what we had expected to deliver by 2021.



Page 15

e o, Y \
1.._____ i . - -..._._.J_.._ Jx..
TN o s




Page 16

1 Introduction and CoNteXt ... 3 o
Background 3 %
Publishing the Annual Monitoring Report 3 %
Context of the Annual Monitoring Report 3
The Monitoring Framework 4
Developing the Monitoring Framework 4

2 Delivering the Local Development Scheme ... 5
Introduction 5
Progress so far 5
Current Position — as at December 2009 6
Future Work programme 7

3 Delivering the City's VISION ... seeesesessesesseeesseeesese s 11
Delivering Plymouth's Strategic Role and City Vision 12
Delivering Sustainable Linked Communities 13
Delivering the Quality City 13
Delivering Regeneration 15
Delivering the Economic Strategy 17
Delivering Adequate Shopping Provision 23
Delivering Cultural & Night-Time Economy 27
Delivering Educational Improvements 28
Delivering Adequate Housing 29
Delivering a Sustainable Environment 44
Delivering Mineral Resources 46
Delivering Sustainable Waste Management 47
Delivering Sustainable Transport 48
Delivering Community Well-being 50

4 EqUality MORNITOTING ... eseeee e sseeee s 53

5 Monitoring the Implementation of LDF Policies ... 55



Page 17

@)

(@) .

% Appendix

@ 1 National Core Output Indicators ... 59
2 Contextual INdICAtOrsS ... 67
3 Additional Significant Effects Indicators ... 75
4 Summary of Progress on Targets ... 77
5 Development Progress on LDF Allocated Sites ..., 81
6 2009 Implementation Schedule ... 87
7 Progress of Strategically Significant Infrastructure Projects ... 91
8 Relationships between Targets and Indicators ..., 97
9 Plan Monitor Manage ProCeSS ... eeseseeeeeeessees e 105




Page 18

1 Introduction and Context

Background

1.1 Monitoring is an essential element of the Government’s ‘Plan, Monitor and
Manage’ approach to policy making. Within this context the Annual Monitoring Report
is seen as the main mechanism for assessing the performance of the Local
Development Framework (LDF), providing the catalyst for any review or update.
Plymouth City Council’'s Local Development Framework covers the period 2006 to
2021. This Annual Monitoring Report is a position statement as at 31 March 2009
and covers the monitoring year 2008/2009. Whilst economic circumstances are likely
to impact on the delivery of the LDF vision and its strategic objectives, it is important
to note that this report covers the time period before the effects of the global recession
would have been fully felt.

Publishing the Annual Monitoring Report

1.2 Section 35 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the
Annual Monitoring Report to be submitted to the Secretary of State (through the
Government Office South West) by the end of December 2009.

1.3 Regulation 48(8) of the Town and Country Planning (Local Development)
(England) Regulations 2004 also requires the city to make the Annual Monitoring
Report available to local communities both in hard copy and electronically on the
Council’s website www.plymouth.gov.uk.

Context of the Annual Monitoring Report

1.4  The 2004 Act specifies that the Annual Monitoring Report should contain
information on:

e the implementation of the Local Development Scheme (see Section 2 of this
report).

* the extent to which the policies set out in the local development documents are
being achieved (see Section 3 of this report).

1.5 Where milestones or targets are not being met, or are not on track to being
achieved, the AMR should:

e  explain why.
e consider whether changes need to be made.
e setout clearly the steps that the authority will take to address these issues.

3

>
—
=
o
[oF
c
2
o
>
()
>
o
@)
o
>
—
D
x
—




l

>
~—
=
3
a
c
2
o
=)
®
>
a
Q)
o
>
—
3
X
X

Page 19

The Monitoring Framework

1.6  The Local Development Framework is monitored through a series of indicators.
In addition to the Core Strategy targets this Annual Monitoring Report also includes:

¢  Core output indicators defined by the Department for Communities and Local
Government (CLG) to achieve a consistent data set for all Local Authorities.
They measure the direct effects of policy. (see Appendix 1 for summary).

¢ Contextual indicators which measure changes in the wider social, economic,
and environmental background against which policies operate. (see Appendix
2 for the city profile which has been produced by Government Office South West
(GOSW) Regional Intelligence Team).

« Significant effects indicators which measure the significant environmental
effects of the Local Development Framework policies. These have been identified
by the Strategic Environmental Assessment/ Sustainability Appraisal of the Local
Development Framework.

(see Appendix 3 for a summary of those that have not already been reported
on in either Chapter 3 or in Appendices 1 or 2).

1.7 Appendix 8 of this report sets out the monitoring framework in greater detail,
setting out the relationship between each of the Strategic Objectives and the targets
in the Core Strategy.

Developing the Monitoring Framework

1.8  This Annual Monitoring Report considers development progress and targets
within the Area Action Plan areas. Appendix 9 shows in diagrammatic form the Plan
Monitor Manage process in relation to site specific proposals. The progress of these
proposals as the Area Action Plans begin to be implemented, and the Implementation
Schedule, are set out in Appendix 5 and Appendix 6 respectively.

1.9  An additional Core Output Indicator to be reported in this year’s AMR is Building
for Life Assessments. This indicator assesses the quality of residential developments
and is reported in paragraphs 3.18 - 3.19 of this report.



Page 20

2 Delivering the Local Development Scheme

Introduction

2.1 This section of the AMR considers progress in preparing Plymouth’s Local
Development Framework (LDF) up to April 2009. The scope and timetable for this
work is set out in the Council’s Local Development Scheme (LDS), providing the
benchmark against which performance is assessed. This section reviews:

e  progress so far,
e the current position, and
e any changes that may need to be made to the LDF work programme.

Progress so far

2.2 Plymouth’s original LDS was submitted to Government Office South West
(GOSW) in January 2005 (adopted July 2005). Since that time, the Council has made
very rapid progress.

2.3 By April 2009 the Council had adopted 9 of its original 14 proposed Development
Plan Documents (DPDs). However, some DPDs have been combined making 7
published DPD documents in total.

Completed LDF Documents: Adoption Date:

Plymouth’s Core Strategy 23/04/07
(including Criteria Based Policies)

North Plymstock Area Action Plan and 06/08/07
Minerals DPD

Devonport Area Action Plan 06/08/07
Millbay and Stonehouse Area Action Plan 06/08/07
Waste Development Plan Document 21/04/08
Sutton Harbour Area Action Plan 28/07/08
Central Park Area Action Plan 22/09/08

N
W)
@
=
o)
=h
>

Q
-
=0
o
—
o
O
O
W)
@
<
o
o

o
3
@
>
=
w
o
=y
@
3
o




N
)
o
=
®
=5
>

Q
~—
>
o
=
o)
O
O
)
@
<
@
o)

S
3
@
-
~—
0p)
o
>0
@
3
o

Page 21

2.4 The Council has also made considerable progress with the documents required
to support the statutory elements of its LDF. It has completed a review of the adopted
Statement of Community Involvement, as well as adopting two Supplementary
Planning Documents, as follows:

Completed LDF Documents: Adoption Date:

Plymouth’s Statement of Community Involvement 24/07/06
Review of Statement of Community Involvement 27/04/09
Planning Obligations & Affordable Housing SPD 01/12/08
Design SPD 06/07/09

2.5 In addition, the Council has also made considerable progress in progressing
its remaining LDF documents, as follows:

LDF Documents to be Current Position: Programmed
completed: Adoption Date
City Centre /University Submitted Oct.2009 Nov.2010
AAP Examination 26/01/10
Derriford /Seaton AAP Issues & Preferred Options May.2011
Consultation Feb.2009
Sustainable Issues and Options Feb.2012
Neighbourhoods DPD Engagement started July 2007
Plymouth Urban Fringe Issues and Options Feb.2012
DPD Engagement started July 2008
East End AAP Issues & Options Consultation Jan.2013
March 2005
Hoe AAP Issues & Options Consultation Nov.2013
March 2005

Current Position — as at December 2009

2.6 The Council has now completed over two thirds of its very ambitious LDF work
programme. Inevitably there has been a need to adjust the LDF work programme in
response to events. None the less, Plymouth has adopted more LDF documents
than any other authority in England, accounting for 8% of all adopted DPDs and 20%
of all adopted AAPs. In achieving this, Plymouth has also been recognised, in
government and other guidance, as a national exemplar of LDF best practice in a
number of areas.



Page 22

Plymouth’s progress in preparing its LDF has given the city a real competitive
advantage. In delivering Plymouth’s vision, the Core Strategy defines a significant
step change in the quality, pace and intensity of development. It sets out how
Plymouth’s potential for long term sustainable growth, as well as fulfilling its wider
regional role as the economic hub of the far South West, can be realised.

In terms of achieving this vision, the adopted AAPs and DPDs provide the
delivery mechanisms, bringing certainty to the development process, securing
significant, quality new developments. Already, a number of major developments
have been completed, or are underway, to deliver fundamental elements of this
vision. Further key opportunities are being brought forward and delivered through
the LDF process.

Work on the City Centre /University AAP has progressed according to the LDS
timetable. The statutory pre-submission consultation was undertaken in August 2009,
the AAP was submitted in October 2009, and the Hearing is to take place in January
2010 (2 months ahead of schedule), with an anticipated Adoption by at least
November 2011.

In considering the 2010 work programme for the remaining LDF documents,
there are a number of matters that have implications for the LDF timetable, as follows:

Changes to the national regulatory framework

The national legislative and regulatory framework for preparing LDFs has
been changed by the Planning Act 2008. In effect the Preferred Options consultation
stage is no longer required, and a new pre-submission stage has been introduced.
In response, Plymouth will carry on ensuring continuous engagement during the
whole plan making process, but combine the Issues and Preferred Options into one
milestone consultation stage, leading up to the new pre-submission consultation.
(The details of this new approach are set out in Plymouth’s revisions to its Statement
of Community Involvement.)

As a consequence of adapting the consultation process to meet these new
regulatory requirements, the timetable for producing Plymouth’s remaining LDF
documents will need to be re-programmed. This has implications for:- Derriford
/Seaton AAP, The Hoe AAP, The East End AAP and Plymouth’s Sustainable
Neighbourhoods (Key Site Allocations) DPD, and the Plymouth Urban Fringe DPD.

The need for further work to support the LDF documents

In addition, the Plan, Monitor and Manage approach to LDF planning has
highlighted the need for further evidence base studies to support the preparation of
the remaining AAPs and DPDs.



Page 23

Preparing these studies will impact on the LDF timetable as follows:

Derriford /Seaton AAP — further more detailed studies are needed on shopping
provision, transport infrastructure, master planning for the new centre, as well
as further information on the proposed green infrastructure in order to inform
the Pre-submission consultation document.

The Hoe AAP — a more detailed understanding of the implications of tourism on
the Hoe is needed to inform the Issues and Preferred Options consultation stage.
The East End AAP — further more detailed studies are needed on the transport
options, major hazard sites, as well as master planning work on the opportunity
sites in the Embankment Lane area and an evidence base study of future
development options for the Port of Plymouth, in order to inform the Issues and
Preferred Options consultation stage.

The Sustainable Neighbourhoods (Key Site Allocations) DPD and new joint
Plymouth Urban Fringe DPD - with the publication of the Secretary of State’s
proposed revisions to the Regional Spatial Strategy, together with the uncertainty
caused by these revisions having to undergo further statutory assessment, the
implications of a considerably increased housing allocation for both Plymouth
and on Plymouth’s Urban Fringe (in South Hams), means that the programme
for preparing these documents will need to be reviewed.

Reviewing the Core Strategy

There is a constant need to keep the Core Strategy under review, particularly
in the light of revised Regional Spatial Strategy - which is expected to be published
during 2010. It is also recognised that, by 2012, the Core Strategy will have been
adopted for 5 years and therefore needs to be formally reviewed by 2013/14 and
rolled forward to cover the next 15 to 20 years. These considerations now need to
be built into revising the LDS 3 year timetable.

Preparing Supplementary Planning Documents

With the Planning Act 2009 receiving Royal Assent on 26 November 2008
there will no longer be a requirement to include SPD details in the LDS. In the
meantime it should be noted that:

The Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing SPD was adopted a year ago,
and in the light of the experience gained from its operation, it has now been
revised and is about to be consulted on, with an expected adoption in the Spring
of 2010.

The Development Guidelines SPD is in the process of being consulted on, with
an expected adoption by the Spring of 2010.

The Coastal Planning SPD has been completed through its inclusion in the
Development Guidelines SPD.

The Shopping Centres SPD will be reviewed as a consequence of the changes
to the LDF work programme above, with an expected adoption by the Summer
of 2011.



Page 24

2.17  In addition to the commitment to prepare the above SPDs, consideration is
being given to the need for a Green Space Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)
to provide the relevant supporting information about each of the LDF Green Space
allocations. Again the production of this document will need to be programmed to
ensure it follows on from the adoption of those DPDs that it supports.

The resource implication of supporting delivery of LDF proposals

2.18 With the strategic framework of the Core Strategy in place and rapid progress
being made on the supporting delivery mechanisms of the AAPs and DPDs, the
focus for resources needs to move towards pro-actively assisting delivery and
implementation.

2.19  This will mean working with service providers to refine details — e.g. about
infrastructure costs and programming. Other innovative ways to support key
stakeholders in delivering key LDF proposals are being developed. However, this
has both resource and timetabling consequences for preparing the remainder of the
LDF

Revising Plymouth’s Local Development Scheme

2.20  In accordance with government guidance, the impact of these changes will
be discussed with Government Office South West (GOSW), and a revised LDS has
been submitted to the Secretary of State outlining Plymouth’s future LDF work
programme.

N
O
o
=
@
=
=)

Q@
~—
>
o
—
o
o)
o
O
o)
<
o
o)

)
3
o
>
~—
w
o
=
o)
3
o




Page 25

2 Delivering the Local Development Scheme




Page 26

3 Delivering the City's Vision

3.1 The Annual Monitoring Report 2006 identified a baseline set of figures related
to the Submission Core Strategy. The Core Strategy itself was adopted in April 2007
and although early in its implementation this AMR monitors its policies, identifying
change, not only in the past year but also from the baseline AMR report of 2006, and
commenting on any emerging themes.

3.2 In this report the assessment ON TRACK is used to identify targets that are
expected to be met in the future on the basis of past performance and/or current
intelligence. The assessment BELOW FUTURE TARGET LEVELS is used to identify
targets where past delivery has been below the target level set for the Local
Development Framework from its implementation date of April 2006. For these targets
an explanation is given as to how this may change in the future. In summary out of
the 40 targets of the Adopted LDF Core Strategy

Targets met or on track to being met 36| 90%
Below target/ improving performance 3| 7.5%
Target not met 1| 2.5%
Total number of LDF Core Strategy targets 40 | 100%

3.3 The three targets that are not yet on track to being met are:

e CS Target 6.2 relating to the delivery of office development.

e  CS Target 10.4 relating to the delivery of Lifetime Homes.

e CS Target 11.5 relating to onsite renewable energy production.
The one target not to have been met is

e CS Target 9.2 relating to Peninsula Dental School (target was completion by
2008, actual completion of Devonport site was in year 2008/09).

3.4 For quick and easy reference, indicators, targets, and out-turn data are also
summarised in the following Appendices:

¢ Appendix 1 — core output indicators.

¢ Appendix 2 — contextual indicators - the city profile has been produced by
Government Office South West (GOSW) Regional Intelligence Team.

e Appendix 3 — significant effects indicators.

¢ Appendix 4 - summary of current performance against each Core Strategy target.

e Appendix 5 and 6 - progress update on the policies and proposals of Adopted
Area Actions.

e Appendix 7 - progress update on the delivery of Strategically Significant
Infrastructure Projects.

w
)
o
=
()
3.
5
(@)
~—
=
®
)
<
%
S
@,
o
S




Page 27

The framework which shows the wording of the objective, and the indicators
relevant to that objective, is set out in Appendix 8.

Strategic Objective 1
Delivering Plymouth's Strategic Role

Strategic Objective 2
Delivering the City Vision

Key Findings and Conclusions

These are overarching objectives for the Core Strategy which define the Vision
for Plymouth. They are delivered by Strategic Objective 3 through to Strategic
Objective 15 which are reported in the remaining parts of this chapter.

With Plymouth’s LDF Core Strategy now adopted, the Council has defined a
significant step change in the quality, pace and intensity of development. It provides
a framework for realising Plymouth’s potential for long term sustainable growth and
fulfilling the city’s wider regional role as the economic hub of the far south west.

In translating this vision into reality and delivering real improvements to the
quality of people’s lives in a way that truly reflects the aspirations of local communities,
the adopted LDF Area Action Plans provide the delivery mechanisms and bring
certainty to the development process. As a result, a number of major developments
are already under way and further key opportunities are being promoted through the
LDF process.

Progressing the Core Strategy and its supporting AAP delivery mechanisms
through to their adoption stage is critical to delivering the City Vision. A prerequisite
of this will be the progression of supporting infrastructure projects. Appendix 7 lists
those identified as being of significant strategic importance and their progress since
last year.

Key elements of these objectives have now been met. The Core Strategy
was submitted to the Secretary of State in August 2006 and progressed to its
Examination stage in February 2007. The Inspector's Report was received in March
2007 and the Core Strategy was found to be sound. In April 2007 the Core Strategy
was formally adopted.



Page 28

Strategic Objective 3
To develop sustainable linked communities throughout the city.

Key Findings and Conclusions

All targets are either being met or on track to being met.

Core Strategy Target 3.1. ON TRACK
All residential parts of the city to have easy access to local shopping and
community facilities by 2021 (to be measured through Sustainable Neighbourhood

Assessments).

As part of the plan making process Sustainable Neighbourhood Assessments
(SNAs) have been undertaken for each of the city’s neighbourhoods. The SNAs will
be a key element of the evidence base which will guide the production of the
Combined Issues and Preferred Options Sustainable Neighbourhoods including Key
Sites Allocations DPD which will be subject to further consultation in June/July 2010.

Strategic Objective 4
To capitalise on Plymouth’s unique natural and built heritage and create well

designed, safe, vibrant, diverse and sustainable neighbourhoods.

Key Findings and Conclusions

All targets have been met.

Core Strategy Target 4.1. TARGET MET
The completion of characterisation studies for the following areas to inform the
Area Action Plans for Devonport, Millbay /Stonehouse, Hoe, City Centre /

University, Sutton Harbour and East End.

The following studies have been completed.

The characterisation studies for Devonport and for Stonehouse and Millbay were
completed in July 2006.



Page 29

The Waterfront Characterisation Study was published in October 2006 and
covers the Hoe, City Centre/University, Sutton Harbour and East End
regeneration areas.

The Barbican Characterisation Study was completed in September 2007.
Plymouth City Centre Future Directions - Investment and Development Strategy
was completed in June 2008. The Plymouth City Centre Precinct - Assessment
of Strategic Options for the Management of its Heritage Assets was completed
in October 2008.

The Hoe Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan was completed
in November 2008.

Core Strategy Target 4.2. TARGET MET

The removal of 5% of buildings per annum (approximately 21 properties per
annum based on current number of buildings on the list) from the 2005 Buildings
at Risk Register by virtue of their future being secured.

There were 412 properties on the 2005 Buildings at Risk Register. The 2008
AMR reported below target performance and proposed a more thorough review early
in 2009. However a partial review has identified 21 properties (5%) which can be
removed from the BAR Register in 2008/9 thereby meeting the Core Strategy target
and suggesting that this indicator is back on track.

Core Strategy Target 4.3 TARGET MET
The completion of at least 4 Plymouth Design Panel meetings every year to
consider major proposals and strategic design related strategies.

Four meetings of the Plymouth Design Panel took place in 2008/9 thereby
meeting this criteria. There has since been a meeting in April 2009 but thereafter
due to budgetary constraints, regular meetings of the Design Panel have been
suspended. In future though the Panel may still be called for particular projects on
an ad hoc basis, and where appropriate, regional and national panels may even be
involved.

The target of 4 Panel meetings per annum had been identified as a proxy
for achieving appropriate design review of projects and it is equally acceptable if this
objective is delivered in other ways. In fact the CABE assessment (see below)
provides a far more informative assessment of design quality of significant residential
developments. This is the first year that design quality of has been assessed and
reported using CABE standards.



Page 30

Housing Quality — Building for Life Assessments

3.18 The CABE (Commission for Architecture and Built Environment) Building for
Life criteria is a government endorsed assessment benchmark developed by CABE.
The assessment has been designed to ensure that it meets the criteria described
for housing quality in PPS3. However this is a new Core Output Indicator and the
methodology for achieving consistency of assessment is still being developed.

3.19  Insummary 19 major developments completed in 2008/9 have been assessed
(also reported in Core Output Indicator table in Appendix 1 H6). This shows that
91% of dwellings on major sites were assessed as being of average or above average
quality.

Classification Number of Number of % of dwellings
(1]

developments Dwellings

Very Good 3 99 19%
Good 5 178 34%
Average 8 199 38%
Poor 3 45 9%

In order to improve future scores, the pre-application process is being more widely
applied and this should address design issues at the earliest stage. Moreover within
the Planning Service there are now four approved Building for Life Assessors who
will be carrying out informal assessments throughout the pre-application and planning
application process.

As well as the use of site planning statements we have an Adopted Design SPD and
a consultation draft Development Guidelines SPD which will help us to promote better
design.

Delivering Regeneration

Strategic Objective 5
To prepare a series of Area Action Plans for the areas of the city of greatest
development pressure or opportunity or sensitivity to change.

Key Findings and Conclusions

3.20  All targets are either being met or on track to being met.

w
)
@
=
()
=
S
(o]
—
>
(0]
Q
—
<—
()
<
2
(@)
-




Page 31

Area Action Plans have either been completed or are in the process of being
prepared for 9 areas of the city. Progress to 31st March 2009 is covered in Chapter
2 of this report. For development progress on proposals contained in the adopted
AAPs see Appendix 5.

Sites for development in the rest of the City not covered by AAPs will be
identified through the Sustainable Neighbourhoods including Key Sites Allocations
DPD. Preparation of this document has started with a year long programme of
consultation with stakeholders and local communities. The consultation is based on
the Sustainable Neighbourhood Studies, and aims to achieve development across
the City which will build sustainable linked communities delivering the needs of those
communities. The DPD will be published as a combined Issues and Preferred Options
document in Summer 2010.

National Land Use Database

As of April 2009 there were 313.4 hectares of land in the city defined by the
National Land Use Database of Previously Developed Land (NLUD) as being vacant
or derelict. NLUD identifies five distinct categories of vacant and derelict land;

A — Previously developed land now vacant.

B — Vacant buildings.

C — Derelict land and buildings.

D — Previously developed land or buildings currently in use and allocated in local
plan or with planning permission.

E — Previously developed land or buildings currently in use with redevelopment
potential but no planning allocation or permission.

A B C D E
Number of Sites 45 51 27 97 4
Total Area (Ha) 96.8 14.0 16.9 111.4 74.3
Min size (Ha) 0.01 0.003 0.008 0.009 0.009
Max size (Ha) 77.9 3.9 7.5 16.4 37.8
Number with 20 20 7 97 0
Planning Status

Despite the monitoring period coinciding with the beginning of the recession
the area of Type C land, derelict land and buildings, remained constant at 16.9 ha.
Equally positive is the fact that over a third of the land on the database has planning
consent or an LDF allocation and another third falls within categories A and B, the
easiest type to bring back into productive use. This means that the city is in a strong
position to take advantage of any economic upturn in the future.



Page 32

The proportion of developable land that has been vacant or derelict for more
than 5 years is 1.71%, favourably below the National Indicator (NI 170) target of
2.50%. This is a continued reduction from last year’s value of 2.44 and reflects the
continuing regeneration of our waterfront areas.

Strategic Objective 6

To set a spatial planning framework through the LDF that supports the Council’s
Economic Strategy and Action Plan, helping to make Plymouth a place where
people, business and an outstanding natural environment converge to bring
about sustainable prosperity and well being for all.

Key Findings and Conclusions

The only target not to have been met in the 2008/09 year relates to the amount
of new office development. However the City Centre and University Area Action Plan
aims to create a new office core and contains a proposal for 100,000 sq m of office
floorspace. This is expected to come forward in the next 5-6 years and could create
up to 4,000 new jobs

The reported increase in the number of employees reflects previous economic
confidence as the figures are from 2007. Similarly the increase in developed
employment land in Plymouth mirrors this recent confidence. Permission has been
given for a number of new developments with others currently under construction.
However, these positive achievements must be placed in the context of the economic
outlook. Any impacts as a result of the economic climate should become evident in
the next report.

Core Strategy Target 6.1 ON TRACK
Delivery in the Plymouth Principal Urban Area of employment land of at least 4
ha per annum (2006-2016) and 4.5 per annum (2016 and 2021)

In 2008/09 9.61 ha of employment land were developed. This is the fourth
period of year on year growth and represents the best figure for 6 years. There was
strong growth in the B1 Use Class and a steady showing for Mixed Use B Uses. (See
Figure 1). The average since the start of the plan period in 2006 now stands at 5.35
ha. per annum.



w
)
o
=
)
=.
>
«
—
>
D
O
—
<
(72}
<
@,
o
=]

Page 33

12

10 1

Land developed (ha)

ra

4 i
0 i Q
2004105

2005406 2006007 2007108 2008/09

OE1 B2 OBB OMixed B uses

Figure 1 Land developed for employment use by type

3.29 The figure for developed floorspace of 13,508 sq m shows a great deal of
consistency over the previous 4 years. (See Figure 3). As mentioned above there
was a marked increase in B1 office use thanks to the completion of the latest stages
of the Tamar Science Park and the Forresters Business Park. The success of these
campus style business parks, with their more generous layouts, helps to explain why
the amount of floorspace developed has remained stable but the amount of land
developed has risen steadily.

3.30 The recent difficult trading conditions experienced by the development industry
are reflected in the fall in the area under construction or not started. (See Figure 2).
Sites under construction fell from 13.5ha to 8.9ha and the total area of land on sites
with planning permission but not started fell from 63.9ha to 37.5ha. This is largely
because the planning permissions on a small number of large development sites
have lapsed, for example the residual elements of the Plymouth International Business
Park (15ha) and Glacis Park, Crownhill (5ha). The situation should be improved with
the planned adoption of the City Centre and University Area Action Plan in 2010,
which will seek to create a new, vibrant office quarter through allocations to the north
of the city centre.



Page 34

ol —

Sites Under Construction Sites with Planning Parmission but not started

HB1 mB2 OB8 OMixed B Uses

Figure 2 Employment land survey at April 2008

Core Strategy Target 6.2 BELOW FUTURE TARGET LEVELS
Delivery of 13,000 sq m new office development within the city per annum

3.31  This is an ambitious target which has not been met in the past few years,
however, this is not altogether surprising since Plymouth has not had a buoyant
market for office floorspace, and one of the aims of the Local Development Framework
is to stimulate growth of an office sector. The recently submitted City Centre and
University Area Action Plan aims to create a new 100,000 sq m office quarter on the
edge of the city centre. In 2008/09 4,868 sq m of office space had been completed,
up from 1,229 sq m in the previous year and a major new office development of
almost 5,000 sq m was nearing completion in Sutton Harbour.

w
)
@
=
()
=
S
(o]
—
>
(0]
Q
—
<—
()
<
2
(@)
-




w
)
o
=
)
=.
>
«
—
>
D
O
—
<
(72}
<
@,
o
=]

Page 35

Developed employment land floorspace by use class

16,000

14,000

12,000

=
=
]

8,000

6,000

Floorspace (sq metres)

4,000

i .
0 -

2004/05 2005006 2006/07 2007108 2008/09

EB1 B2 OB8 OMixed B Uses

Figure 3 Developed employment land floorspace by use class

Core Strategy Target 6.3 ON TRACK
A net increase in the number of employees of approximately 1,800 per annum.

3.32 A number of data sources are used to monitor this target, one examining the
economically active population and another looking at the number of jobs in Plymouth
Travel to Work Area (TTWA). The chart shows that the economically active population
numbers have been generally rising steadily since the April 2005 - March 2006 period,
with an increase of some 5,800 employees in the period up to April 2006-March
2007, reflecting the buoyant economy at this time. The rate did slip to an increase
of just 1,000 in the period up to March 2008 and just 900 to March 2009. Although
the increase has not been steady and does appear to be slowing, it does surpass
the target of 1,800 per annum on average over the five year period. However, the
economic changes are starting to filter through with the declining number of
economically active population.

3.33  The Plymouth Travel to Work Area has continued to see increases in the
number of jobs. The latest published figures (2007) show that between 2006 and
2007 there has been an increase of 3,235 jobs in the Plymouth TTWA, up from
140,170 to 143,405. However, it should be noted that this does not cover 2008 (figures
for which are currently unavailable) and therefore does not include the period of
economic change.



Page 36

3.34  Six priority sectors have also been identified in the Local Economic Strategy
(LES) that the City wishes to grow. These sectors are: advanced engineering;
business services; creative industries; marine industries; medical and healthcare;
and tourism and leisure. Work is being done to monitor the number of jobs in these
sectors, although these are part of the overall figures. Using the most up-to-date
figures available to 2007, two have declined (advanced engineering and medical
and healthcare), two have increased (creative and marine industries) and two have
remained unchanged (business services and tourism and leisure).

3.35 Given the current economic climate there may be more uncertainty in the
future, especially with nationally rising unemployment rates. These should start to
filter through in the next AMR giving a more realistic picture. However, the desire to
grow the number of jobs in Plymouth is a long-term goal.

Number of people in Plymouth who are economically active

3.36  The chart below shows that the number of people of who are economically
active in Plymouth (aged 16 and over) has risen steadily over the past four years.
The rise in more recent years has, however, been at a slower rate with only minimal
increases between 2006 and 2009.

140,000

200405 200506 200607 p0Tma 200AT9

Numbers of jobs in Plymouth

w
O
@
=
®
S.
5
@)
~—
5
®
)
<
%
<
(28
o
S




w
)
o
z
()
=.
=)
(o]
-
0
(0]
@)
<
(72]
<
@,
o
)

Page 37

Sector Jobs as at 2003 Jobs as at 2006 Jobs as at 2007
Extractive * * *
Manufacturing 20,100 18,700 18,800
Utilities * * *
Construction 5,300 5,600 6,000
Retail/Distribution 24,700 24,300 24,100
Hotels and Catering 9,400 9,400 9,400
Transport and Communities 7,300 8,400 8,400
Financial Services 2,800 2,300 2,500
Business Services 16,100 16,000 17,300
Public Administration 9,200 11,000 10,500
Education 15,300 16,200 17,800
Health 18,800 20,500 20,600
Other Services 6,100 6,800 6,900
Total 136,042 140,170 143,405

* Numbers are too small to maintain confidentially and cannot be disclosed under

the 1947 Statistics of Trade Act.

Source: ABI

3.37 The table above shows the number of jobs available in various sectors in

Plymouth up to 2007. As can be seen the number of jobs have continued to increase
but they do pre-date economic changes that started to occur in 2008. As such, these
increases need to be treated with caution in that they are historic rather than wholly
current.

Core Strategy Target 6.4 ON TRACK
Identification of at least one site to be safeguarded for a major high quality inward
investment opportunity, including potentially a public sector office relocation or
a private sector regional headquarters.

3.38 In 2007 the Council began the preparation of the Sustainable Neighbourhoods
including Key Site Allocations DPD, which will identify key sites in Plymouth in areas
not already covered by Area Action Plans. This process aims to identify sites for
development in partnership with local communities, with the aim of creating a network
of sustainable linked communities across the city, whilst ensuring that new
development meets the needs of communities as well as the city as a whole. This
document, along with the AAPs will ensure that there is a portfolio of employment



Page 38

sites available, of the right quantity and quality and in the right locations, to meet the
needs of the growth agenda and to accommodate prestige relocations of the kind
envisaged by Core Strategy Target 6.4.

Strategic Objective 7

To promote new shopping development which contributes positively to delivering
Plymouth's vision for sustainable high quality growth, making Plymouth a city of
sustainable linked communities.

KEY FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

All targets are either being met or on track to being met. Performance of the
city's retail centres as defined by the number of vacant or non-A1 retail units would
seem to be better than average and until 2008 seemed to be holding up well. However
the impact of the economic downturn will be more evident in next year's AMR when
the Autumn 2009 situation will be reported.

Core Strategy Target 7.1 ON TRACK
To achieve an increase in retail capacity for comparison goods of between 57,000
and 92,000 sq m net by 2016.

Since 2006 an extra 3,438 sq m (gross) of retail floorspace has been provided
in addition to the 26,416 sq m (gross) of floorspace provided with the opening of
Drakes Circus in 2006. This means that Plymouth is already over halfway to achieving
the Core Strategy Target. In January 2007 a major study was commissioned looking
at opportunities for further retail growth in the City Centre. This Study will show how
the retail targets set out in the Core Strategy can be met in the City Centre in the
period up to 2021 and beyond, and this has formed a key part of the evidence base
of the City Centre and University Area Action Plan.

Core Strategy Target 7.2 ON TRACK
To achieve an increase in retail capacity for comparison goods of between
106,000 and 172,000 sq m net by 2021.

This target applies to the period up to 2021 and therefore includes the figures
used in Target 7.1. Achievement of this target is dependent on increases in population
and expenditure in Plymouth that will result from the success of the growth agenda,
as is set out in the Core Strategy and the Plymouth Shopping Study 2006. The City
Centre will be the focus for retail growth, and proposals will be brought forward



Page 39

through the City Centre AAP. The City Centre and University AAP Issues and
Preferred Options document was submitted on 30" October 2009 and the Public
Examination is scheduled for January 2010.

Core Strategy Target 7.3 ON TRACK
To deliver a new district centre at Derriford to serve northern Plymouth by 2016,
and to monitor its potential to grow in the future.

The Core Strategy was adopted in April 2007 and contains Policy CS07 setting
out the aim to create a new district centre at Derriford. This new district centre will
include an element of retail which will contribute to the overall targets to increase
retail floorspace in the City. The Derriford and Seaton AAP is being prepared and
will specify where and how large the new district centre will be.

The AAP completed its issues and preferred options stage in March 2009
and the pre-submission document is now being prepared with the consultation
anticipated in February to March 2010 .

The completed AAP is timetabled to be adopted in 2011. The results of the
Derriford Shopping Study emphasised the importance of making the link between
the development of retail floorspace at Derriford and in the City Centre, and ensuring
that the City Centre is the priority location for retail investment in the city. The Derriford
and Seaton AAP and the City Centre AAP will both include a series of indicators to
show when the conditions are right to channel significant amounts of retail investment
towards Derriford, while still maintaining the City Centre's position as the primary
shopping centre.

Core Strategy Target 7.4 ON TRACK
To deliver a new District Centre at Weston Mill by 2016.

A proposal will be brought forward through the Sustainable Neighbourhoods
(Key Site Allocations) DPD.

Core Strategy Target 7.5 ON TRACK
To deliver new local centres at Devonport, Millbay and Plymstock Quarry by
2016.

Area Action Plans for Devonport, Millbay & Stonehouse and North Plymstock
have now been adopted. The new centre at Devonport has been granted planning
permission and the new centre at Millbay is included in the outline planning permission
for the redevelopment of Millbay Docks. A planning application has been received
for Plymstock Quarry which includes provision for the new local centre.



Page 40

Core Strategy Target 7.6 ON TRACK

To deliver a consolidated retail warehouse location on Laira Embankment by
2016, which also assists with the delivery of strategic transport proposals for
Plymouth's Eastern Corridor.

A proposal will be brought forward through the East End AAP.

Core Strategy Target 7.7 ON TRACK
To complete a revised Shopping study for Plymouth by 2011

The most recent Shopping Study was published in August 2006. A revision
to that Study is planned by 2011.

Local Output Indicator
— Vacancy in prime shopping frontages.

There are no specific targets associated with this indicator although it is the
Council’s objective to maintain healthy shopping centres across the city. High levels
of vacancy or non A1 retail use would indicate a problem arising in particular centres.
In Autumn 2008, when the survey took place, of the 1,142 units in the city located
within a prime shopping frontage, 103 (9%) were vacant, compared to national
average of 15%, and 315 (27%) were in non-A1 retail use, negligible changes from
the previous year.

The table below shows levels of vacancy in the prime shopping frontages as
defined by the Local Plan First Deposit. These frontages will be revised in the
Shopping Centres SPD. Overall there has been little change in the position since
2007 with centres holding up well despite the economic downturn. There are, however,
variations in performance. For the first time since it's opening in October 2006 Drake
Circus shopping centre was fully let, whilst vacancy rates for the City Centre Prime
Frontage Remaining area went up from 3% to 7%.



Page 41

= Name Type No.of No.of % No. of % No. of %
8 units Units Vacant Units Non Units Vacant
S Vacant Non A1 Vacant and
= A1 Use and Non
- Use Non A1
3 A1 Use
O Use
<
‘2 Prime City 127 13 10% 14 1% |27 21%
o. Frontage | Centre
S Central
Prime City 170 12 7% 37 22% | 49 29%
Frontage | Centre
Remaining
Drake City 63 0 0% 7 1M1% |7 1%
Circus Centre
Estover | District | 7 0 0% 2 29% |2 29%
Centre
Mutley District | 56 7 13% 20 36% |27 48%
Plain Centre
Plympton | District | 68 8 12% 20 29% |28 41%
Ridgeway | Centre
Plymstock | District | 26 4 15% 3 12% |7 27%
Broadway | Centre
Roborough | District | 7 0 0% 1 14% |1 14%
Centre
St. District | 19 1 5% 10 53% | 11 58%
Budeaux | Centre
Transit District | 14 0 0% 1 7% 1 7%
Way Centre
All Local |Local |584 58 10% 200 34% | 258 44%

Centres | Centres

3.51  The position with the ten worst performing centres is also similar with no
significant worsening of their positions in the face of the severe decline nationally in
retail activity. Encouragingly, 4 out of the 10 have no vacant units but do suffer from
high levels of non A1 uses.



Page 42

No.of No.of % No.of % Non No.of % ;

units Units Vacant Units A1 Units Vacant o

Vacant Non Use  Vacant and S

A1 and Non =

Use Non A1 =

A1 Use >

Use )

<—

Lipson Vale 6 4 67% 1 17% 5 83% 2

=

Hooe 5 0 0% 4 80% 4 80% S
Station Road 19 3 16% 11 58% 14 73%

(Devonport)

Cumberland Street | 13 2 15% 7 54% 9 69%
Clittaford Road 6 0 0% 4 67% 4 67%
Chaddlewood 5 0 0% 3 60% 3 60%
George Street 5 0 0% 3 60% 3 60%
Ebrington Street 31 7 23% 11 35% 18 58%
Marlborough Street | 34 7 21% 12 35% 19 56%
Stoke Village 33 5 15% 13 39% 18 55%

Delivering Cultural & Night-Time Economy

Strategic Objective 8

To facilitate the creation of Plymouth as a vibrant waterfront city with a thriving
cultural and leisure sector and a diverse, safe, balanced and socially inclusive
evening/ night-time economy.

Core Strategy Target 8.1
Targets to be developed in relation to the Council’s work on promoting tourism
and leisure trips to the city.

3.52 A tourism strategy for Plymouth will be developed once the Destination
Management Organisation (DMO) structure for Plymouth is in place. This will contain
a number of milestones and targets. Responsibility for the retail and day visitor
markets will remain with the PCC Economic Development Services whilst the
remainder will stay with the City Development Company.



w
)
o
z
()
=.
=)
(o]
-
0
(0]
@)
<
(72]
<
@,
o
)

Page 43

Delivering Educational Improvements

Strategic Objective 9

To set a spatial planning framework that supports improvements in education
to enable everyone to share in Plymouth's growing prosperity.

Key Findings and Conclusions

3.53  The Strategy for Change 2008 known as Investment for Children sets the
priorities for new school buildings, closures, amalgamations and improvements.
There have been some revisions to the previous targets for individual schools, but

progress is being made.

Core Strategy Target 9.1 ON TRACK
Delivery of new primary schools in Barne Barton, Devonport, Millbay, Southway
and Plymstock, and the Whitleigh campus, by 2008-2016.

Project Status

Barne Barton (amalgamation of
Barne Barton and Bull Point
primary schools on new site).

Riverside Primary school opened in February
2008 (replacing Barne Barton and Bull Point
schools).

Devonport (amalgamation of Mt
Wise and Marlborough primary
schools on new site).

Ongoing project to replace with a new 2.5 form
entry school on a new site . The site identified
in the Devonport AAP was not considered to

be a viable option. Increases in pupil numbers
may negate this proposal when the Investment
for Children Strategy is reviewed next year.

Millbay (new Secondary School
and expanded Primary Provision).

The Millbay AAP provides for the development
of a new secondary school. However the
specific site identified has complications and
is being reviewed. The provision for an
expansion of primary schools is developing.

Southway (amalgamation of
Langley Infant and Junior schools
on same site and amalgamation of
Southway and Tamerton Vale
schools on the former Southway
Community College site).

The new Oakwood Primary School opened in
September 2009 (replacing Langley Infant and
Junior schools). Beechwood Primary School
is under construction to replace Southway and
Tamerton Vale schools. Completion due 1
April 2010.




Page 44

Project Status

Plymstock (new school within the | The North Plymstock AAP proposes a new
quarry site). primary school as part of the quarry
development but does not specify a site for it.
Work with the developer has identified a
potential site.

Whitleigh campus (relocation of The Wood View Learning Community is
Woodlands Special School to a completed and operational.

new campus, co-located with Sir
John Hunt Community College and
Whitleigh Primary School).

3.54  In addition, Ernesettle primary school was opened in 2008; Shakespeare
primary school opened in 2009 (replacing West Park and Chaucer schools) and
Mayflower primary schools opened in 2009 (replacing South Trelawney and North
Prospect schools).

Core Strategy Target 9.2 TARGET NOT MET
Delivery of the Peninsula Dental School by 2008

Project Status

Peninsula Dental School Devonport. | Development completed in 2008/09
(16/03/2009).
Opened 28th April 2009.

Peninsula Dental School Derriford. | Approval of Reserved Matters 19/11/20009.

Delivering Adequate Housing

Strategic Objective 10
To ensure that all Plymouth residents have access to a decent and safe home
within a quality living environment.

Key Findings and Conclusions

3.55 Dwelling completions are on track and we have demonstrated adequate
supply (5,587 dwellings) to meet 5 year requirements.

w
)
@
<
D
=,
=}
(o]
=
>
(0]
O
~
<—
(2}
<
@,
(@)
>




w
O
o
=
®
3.
5
@)
—
=)
®
)
—
<—
%
<
(28
o
5

Page 45

Population and Housing Growth

300,000
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000 -
50,000 - I
£ 2002 003 2005 2007 2008 2000

O Fopulation 241000 241800 241800 243500 246000 248100 250700 252800
EDwellings 108583 107019 107475 | 107868 | 10EE47 109585 110915 111705 112815

Figure 4 Population and housing growth

3.56  Between 2001 and 2008 Plymouth experienced a 4.90% increase in
population. Over a similar period the number of dwellings increased by 4.81%. The

following sections look at the current and future dwelling provision and land supply
in the city.

Core Strategy Target 10.1 ON TRACK

The delivery of the strategic housing requirement up to 2021 of some 1,150
dwellings per annum (equating to 17,250 new homes by 2021). This annualised
figure of 1,150 dwellings per annum is phased at 1,000 dwellings per annum
(2006-2016) and 1,450 dwellings per annum (2016-2021).



Page 46

Past delivery of dwellings

2500

(v
=
=
=]

1500

1000
R0 | |
gamvmmh
o S . T . ]
o;m o o
,..,h.,,@@%%’
5 &

Number of Dwellings Built {gross)

=]

!

g
o3
—

T

S
&

3.57 In the three years since the start of the plan period (2006-2009) 3,071 new
dwellings have been constructed and an additional 258 have been provided through
the conversion and subdivision of existing properties: 3,329 dwellings in total. Set
against this impressive building programme, which exceeds the 1,000 annualised
Draft RSS target, are 220 dwellings which have been demolished. These demolitions,
218 of which are of local authority housing, are the necessary precursor for the future
regeneration of run down areas of the city and the improvement of the city’s housing
stock. This equates to an additional 3,109 dwellings net built 2006-2009.

3] AN B ™= ™ W
5 §§§’§?§
h-'b--\--.hh-h-r—-

@Al Sites @Small Sites WLarge Sites

Figure 5 Dwellings completed

3.58 Plymouth is a university city and as numbers at the university have increased
there has been a need for additional student accommodation. In the past students
have been accommodated in Halls of Residence but more recently development has
taken the form of Cluster Flats, for example 6 apartments with communal lounge in
a self contained unit, or alternatively self-contained studio rooms. There have been
93 such units built since 2006, accommodating 373 students. Government guidance
has clarified the position in relation to these units deeming them to be outside the
classification of “dwellings”. Taking account of this means that overall 3,016 net
additional dwellings have been built for the 3 years of the plan period (2006-2009).

w
O
o
2.
()
=
=)
(o]
~—
>
()
)
—
<.
(2]
<
@
o
>




w
)
o
z
()
=.
=)
(o]
-
0
(0]
@)
<
(72]
<
@,
o
)

Page 47

2006/7 2007/8 2008/9 Total

2006-2009

Total dwellings delivered 1,429 803 1,097 3,329
(inc student housing)

Demolitions 113 13 94 220

Student dwellings 0 0 93 93

Net dwelling completions 1,316 790 910 3,016

3.59 Itis important to note that the Draft RSS housing requirement and the Core
Strategy target of 1,000 dwellings is a gross figure. Hence it is the top line of the
above table: Total dwellings delivered (inc students housing) that should be assessed
against this target, rather than the net figure which has to be reported as part of
National Indicator (NI 155).

The 5 Year Housing Supply

3.60 In summary of paragraph 3.61 - 3.64 below, this assessment shows that
Plymouth has a 5 year housing land supply. The assessment reflects the following
considerations:

1. It covers the period April 2010-15
The requirement is based on the Draft RSS and Panel’s report, as well as
Plymouth’s Adopted LDF Core Strategy. This indicates a requirement of 5,000
sites between 2010-15.
However, the assessment has regard to current market circumstances, the
emerging Secretary of States proposed revisions to RSS, as well as taking into
account the shortfall in the number of houses built 2006-10, based on survey.

3. The assessment indicates a 5 year land supply of 5,587 against a requirement
for 5,200 homes.

4. The information for this assessment is based on the recently completed Plymouth
2009 SHLAA, and reflects the views of the SHLAA Panel made up of Developers,
Agents, Architects and statutory agents.

Assessment of Plymouth’s Housing Requirement:

3.61 The period used for calculating this year’s Annual Monitoring Report 5 year
Housing Land Supply is 1% April 2010 to 31% March 2015. However, Plymouth’s
housing requirement needs to be considered within the following context:

e The Draft Regional Spatial Strategy for the South West (2006-2026) defines
Plymouth housing requirement as provision for 1,000 per annum 2006-16 and
1,450 per annum 2016-26. This requirement was endorsed by the Panel’s
examination of draft RSS.

The Secretary of State’s proposed revision to RSS currently indicates a potential
increase in this allocation to provision for growth of 1,400 per annum 2006-16
and 1,900 per annum 2016-26, making a total requirement of 33,000 over the



Page 48

plan period. However, these proposed revisions to draft RSS are still subject to
further statutory assessments before they can be confirmed.

Plymouth’s Adopted LDF Core Strategy (2006-2021) sets out the housing
requirement in terms of an annualised target of 1,000 dwellings per annum
2006-16 and 1,450 dwellings per annum 2016-21. In terms of calculating the
current 5 year land supply, this equates to making provision for 5,000 dwellings
over the period 2010 to 2015.

In considering the housing requirement over the next 5 years, any shortfall in
houses built since the start of the plan period (2006) also needs to be taken into
account. In Plymouth’s case, 3,016 dwellings (net) have been delivered over
the first three years of the plan period i.e. 2006-2009. A further 343 dwellings
(net) are expected to be delivered 2009/10. This combines to make a 614 dwelling
deficit which should be compensated for over the remaining 16 years of the plan
period. This equates to an annual addition of 40 d.p.a. to the housing target.
However, with the current recession, there has been a sudden and severe
decrease of between 50% to 90% in the ‘tangible’ demand for new housing.
Current indications are that it will take some 3 to 5 years for normal market
conditions to be restored, which means that it will probably add some 5 years
to the plan period before the number of houses built can match the current RSS
estimate of housing demand. (These matters are the subject of ongoing
discussions with GOSW concerning their implications for revising the Plymouth
Local Area Agreement Housing Target, NI 154.)

Taking all these factors into account, Plymouth’s 5 year housing land
requirement must be based on the Draft RSS and Panel’s report, (in that these are
the statutory elements of revising the RSS that have now been satisfactorily
completed), as well as Plymouth’s Adopted LDF Core Strategy.

The requirement also needs to take into account the shortfall in provision for the
period 2006-09. This equates to an annual addition of some 40 d.p.a. over the plan
period.

Therefore, Plymouth’s 5 year housing land requirement is 5.200 sites between
2010-2015.

However, this assessment has also taken into account the emerging Secretary
of States proposed revisions to RSS, as well as having regard to the implications of
current market circumstances. While these considerations may either increase or
decrease Plymouth’s housing land requirements, because they are both still the
subject of further statutory considerations / negotiation with GOSW, their implications
can not be relied on in determining Plymouth’s 5 year housing land requirement.

Assessment of Plymouth’s Housing Land Supply:

In terms of ensuring Plymouth has an adequate 5 year supply of housing
sites to meet demand, the following factors need to be taken into account:

A Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) was undertaken by
consultants in April 2009 in order to provide an independent assessment of the



Page 49

amount of land available and to identify the likely timescale of development. The
assessment of sites was undertaken by a Panel consisting of developers, agents,
and architects experienced in the local market. This Panel assessed the sites
under the headings of whether they were suitable, available, and achievable to
determine overall deliverability at April 2009 under current market conditions.
The SHLAA assessment in paragraph 2.10.2 of the SHLAA report concluded
that:
"Currently the final requirement for housing provision is yet to be confirmed
through the RSS. However, it appears clear that, subject to market conditions,
sufficient housing sites have been identified to meet the future requirement."

¢ Inorderto arrive at a 5 year supply from April 2010, for the purpose of this Annual
Monitoring Report, the SHLAA assessment has been rolled forward by 8 months,
using the latest intelligence on availability and deliverability of housing sites.
This resulted in the trajectory shown in Fig 6 and a 5 year supply of 5,587
dwellings (net) made up of the following components.

w
)
o
=
()
=.
>
(o]
—
>
(¢}
O
—
<
(72}
<
@,
o
=]

Components of Plymouth’s Housing Supply

201011 200112 01413 201314 20MW15 Syear

Total
Sites under construction 328 54 0 0 0 382
Sites with detailed planning 726 | 729 | 214 147 0| 1,816
permission
10% Allowance for non delivery -73 -73 -21 -15 0| -182
SHLAA sites (2010 update) 135| 319 | 602 833 | 1,554 | 3,443

Sites with AAP allocation 50| 100| 150 551 | 684 | 1,535

Sites not allocated in AAP 85| 219| 452 282 | 870| 1,908

Allowance for sites < 5 units 62 53 86 94 97 392
Demolitions -100 | -120 0 -44 0| -264
TOTAL 1,078 | 962 | 881 | 1,015 1,651 | 5,587

3.65 Individual sites that make up the 5,587 dwellings of the 5 year supply are, in
accordance with government guidance listed in an Annex . This document is available
on (www.plymouth.gov.uk/) or alternatively in paper copy on request.



Page 50

Housing Trajectory under current market conditions

1800 LDF Plan Period 2006-2021
1600
- Draft RSS
1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200 I I
o
$ G0 S > P P P
B 2 rﬁsﬁa '\ )
Sl sy T o
B A ctual Dwelling Completions B SHLAA Consirained housing land avallabllity e minus 10%
I SHLAA Allowance for “Lapsed Sites® I 5HLAA Allowance for Small Sites
COCS Large Windfall Sites —Diraft RS5 Target

Figure 6 Housing Trajectory

The trajectory above shows the supply of sites over the entire period of the RSS i.e.
2006-2026. It is an assessment derived from the April 2009 SHLAA and as such it
is based on current economic conditions. It should be noted that the SHLAA did not
include sites that had not been put forward by a developer on the basis that under
current market conditions they could not be considered to be “available”. However
it is likely that when economic conditions improve further sites will become available
as it becomes more viable for landowners to put forward sites for development. In
addition the SHLAA made the assumption that reduced densities should be applied
to the capacity of sites. Site densities may therefore also increase as the future
apartment market once again picks up, thus further adding to the potential supply of
dwellings.

w
O
o
2.
@
=
=)
(o]
~—
>
@
)
—
<.
2}
<
@
o
>




w
)
o
z
()
=.
=)
(o]
-
0
(0]
@)
<
(72]
<
@,
o
)

Page 51

Dwellings Under Construction

1800

1600 |
- /\

Mumber of Dwellings
@ o M
s = B
]
| &
| |
-
"'\-\.“_\_-
-\-\_\_\_\_\-\-\-

=]
=

g
/

200 | »
{J.

]
&
-

$EEEFFSIEIEEF85558588888

= Large Sites Small Sites -+ All Sites

?'QE.;-

Figure 7 Dwellings under construction

3.66  The number of dwellings under construction has dropped sharply for the past
two years in succession. At April 2009 it had fallen to 644 from peak levels of 1,613
in 2007. This decrease in construction activity is a reflection of the recession and its
impact on the number of new dwellings being started. Both nationally and regionally
the number of dwelling starts fell by almost 50% over this two year period. However
in Plymouth the decrease has been more significant: in 2008/9 only 274 dwellings
were recorded as having started, compared with 1,019 two years previously, a fall
of 73%. However, the number of new schemes to start fell from 46 to 20 implying
that it is the larger schemes that have been worst hit by the recession.

3.67 The supply of sites with planning permission on the other hand is only just
beginning to reflect the recession with only a small decrease in the number of
dwellings yet to start on sites with planning permission. With 4,571 dwellings yet to
start and 644 already under construction: 5,215 in total it would seem feasible that
there are adequate sites to meet 5 years of the RSS annualised dwelling target from
new build construction alone without taking into account the contribution of
conversions which has averaged 82 dwellings per annum over the past 5 years.



Page 52

Dwellings Not Started

G000

5000

=
8

3000

2000

Mumber of Dwellings

1000

= Large Sites - Small Sites —— All Sites

Figure 8 Dwellings not started

Local Output Indicator
— Development on Windfall Sites.

3.68 Since the start of the plan period dwelling completions on windfall sites have
been averaging 522 per annum (48%). Of these windfall sites

e 69% (average 363 dwellings per annum) have been on large brownfield sites.
e 26% (average 134 dwellings per annum) have been on small brownfield sites.
* 5% (average 24 dwellings per annum ) have been on greenfield sites.

In the past year 444 dwellings (44%) were built on windfall sites.

Dwelling Completions 2001-2008 by type of site

Greanfeld Weafal
Small Erowndaid Sies
\inadinl Sies Fa.l

5%

Brownfield
‘Windiall Sites

Icherilifinl Sites
ars b o]

Figure 9 Dwelling completions, (Source: Housing
Completions Database)

w
)
@
=
()
=
S
(o]
—
>
(0]
O
—
<—
()
<
2
(@)
-




w
o
o]
Z
)
=.
=)
«Q
-
0
(0]
Q
<
(72]
<
@,
o
)

Page 53

3.69 At April 2008, there were a potential 4,943 dwellings on sites with planning
permission

¢  Greenfield windfall sites contribute just 2% to future commitments with planning
permission.

e Large brownfield windfall sites contribute 33% of dwelling commitment with
planning permission. This compares with 36% in 2007/8 and 52% in 2006/7
reflecting the new LDF allocations from Adopted AAPs progressing through the
planning process.

¢  Small brownfield windfall sites contribute 6%.

3.70  In looking to the future, the LDF assumes that windfalls on small brownfield
sites will continue, but that the contribution from large brownfield windfall sites will
reduce as development is directed to the AAP sites or other key sites in the city.

Dwelling Commitments (with Planning Permission) 2008 by type of site

Gresnfield Windtall
Sias
2%

Small Browritizid
Windiall Siles
&% ——

Large Beownliekl
‘Windiall Stes
A3%

Idemiied Sins
5%

Figure 10 Dwelling commitments, (Source: Housing
Completions Database)

Core Strategy Target 10.2 ON TRACK
At least 30% of new dwellings on qualifying sites to be affordable (equating to
3,300 new affordable homes by 2021).

3.71 In 2008/09, 290 affordable homes were delivered in Plymouth bringing the
total number since the start of the plan period to 758. Delivery over this period
(2006-2009) can be measured against a total delivery of 2,682 on sites of 15 dwellings
or more ie 28%. The 2008/9 equivalent is 34% (290 affordable measured against
857 total on sites of 15 or more).

3.72  The delivery of 290 affordable dwellings also exceeds the target of 215 set
by National Indicator (N1155) for 2008/9. Delivery over and above this target is a
reflection of the work of the Plymouth Housing Development Partnership which
involves partner Registered Social Landlords and the Homes and Communities
Agency (HCA). The economic downturn has had a significant impact on the housing
sector, with finance squeezed, falling asset values and a constrained customer base
affecting the ability to build and purchase property. To combat this Plymouth has
responded on a number of fronts to maximise impact and to help support both the
house building industry and the delivery of new and affordable homes in the current



Page 54

recession-hit housing market. These include securing significant HCA grant funding
to purchase unsold completed open market homes or purchasing whole sites for
affordable housing; kick-start and investment funding to unlock stalled sites; support
of the Planning Market Recovery Action Plan. In addition £629,000 of Commuted
Sums has been received which the Council will use to support a range of affordable
housing delivery over the next two years.

350

300 |

.l

2002/03 200304 2004005 200506 2008807 200706 2008/08

€

g

g

Affordable dwellings complated
8

Figure 11 Affordable Housing, (Source: PCC Housing Services)

3.73  Of the 3 year total of 758 affordable dwellings 536 (71%) were for rent and
222(29%) were intermediate tenure eg shared ownership.

Core Strategy Target 10.3 ON TRACK
80% of new dwellings to be provided on previously developed land (equating to
13,800 homes by 2021).

3.74 In the past year 98% of dwellings completed were on previously developed
land. This is our highest percentage since monitoring began in 2001.

3.75 Of all the new build development currently in the pipeline 92% is on previously
developed land. When the likely contribution from conversions and subdivisions are
added, all of which (100%) are classified as previously developed, it is likely that the
LDF target (80%), the government target (60%), and the South West Regional target
(50%) will be achieved next year.

w
)
@
<
D
=,
=}
(o]
=
>
(0]
O
~
<—
(2}
<
@,
(@)
>




w
O
@
=
®
3.
5
@)
—
=)
®
)
—
<—
%
<
(28
o
5

Page 55

New Homes on Previously Developed Land

1T

2004/05 2008/07 200708 2008/08

5
u
o
:
T 2 mo%
5
w 1§
moa
£a

H
éﬂl‘ﬂ%
=
=

Figure 12 New homes on previously developed land, (Source: Housing Completions Database)

Core Strategy Target 10.4. BELOW TARGET BUT IMPROVING
PERFORMANCE 20% of new dwellings developed to be Lifetime Homes
standard (equating to 3,450 homes by 2021).

3.76  For calculating performance against this target we have used as a proxy the
application of planning conditions or Section 106 agreements on sites of 5 dwellings
or more. Whilst it would be difficult to insist on Lifetime Homes delivery for residential
schemes of less than 5 units, we do encourage the adoption of Lifetime Homes
standards as best practice for any new dwellings.

3.77 The use of this proxy measure assumes that the Lifetime Homes specified
dwellings will actually be built to the required standards. To actively pursue compliance
with these standards the City’s Access Officer carries out checks on a selection of
housing schemes as they are being built.

3.78 In 2008/9 524 dwellings received approval on schemes of 5 or more units.
Section 106 agreements applied to these consents should ensure the delivery of 65
Lifetime Homes ie 12.4%. Whilst this is below the policy target, it is a significant
improvement on the previous year’s performance of 9.4%. A partial explanation for
the below target performance is the number of dwellings (107 dwellings) that were
the subject of earlier outline applications or previous submissions to which Lifetime
Homes conditions had not been applied.



Page 56

3.79 In future all case officer reports will address Lifetime Homes issues. Other
proactive measures being taken to improve performance are

e Afurther presentation in November 2009 to reinforce awareness of the
importance of this policy when considering planning applications.

* aleaflet is being written for developers on the social and economic reasons for
building homes to Lifetime Homes standards.

3.80 In addition to the difficulty of ensuring that every agreed Lifetime Home is
actually built (this would require considerable staff resources), the wording of the
policy also makes it difficult to monitor against the target. In particular difficulties arise
in relation to:

e small sites (<5 dwellings) — the expectation in relation to these sites needs to
be clarified and if they are to be excluded from the requirements of the policy
then the % on larger sites needs to be increased in order to meet the 3,450
target.

e topography — recognition needs to made of the unsuitability of steeply sloping
sites for Lifetime Homes and appropriate compensation should be made in the
reporting of % delivery

3.81 It is recommended that when the Core Strategy targets next come under
review, consideration be given to the rewording of the target to take into account
these issues.

Local Output Indicator ON TRACK
— Ensuring the provision of an appropriate mix of type, size and tenure of housing.

3.82  Of the dwellings completed in the past year

e  87% consisted of 1 or 2 bed units
e less than 1% had more than 4 bedrooms

3.83  This shows a disproportionate number of small units compared with the 2001
make up of the city where 66% of households contain 1 or 2 persons and 6% contain
more than 4 persons.

In terms of type of dwelling:

o  83% were flats
° 13% were terraced houses
e 4% were detached or semi-detached.

w
)
o
=
()
3.
5
(@)
~—
=
®
)
<
%
S
@,
o
S




Page 57

Dwelling Completions by Size/Type

Q00
800
TO0
600

500

w
O
@
=
(¢)
3.
5
@)
—
=)
()
O
~—
<—
%
<
(28
o
5

400

300

Dwelling Completions 2008/08

200

100

0 — — P
Flat Terraced Semi Detached

m1 hequm B2 bedroom O3 bedrnum 4 or more

Figure 13 Dwelling completions by size, (Source: PCC Housing Completions Database)

80

&0

LLLLL

2004/05 20058 2008/07 2007/08 2008/09

% of Dwelling Completions
w b
L -] [ ] ] [ ]

(=]

[ Flatz O Terraced Houses W Detached/Semis

Figure 14 Dwelling completions by type, (Source: PCC Housing Completions Database)



Page 58

3.84 The dramatic change in the percentage of new build units that are flats since
AMR monitoring began reflects high density developments characteristic of the recent
regeneration of the waterfront areas.

Local Output Indicator ON TRACK
- Development Density.

3.85 The Core Strategy has an objective of promoting the highest density of
development compatible with the creation of an attractive living environment. In
2008/9 the average net density of dwelling completions was 131 dwellings per hectare,
double that of the previous year (67 dph) and again reflects the very high proportion
of flats that were completed.

3.86  The government through PPS3 advises on a minimum density of 30 dwellings
per hectare. In the past year only three minor sites, contributing 4 dwellings in total
have been developed at below that density:

3.87 In 2007/8 95% of new housing provided has been above minimum PPS3
density levels with 80% being above 50 dwellings per hectare.

Dwelling Completions by Density

100% .
90% '
80%
T0%
B80%

50% 97%

40% B2% B0
T5% 71% T5%

% Dwelling Completions

0% 57 57%
20%

10%

0%
2001702 2002003 200304 2004705  2005/06  2008/07 200708 2008709

[150=dph [@30-50dph M <30dph

Figure 15 Dwelling completions by density, (Source: PCC Housing Completions Database)

w
)
@
=
()
=
S
(o]
—
>
(0]
Q
—
<—
()
<
2
(@)
-




w
)
o
z
()
=.
=)
(o]
-
0
(0]
@)
<
(72]
<
@,
o
)

Page 59

Delivering a Sustainable Environment

Strategic Objective 11

To set a spatial planning framework through the LDF that supports the City
Strategy goal to maintain a clean and sustainable environment, which benefits
social and economic well-being.

Key Findings and Conclusions

3.88  All targets are either being met or on track to being met.

Core Strategy Target 11.1 ON TRACK
To work towards ensuring that the city's population have access to a natural
greenscape within 400 metres of their home.

3.89 Survey work for the Green Space Strategy has identified that a 5 minute walk
(equating to 400m) is an acceptable walking distance for the majority of Plymouth's
population. Areas of the city that are greater than 400 metres from an accessible
green space area have been mapped for the Sustainable Neighbourhood
Assessments and the Green Space Strategy. The Green Space Strategy includes
an objective and actions to address identified deficiencies. Plymouth’s Green Space
Strategy 2008-2023 was adopted by the Council in April 2009 and will inform proposals
in the City Centre, Derriford/Seaton, Hoe, East End and Urban Fringe Development
Plan Documents. Plymouth’s draft Green Infrastructure Plan has been prepared for
consultation and will support delivery of this target.

Core Strategy Target 11.2 ON TRACK
To facilitate designation of 100 ha of new Local Nature Reserve by 2016.

3.90 As at June 2009, the progress towards the designation of 4 new sites was
as follows:

Location Area (ha) Progress
Cann Woods 20 Designated in June 2009
Bircham Valley 8 Draft management plan produced.

Designation scheduled before March 2010

Radford Woods 38 Draft management plan produced.
Designation scheduled before March 2011




Page 60

Location Area (ha) Progress

Ham Woods 35 Designation scheduled before March 2012

Core Strategy Target 11.3 ON TRACK
To ensure that as a minimum development causes no net loss of biodiversity of
acknowledged importance.

3.91  During 2008/9 no LDF documents or planning approvals generated any
significant impacts on Plymouth's protected sites including Plymouth Sound &
Estuaries European Marine Site, the 9 Sites of Special Scientific Interest, the 22
County Wildlife Sites and 8 Local Nature Reserves.

3.92  Work to improve the consistency with which legally protected species are
treated as part of the Development Planning process has led to:

e The establishment of a system of a standard informative being placed on all
consents (i.e. Tree Preservation Orders (TPO), Listed Building Consents,
Demolition Consents ) that have potential to impact on protected species.

e Araised awareness of situations requiring protected species surveys as part of
the Development Management process.

3.93  During 2008/9 negotiations on individual planning applications considered
likely to have an impact on wildlife not only avoided a net loss in biodiversity, but
exceeded the target by resulting in final approved plans showing a net gain 78% of
the time. The losses incurred on those not achieving a net gain are considered to be
minor. During the year four applications where refused or withdrawn in part due to
their lack of consideration of biodiversity impacts.

Core Strategy Target 11.4 ON TRACK
To review the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment on at least a five-yearly basis.

3.94 The Council is currently working in partnership with the Environment Agency
to deliver a Level 2 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for Plympton, with completion
expected in 2010. This will add to those completed in January 2008 for Millbay and
Stonehouse, North Plymstock, the East End and Sutton Harbour.

w
O
@
=
®
S.
5
@)
~—
5
®
)
<
%
<
(28
o
S




Page 61

Core Strategy Target 11.5 BELOW TARGET BUT IMPROVING
PERFORMANCE

To ensure all non-residential developments exceeding 1,000 square metres of
gross floorspace and new residential developments comprising 10 or more units
to incorporate onsite renewable energy production equipment to off-set at least
10% of predicted carbon emissions for the period up to 2010, rising 15% for the
period 2010-2016.

Out of the 88 qualifying developments, 17 (19.3%) major applications approved
between October 2008 and September 2009 had conditions requiring compliance
with this policy. This is an improvement on the previous year’s performance of 10.2%
A number of presentations / workshops were delivered during 2008 to raise awareness
of the requirements of this policy, and to ensure that the requirements for onsite
renewable energy production equipment are considered early in the design and
planning approval process. All case officer reports now address this issue to ensure
compliance.

Delivering Future Mineral Resources

Strategic Objective 12

To deliver an appropriate balance between the need to safeguard the long term
supply of minerals and delivery of strategically important development in the
eastern corridor, helping to make Plymouth a place where people, business and
an outstanding natural environment converge to bring about sustainable prosperity
and well-being for all.

Key Findings and Conclusions

All targets are either being met or on track to being met.

Core Strategy Target 12.1. TARGET MET

Identification of land consented for mineral extraction and processing and an
appropriate buffer zone in the North Plymstock (including Minerals) Area Action
Plan.

Proposal NP13 of the North Plymstock (including Minerals) Area Action Plan
identifies land consented for mineral extraction and an appropriate buffer zone. The
AAP was adopted in August 2007.



Page 62

Core Strategy Target 12.2. TARGET MET
Identification of Mineral Resource Protection Area in the North Plymstock
(including Minerals) Area Action Plan.

Proposal NP13 of the North Plymstock (including Minerals) Area Action Plan
identifies an area of known mineral reserves, which is safeguarded for potential future
mineral extraction. The AAP was adopted in August 2007.

Strategic Objective 13

To establish a spatial planning framework in the LDF that supports the Regional
and Council’'s Waste Management Strategy, helping to make Plymouth a place
where people and businesses produce less waste and are provided with long
term sustainable and affordable waste management and treatment facilities.

See Appendix 1 for Core Output Indicators.
Key Findings and Conclusions

All targets are either being met or on track to being met.

Core Strategy Target 13.1 TARGET MET
Local waste management targets will be prepared as part of the emerging Waste
Management Strategy Action Plan.

An Outline Business Case (OBC) was approved in April 2008 by the South
West Devon Waste Partnership which comprises three councils — Plymouth, Devon
and Torbay. This business case set out detailed waste management proposals for
the 3 Councils including the joint procurement of a long-term residual waste treatment
solution. The OBC was approved by Defra for Private Finance Initiative (PFI) credits
in October 2008 and the procurement process began in November 2008. The waste
management initiatives set-out in the OBC together with the joint PFI procurement
will deliver Plymouth City Councils Municipal Waste Management Strategy. Any
waste development in Plymouth will have to comply with the policies in Plymouth’s
Waste Development Plan Document which was adopted in April 2008.



Page 63

Strategic Objective 14

To reduce the need to travel and deliver a sustainable transport network that
supports Plymouth’s long-term growth, improves its connectivity with the rest of
the UK, Europe and beyond, and provides an improved environment and a high
quality of life for the city’s communities.

Key Findings and Conclusions

The transport indicators are all on track.

Core Strategy Target 14.1 ON TRACK
Increasing passenger numbers using Plymouth Airport to 580,000 per annum
by 2021.

Plymouth City Airport handled 109,000 passengers in the year to March
2008 - up from 84,000 in the previous year (an increase of 30%). The introduction
of several new routes in April 2008 resulted in a significant increase in air passengers.

Core Strategy Target 14.2 ON TRACK

Increase the percentage of all households in deprived areas that are within 30
minutes travel time by public transport of Derriford Hospital and Tamar Science
Park.

Recent work has been undertaken to develop a more sensitive model for
calculating this indicator. This shows that for the Tamar Science Park, the 2008/9
measure of 82.5% is slightly lower than the 84.0% of the previous year, thought to
be attributable to the retiming of a key service (Citybus 34 from Devonport to
Derriford). Nevertheless it still shows an increase in performance on the 2006
(baseline) of 81.5%. Performance to Derriford Hospital has increased year on year,
rising from a baseline in 2006 of 88.0% to a current figure of 90.0%

Core Strategy Target 14.3 ON TRACK

Reduce the number of fatalities and serious injuries due to road accidents by
60% by 2010 - including 80% reduction in the number of child fatalities/serious
injuries and a 20% reduction in minor casualties.



Page 64

The targets above are those set in the Local Transport Plan 2 (LTP2) and
agreed by the Department of Transport (DfT) and are derived from the average
1994-1998 baseline. They translate into 2008/9 equivalents of 64 people killed or
seriously injured (KSI), 10 child casualties and 939 minor injuries. The actual
casualties recorded for Plymouth in 2008/9 are all favourably lower: 58 KSI, 9 child
casualties and 828 minor injuries. Spatial analysis of the casualty data is being used
to plan new infrastructure, and to direct educational efforts towards accident reduction.

Core Strategy Target 14.4 ON TRACK
Increase public transport (bus) usage by 7.3% by 2010/11.

The number of journeys on public transport during 2007/08 was registered
as 20.6 million, a 4% increase on the previous year. This increase was largely
attributable to the rise in concessionary fare passengers. A change of reporting base
means that this figure is not directly comparable to last year’s declared patronage -
although the upward trend is confirmed.

Core Strategy Target 14.5 ON TRACK
Ensure traffic growth does not exceed a total of 4.2% (2004-2010) from a baseline
of 1,118 million kilometres in 2004.

Total vehicle mileage on the Authority’s roads fell to 1,134 million during
2008, from 1,150 million in 2007. This is within the LTP2 target of 1,153 for the year
2007. Furthermore, the LTP2 indicator of vehicle flows into the city centre in the
morning peak remains on target, which suggests that any growth in travel demand
is being successfully accommodated.

Core Strategy Target 14.6 ON TRACK
Have no declared Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAS) arising from transport
across the city.

Figures of pollutant levels in the two AQMA’s (Exeter Street and Mutley
Plain) for 2008/09 are further reduced and are within the LTP2 targets. No further
AQMAs have been declared, although other sites are being monitored.

Plymouth City Council continues to promote sustainable transport - and in
particular the development of an HQPT network, in order to minimise the need for
AQMAs.

Core Strategy Target 14.7 ON TRACK
Ensure that all new development is located within 400 metres of a bus stop.



Page 65

All residential and commercial developments completed in 2008/9 were
within 400 metres of a bus stop.

Core Strategy Target 14.8 ON TRACK

Deliver a HQPT service to serve eastern Plymouth from the occupation of the
first homes at the Sherford new community, and to develop the HQPT service
in line with future development in the eastern corridor.

Delivery of public transport infrastructure as part of the city’s planned Eastern
Corridor High Quality Public Transport (HQPT) network is key to enabling the Local
Development Framework spatial vision of sustainable growth to be delivered. The
delivery of HQPT requires a bid for inclusion in the Regional Funding Allocation. This
bid is being developed and led by Plymouth City Council, in partnership with Devon
County Council, and with the involvement of the Highways Agency. It is the intention
to submit a full business case to the Department for Transport for Programme Entry
into the Regional Funding Allocation by May 2010. Agreement has been reached
with DfT that additional sensitivity tests will need to be done on the modelling work
to ensure robustness with respect to assumptions about growth. The scope of the
work has also increased to include the Langage Southern Access Road. These
factors, and the diversion of resources to the CIF2 project work, have delayed bid
submission. However, design work has been carried out following the first round of
modelling and the Stage 2 Environmental Impact Assessment has also been
completed.

Strategic Objective 15
To set a spatial planning framework for the improvement of the city’s community
health, safety and well-being for everyone.

Key Findings and Conclusions

All targets are either being met or on track to being met.

Core Strategy Target 15.1 ON TARGET
A reduction in the % of Plymouth’s residents and visitors who feel unsafe outside
on the streets by day or night.

The number of residents who feel safe outside on the street at night rose
from 29% in 2005 to 34% in 2006 to 48% in 2009. The Place Survey 2008/9 recorded
that whilst 32% felt unsafe after dark far fewer (5%) felt unsafe during the day



Page 66

Core Strategy Target 15.2 ON TRACK
Delivery of new investment in healthcare infrastructure — ON TRACK

3.113  The Plymouth Primary Care Trust is progressing with projects to improve
Plymouth’s primary health care facilities. New Primary Care Centres have opened
at Ernesettle (2005), Mount Gould (2006) and Cattedown (2008). The Peninsula
Dental School facility at Devonport is completed and a Dental School at Derriford is
progressing. Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust is proposing a number of improvements
to Derriford Hospital and these proposals are included in the Derriford and Seaton
AAP.

3.114  ltis proposed to adopt the following two LAA Improvement targets which tie
in with the health objectives in the sustainability appraisal of the LDF which are to —

e Improve health (both physical and mental).

¢ Reduce health inequalities (between neighbourhoods).

e  Promote and support healthy lifestyles (encouraging walking, cycling and active
lifestyles).

3.115 The targets are:

e The gap in life expectancy between the fifth of areas with the lowest life
expectancy and the city as a whole to be no more than 2.64 years.

e % of adult population (16 — 74) participating in 30 minutes of moderate physical
activity once a week to rise from 38.7% in 2006 to 40.7% in 2009/10 and 41.7%
in 2010/11.

3.116  These will provide a clearer indication than investment in healthcare
infrastructure as to whether the city’s health and well-being is improving. Performance
against these indicators will be reported in next year’'s AMR.

w
O
@
=
®
S.
5
(@)
~—
5
®
)
<
%
<
(28
o
S




Page 67

3 Delivering the City's Vision




Page 68

4 Equality Monitoring

4.1  Between April 2008 and March 2009 Equality Impact Assessments have been
undertaken for the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 1% Review and for
the City Centre AAP. These documents have been published on the Council website
www. plymouth.gov uk

4.2 Consultation events for Derriford Issues and Preferred Options, City Centre
Issues and Preferred Options, SCI, Sustainable Neighbourhoods (April - June), Big
Picture, Sutton Harbour Examination were undertaken over the same period. In
addition to consultation events the public have the opportunity to make representations
online. Those making responses are encouraged to complete Equality Monitoring
Forms although in fact only around 40% chose to do so.

4.3 The Equality Monitoring data has been analysed and in the table below
comparison is made with the profile of the City’s population. This shows
under-representation in those aged under 16.

City Central
Centre Derriford Park

AAP AAP AAP
Aged 0-15* 17% 2.5% 0% 0% 4%
Aged 16-18* 4% 5% 9% 7% 5%
Aged 19-29* 20% 15% 36% 12% 13%
Aged 30-49* 26% 23% 28% 20% 27%
Aged 50-64* 17% 23% 18% 37% 22%
Aged 65+ 16% 30% 9% 24% 28%
Male* 49.3% 41.5% 64% 54% 48%
Female* 50.7% 51% 36% 46% 52%
Has Disability** 21% 16% 9% 21% 19%
White British** 93% 72.5% 91% 87% 81%
Chinese or other Ethnic 1% 4.5% 0% 4% 6%
Group**
Christian*** 73.6% 48% 36% 72% 74%
Buddhist*** 0.2% 0% 0% 0% 3%
None*** 18.3% 10.5% 36% 19% 13%

I
m
Qo
c
o
=
<
<
o
=4
(=g
o
=
>
@




Page 69

r: (0414 Central
e Centre Derriford Park
o City AAP AAP SCi AAP
<

§ Not Stated*** 7.1% 41.5% 28% 9% 10%
% Response Rate n/a 51% 33% 27% 43%
g.

«Q

* Note: Not all respondents gave responses to all questions, therefore numbers
may not add up to 100%. Categories have been omitted where numbers have
been too small to be reported.

Source:

* Mid Year Estimates 2008

** Mid Year Estimates 2007

*** 2001 Census

**** Comparative data not available




Page 70

5 Monitoring the Implementation of LDF Policies

5.1 This chapter monitors the use and robustness of Core Strategy policies in the
determination of planning applications.

Key Findings and Conclusions

5.2 There would seem to be no policy which is superfluous, or which is causing
particular problems with its interpretation or with its application.

5.3 The table below indicates the workload undertaken by development
Management Team in 2008/9. This is a new indicator to be reported in the AMR.
Future levels will be compared on an annual basis.

Type of Application

Major Minor Others
Received 88 297 824 1,209
Determined 100 376 923 1,399

5.4 The table below shows the frequency of use of policies in decisions since the
implementation of the Core Strategy. The two policies that have up to April 2009
never been used are CS17 relating to Gypsy and Traveller Sites and CS24 relating
to Mineral Development. There has however since that date been an approval for a
Gypsy and Traveller site which quoted policy CS17 in its decision.

Type of Application

Major Minor Householder Other
CSO01 86 32 3 8 129
CS02 198 491 695 198 1,582
CS03 52 183 99 274 608
CS04 40 29 1 2 72
CS05 33 30 0 16 79
CS06 3 4 0 10 17
CS07 6 2 0 2 10
CS08 17 15 0 1 33
CS09 8 1 0 0 9
CS10 0 2 0 11 13
CS11 1 15 0 31 47
CS12 16 15 0 5 36
CS13 10 20 0 14 44

(3]
=
(@)
=
=
(@)
=,
-]
(o]
=
=
(0]
=
=l
()
=
D
-}
=]
Q
=3
(@)
-]
(@)
o,
=
o
M
Jv)
o
=}
o




Page 71

; Type of Application
% Minor Householder
s CS14 44 21 0 3 68
= CS15 86 509 20 11 626
= Ccs16 28 99 1 2 130
S cs17 0 0 0 0 0
3 CS18 95 154 29 4 282
5 CS19 47 31 3 3 84
) CS20 72 16 1 2 91
" CS21 53 23 18 2 96
S CS22 80 153 29 58 320
S Cs23 1 0 0 1 2
3 CS24 0 0 0 0 0
CS25 1 3 0 1 5
CS26 4 0 0 0 4
cs27 1 0 0 1 2
CS28 200 581 151 104 1,036
CS29 12 0 53 66
CS30 31 15 0 0 46
CS31 6 5 0 4 15
CS32 107 59 2 9 177
CS33 85 5 0 3 93
CS34 280 | 1,131 1,952 503 3,866
Total 1,692 | 3,656 3,004 1,336 9,688
Appeals

5.5 In 2008/09 there were 72 appeals against decisions made by the Planning
Service, 25 of which were upheld by planning inspectors. During this period 33.8%
of appeals against refusal of planning permission were allowed. This exceeds the
SPI 4 target of the Business Plan of 30%. There were four appeals where an inspector
allowed some elements but also dismissed others. Of the 25 allowed appeals

3 referred to listed building consent.
2 to planning conditions.

1 to enforcement action.

1 to tree work.

1 to advertising consent.



Page 72

5.6 The remaining 17 were all concerned with refusals of planning permission and
were judged against the policies of the Adopted Local Development Framework Core
Strategy. The majority of these related to small scale housing developments and
house extensions. The main policies involved were CS02, CS28 and CS34. Policy
CS02 aims to promote high quality development and CS28 is concerned with
delivering sustainable transport. Policy CS34 seeks to ensure that development takes
place in the right place by balancing the need for growth against the impact on others
and the environment. The key messages from inspectors in overturning these
decisions were the importance of flexibility and pragmatism and the need to view the
overall regeneration picture with the aim of making full and efficient use of previously
developed land in line with national guidance set out in Planning Policy Statement
3.

5.7  Other significant decisions were

e combating climate change and expanding renewable energy sources can
sometimes take priority over issues of visual intrusion in the case of wind turbines
on a school

¢ local planning authorities cannot refuse permission for phone masts that carry
an international safety certificate on health grounds, even if they are near
“sensitive locations (such as schools and children’s play areas)”.

Applications Decided Against Officer Recommendation

5.8 In2008/9 a total of 1,399 planning applications were determined, 197 of these
by Planning Committee. Only 4 applications: 2% were determined against officer
recommendations. There were no policies that consistently stood out as the basis
for members overturning officer recommendations for approvals of student
accommodation, of residential development or for wind turbines.

o
<
o
=
—
o
=k
=}
Q@
—
=
@
3
=2
®
3
@
>
=
Q
=
o
>
o
—
—
O
M
e
o
o
®




Page 73

5 Monitoring the Implementation of LDF Policie:




Page 74

Appendix 1: National Core Output Indicators =
]

(1]

Business development and town centres 3
=

-

Z

BD1 Gross 4,868 0 0 0 308 13,728 &
Net 4,868 0 0 0 188 13,508 §

BD2 Gross 1,619 0 0 0 308 3,751 8_)
% Gross on 11.8% of o o 22% 27.3% @

PDL O

S5EL | Hectares 258 0| 0| 19 0.8 42.1 2
2

Plymouth City Centre S
S

A2 Bia D2 Total z

=00 Gross

Net 0 O 0| O 0

Plymouth UA

BD4 Gross 938 50 4,868 159 14,567

Net 900 50 4,868 159 14,429

Plan period and housing targets

Source Of
Plan Target

Start Of End Of Plan Total
Plan Period Housing

Period Required
H1 Draft RSS
H1 (b) (if 2006 2021 21,000 Plymouth LDF

required)




Page 75

€Le'c [e6L°C IS18°) [8G9°L |9€S°L [92¥‘L [€0¥°L |S8€‘L [P9E‘)L |[22€°L |S¥6  [S66 G0‘L  |e¥0‘L |SE0°L  |e€0‘L  |8E0‘L |66 |66 |86 PZH
010°L  [0¥0°L  |0¥0‘L  [010°L  [0¥0°L 1ebuel (0
. . . . . saJejoeH
'8¢ [9'¢d 1’81 L€l 09l q
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . suoljippe
€201 1860} 88L'L 8Y0 L 9.8 [G9C L |6GZ'L [00C'L |98V L [L8S'L |B6ES L [LG9'L [BLO'L |LL6 900l [€LLL [eve 1N (e [erat
0L6 qZH

Appendix 1: National Core Output Indicators

92/S¢ SZ/ve velcZ €e/ee ¢Z/ie Le/og 02/61 6L/8L 8L/LL LLI9L 9L/SL

Skivi

viier €Lt

L

Lol

o

01/60

day

60/80

80/.0 ,0/90 90/S050/70%0/€0€0/20

sBuijjamp |euonippe jaN




Page 76

New and converted dwellings on previously developed land

Gross

11 xipuaddy

% Gross on PDL 98%

Net additional pitches (Gypsy and Traveller)

Permanent Transit

Gross affordable housing completions

Social Rent Homes Intermediate Homes Affordable Homes Total

Provided Provided
H5 191 99 290

Z
QO
=3
o
S
O
O
o
-
®
)
c
~—
°
c
=
=
o
o
Q
=
o
-
7




uonIppy

aoueuoduwi AJisi19AIpoIq JO seade ul sabuey)

L
o
o
=
=
Q@

321Ape Aouaby Juswuoliaug o} Aiesyuod pajuelb suoissiwiad Buiuue|d jo JaquinN

Number of sites with a
building for life assessment
of 16 or more

Number of dwellings on
those sites

% of dwellings of 16 or
more

Number of sites with a
building for life assessment
of 14 to 15

Number of dwellings on

those sites

% of dwellings of 14 to 15

Number of sites with a
building for life assessment
of 10 to 14

Number of dwellings on
those sites

% of dwellings 10 to 14

Number of sites with a
building for life assessment
of less than 10

Number of dwellings on
those sites

% of dwellings of less than
10

Total number of housing
sites (or phases of housing
sites)

Number of dwellings on
those sites

SjuawWIssassy a1 4o} Buipjing - Ayjenp Buisnoy

/. dbed

(2
—
@]
-—
®
2
o
=
-—
>
o
-——
>
O
o
—_
@]
©)
©
c
2
-~
)
Z

Appendix 1:




Appendix 1: National Core Output Indicators

‘|JoAs| 1eyy 1e payuodal pue uoibal
J0 Ajunod Jayya o0} pajebaibbe ale sainbiy pue aAlISUSS A|jeioJawwod si elep siyl YyinowA|d ul Jojesado auo Ajuo st aleyy sy L

MO|aq 8}0U 983

pajohoay Kiepuooag

sajebaibbe pajoAoal pue Aiepuodas Jo uoionpoud ZIN

MO|8( 8]0U 983

[9ARIS) pue pues )20y paysni)

Page 78

Ajuoyjine Bujuue|d sjesauiw Aq sajebaibbe uom pue| Arewrid jo uononpoud LI

MIN ul
Ayoedes pajeisul
pajsjdwo9

MIN ul Ajioedes
p3jjejsul payiuLiad

s|any uonsnquod
IISso} yym  3)sem pljos
ssewolq (leysnpul uonsabip
ssewolq ssewolq Jo pue) abpn|s seb SJIBJONOJOYd  dJ0YSuQ
jueid lewuy  Buuy-09 lediolunpy abemag lliypue] Jejog PUIM

uonesauab ABiaua ajgemauay




Page 79

seuuo|

[p2qna sasjaw
/s@J}ij/sauuo}]

spun
fyoedes anlg

Bugsodwiod
MOIPUIM
uadQ

0000}

sa)Is
Auawe
JIAID

pioyesnoH /A1aAo2ai

ndybno.y)
|euonjesado

Ayoey
)sem MmaN

(s4¥W)  suonels oS uofedyisen) ueld uofeisupy|  uojeRupUul | STYPEAJIU  shopiezey  Jau]
sanljioe)  Jaysuel]  BuipAoal / uogessuab  19YylQ a)sem liypue] llypue]  |ypuet
BuijoAosau |eloN sisAjoiAd seb ‘wo.y

llypue] ABiauz

el9leiy

(syerndoidde se sauyl / sauuo} / cw) sanjljioe} Juswabeuew aysem mau jo indybnouyy jeuonesadO qLM

sauuo|

[pagna sasjaw
/sa131j/sauuo}]

sjun
f1oedes anlg

Bugsodwiod
MOJIPUIM
uadQ

0000}

sa)Is
Auawe
JIAID

BuijoAsau
pioyssnoH /A1anodau

0 Jeak sad
Ayoedes Ayjoey
2)sem MaN

suoljel}s oys uogedyiser) jueld uofeisuny]  uogeioudul | Speajol | snopiezey Hauj
Jaysuen)  Buiphoau / uogeduab  19Yy3l0O ajsem llypue] llypue] llypue]
|eloIN sisAjoiAd seb ‘wouy
liypue] KBiauz

(sddIn)
sanlIoe}

[eria)ey

sal|19e) Juswabeuew a)jsem mau jo Ajoede) e\

Appendix 1: National Core Output Indicators




Appendix 1: National Core Output Indicators

Page 80

186°9¢€1

sbuisuy
9)SeM |ejol

pajsodwor
/p32A2aYy

sauuo} ui sbuisue
9)SeM JO Junowy

M3 1noyjim M3

uoineiauldu|

UM uoneIaUIdU| l4pueT ZM

2d/j Juswabeuew Aq sbuisiie aysem jedidiunw Jo Junowy




Page 81

Appendix 1: National Core Output Indicators




Page 82

Appendix 2: Contextual Indicators

The profile which follows has been produced by Government Office South West
(GOSW) Regional Intelligence Team.

>
)
)
@
S
=
X
N
O
o)
-}
=
@
X
=
c
L
>
Q
o
)
—
o)
-
®»




Page 83

S
Jf‘%h_%g:_luﬂ:
Y
| LA
i

KEY FACTS

#  Almost a third of Plymouth’s Super Oulput Areas
are ranked among the most deprived 20% in
England.

s Inthe 2008 Comprehensive Performance
Assessment (CPA), Plymouth City Council
received a rating of 2 stars (on a scale of 0 to 4),
and was judged to be “improving well".

¢ Inthe 10 years since 1998, Plymouth has had the
3" lowest population increase of South West
unitary and county authorities (+4.19%).

+  Plymouth's rate of violence against the person is
32% higher than the national rate.

F n— - , § . .. . S 3 = |J
N N it s AT !
L 2 3 1;' .I'
Rl - B "'#'Jsglau; |:' (
. G, Hmibeo Ha i, I'lu .r. ::':
! fiew M g8 b Yere
Wi creioe] wilh GETEE o1 4 - (€] S Sk

sighl O iu—rn.n.m "i' 74+

D Grown Copyright. All I?.'g.hrs Reserved GOSW 100018986 2005

Demographics

Population by Local Authority
«  The Plymouth unitary authority area accounts for
almost 5% of the South West's population.

e  Plymouth UA has the 5" biggest population of the
region's 37 unitary and district authorities.

e  The population density is the 3" highest of SW
local authorities (behind Bristol and

Bournemouth).
Pop.  Area FEP’:S’::
1000s Sg Km ks
Plymouth 252.8 80 3,160
Former Devon® 1,141.5 6,707 170
South West 5,209.2 23,837 219
England 51,4462 130,281 385

“Farmer Devon includes the Devon Counly Council ares, plus e Plymouth
and Torbay wnitany aubhonlies

DONE - Mid Year Estimales 2008/ OMS Census 2007 Arga data

Population by Age

« The mean age in Plymouth is about the same as
England, but less than the SW (2001: Plym.38.5,
England 38.6, SW 40.6).

«  Plymouth has the 2™ highest % of working age
people of the 16 SW county and unitary
authorities. It has the 3 lowest % of older people,
and the 9" highest % of children.

Population - % by Age

Phmoutn [THTE ] 638 | 15 |
sw 7 | 598 | 25 |

Englnd | 188 621 _m

B 0-15 B 16-29/64 @ 60/65+
M‘uan NS Cansus 2001 :’Brua_ku'wl DG Mid ‘r’uﬁsrmra!us 2008

Population Change 1998 - 2008

¢ Inthe 10 years to 2008, the population of
Plymouth grew by 4.1%, the third lowest increase
of SW unitary and county authorities.

» Neighbouring Devon County Council's population
grew by 9.8%, significantly higher than the rate of
growth of England (5.4%) and also higher than
the South West (7.4%).

% Change in Population 1998-2008

Torbay |

DevonCC |

sw]

R e =

England

0 F 4 B B 0

Ethnicity

s At 1.6%, Plymouth had a smaller proportion of
people from an ethnic minority than the region as a
whole or England in 2001 (2.3% and 9.1%).

« It had the 8" highest proportion of SW unitaries and
counties.

Hon White Ethnicity - % of total
population

IPhrnouth - 2 2 ; E

e
m

| 2 :

OMixed ethnicity O Asian or Asian British
O Black or Black British 0O Chinese or other

ONE 2007 Census

Parcentage Change - ONS Mid Year Estimates 1998 - 2008




Page 84
Local Authority Health cont

FORNEl Fapamsiation NHS Trust Performance Indicators

* Plymouth includes all or part of 3 Parliamentary « The Care Quality Commission’s new Annual Health
Constituencies: Plymouth Sutton and Plymouth Check gives all NHS organisations a two-part
DE'u'OI"Ip-DI't I['[)Dth Labour MPS]. and Devon South annual performance ratingl
West (Conservative MP). i

» The Conservatives remained in control of Plymouth Hoiti.naes comamiiiion 3:;"3]:” ;;::““'r:',t
City Council in the June 2009 Local Elections. v T | M

Plymouth City Council Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust Fair Good
Mo of Councillors by Pa Plymouth Teaching PCT
y Farty {includes mental health) Good Fair
2 South Western Ambulance
BCon Sarvices NHS Trust i <
*excellent, good, fair, or weak
ELab « Ofthe 12 Ambulance Services in England, South
Bind Western has the highest B minute response rate.

The Service has the 4" lowest 19 minute response
rate, although this is still over target,

Ambulance response time South England
target — Category A Western target
Flymouth Gily Councll wehsile June 03 e wiktnn. - ainglen 8.0% =73%
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) P AR e i S
« For 2008, Plymouth City Council received a CPA Care Quaity Commission Arrual Health Check 2008408 7 DH Ambulance
rating of 2 stars, the middle of the five possible Services, England 2005-00
ratings. This was the same as in 2006 and 2007, — -
« The Council's direction of travel was judged as NHS Trust ALE Waiting Times
“improving well”. « At Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust, 98.31% of all
A&E patients spend less than 4 or more hours in
Plymouth City Council CPA 2008 A&E. (England average: 98.62%).
Star category DH Hospital Activity Statistics 2008-10 Agri o June (31)
Corporate assessment [ ] :
. — 1 Teenage Conceptions ; :
Childran & young pecple | ] . P_Iymnuth's teenage conception rate is the 3!'1:_1
Socialcare (acults) (] highest of the SW unitary and district authorities.
Housing | ] « The 2005-07 rale is higher than 3 years earlier,
Enviranment | ] The SW and England rates have decreased.
Culture | ]
Benefits | ] —
o 1 z 3 4 Plymouth 453 498
(Starcategony 0- 47 Other scores: 1-4) South West 34 8 34 3
Audi! Commission CPA 2008 | England " L —_—

ONE 3-year rolling average 2005-07

Council Tax 2009/10

« In Plymouth, the average council tax per dwelling is Infant Mortality
£1,025, the lowest of the 37 SW districts and s Plymouth's latest infant mortality rate is higher than
unitaries. (SW £1,244, Eng. £1,175). both the England and South West's rate.
= Average council tax for a Band D property is = Since 2002-04 Plymouth's rate has fluctuated,
£1.428, the 10" lowest in the SW. This is 4.8% whilst the rate for England has been decreasing.
more than in 2008/09, the 3" highest percentage
rise in the SW and higher than the average Mortality all causes — Infants < 1 year
i L] o
recaslor Do WSO BTV, | [[Bre | non | sos | noos | sar
Health Plymouth 5.3 5.8 48 5.1
Life Expectancy South West 43 4.4 44 | 42 |
+ Plymouth's male life expectancy (77.2) is the England 5.2 5.1 5.0 48 |
second lowest of all SW unitary and district Pational Cerrre for Heallh Outeames Develapmen J-year rolling average 2005
authorities (SW 79, Eng 77.9). o7

« Plymouth's female life expectancy (82) is the 4™
lowest (SW 83.1, Eng 82).
ONE Life Expactamcy & Birth 2-pear rling average 2006-08




Page 85

Environment

Economy

Waste Recycling & Composting

In 2007/08 the recycling & composting rate for
Flymouth was 31.2%.

Neighbouring Devon’s rate was 47.1% and Torbay
28.1%.

Recycling & Composting Rate (%) -

Plymouth

50
- s 312
L 224
20

mE R

]

200506 200607 2007108

Awdit ©. Aupdited bes! Valuwe Pedformrance Indicators for Waste 200708

Earnings

Productivity (GVA)

In 2008, Plymouth's Gross Value Added (GVA) per
head was £15,374, the 5" lowest of the 12 SW
NUTS3 areas (SW E17,386, Eng £19,413).

Between 2005 and 2008, Plymouth's GVA per
head grew by 4.6%, higher than the SW (4.4%) and
the same as England (4.6%).

From 1996 to 2006 Flymouth's GVA per head
growth (44 .4%) was the 2nd lowest of the 12 SW
NUTS 3 areas. It was also a lower increase than
the SW (59.7%) and England (62.3%).

Plymouth's GVA per head is 79% of the England
equivalent, a fall from 89% in 1996,
GVA 1956-2008 {ONS Dac 08)

Gross Annual Pay

The median gross full-time annual pay of Plymouth
residents is £22,933. This is below both the South
West median (£23,930) and England (£25,520).
The equivalent pay figure for those working in
Plymouth is £24,804, illustrating a tendency for
those commuting into the city to be the highest
earmers.
Median gross full-time annual pay for Plymouth
resident men is 1.3 times higher than women, the
same as for both the South West and England.
ONS Annual Sunvey of Hours & Eamings 2008

VAT Registrations / Enterprise Survival Rate

At the end of 2007, 2.4% (4,650) of the region’s
VAT registered businesses were in Plymouth.

This equates to 225 VAT registered businesses per
10,000 resident adults, the lowest rate of any of the
SW district and unitary autharities. (SW: 449, Eng:
419).

The number of VAT registered businesses in
Plymouth grew by 4.8% during 2007 (SW: +2.4%,
Eng: +3.0%).

The 3-year survival rate of Plymouth enterprises
that started in 2004 is 65% (SW: 69%, Eng. 65%).

This rate has increased from 61% two years earlier
(SW 65%, Eng. 63%).
BERR VAT Srock 2007 / ONS Business Demography 2007 Suraval Rales

Employment & Unemployment

The employment rate in Plymouth is the third
lowest among SW county and unitary authorities
and is lower than both the England and South West
rate.

% of working age Apr07 -  Apr 08 - March % point
population March 08 09 change
Flymouth T3.7 3.2 .5
South West 78.5 78.0 0.5
England 745 740 -0.5

The latest unemployment rate for Plymouth is
6.1% of the economically active 16+ population
(SW: 4.6%, Eng: 6.3%).

Plymouth's 12 month average claimant count rate
has increased since the same period one year ago,

Total Claimants as % of resident working age

population
a8 1B
28
22 22 | Moy 07 -
14 Cict OB
O Mowv 0B -
Cict0g
England swW P lymouth

Employment & unemplayment. Anmual Population Suvey Apr 08 - March 09

ONS Claimant count 12-manth average Ocf 09

Employment by Sector

Plymouth has a larger public administration sector
than England or the South West (36%; Eng 26%,
SW 28%).

The only other sector larger in Plymouth than
nationally or regionally is manufacturing (13%; Eng
& SW both 11%).

Plymouth - Employment by Sector 2007
Agriculiure,
fishing, energy
& waler
0.8%

Other sarvices
4.5%

M anufacturing
28%

Pubslic: admin,

A Construction
health i
35.7% Digtribation,

hotels &
reslaurans
22.5%
Banking Transpar &
Tinance & communicalion
insurance, ela. 4.8%
W E% N

ONE Apnual Business Ingiry 2007
Dafa Limitations: The ABI is ONSE' preferred industrial sfructure source but it
has himited agnowlwal coverage & omits the self-employed & homeworkers.




Page 86

Crime

Government & European Initiatives

Key Offences

« In2007/08, Plymouth had the 2™ highest combined
crime rate for the key offences in the chart below
among the 16 SW county and unitary authorities.

s The rate (42.1 per 1,000 people) was higher than
that of the SW (28.5) or England (35.7).

=  The number of these offences in Plymouth was 4%
less than in 2006/07.

+ Levels of most of these offences were similar to or
less than national equivalents. Howewver, the rate
of violent crime in Plymouth is about 32% higher.

(Mfences per 1,000 population 2007 08
BFlymowth @5 OEng

L ]
o= ow
] 'l:'?
0o B &d
L~ R
]

Violenoe Fobbery Burglary Thuuﬂ i Thmi-rm u
against the from & motor
person dwelling vehicle

232

7.6

154

Home Office Cnme in England and Wales 2007108

o Plymouth is eligible for funding under the new
Competitiveness Programme and the new ESF
Programme.

« The map below shows the parts of Plymouth
receiving funding, under the New Deal for
Communities (NDC) and Sure Start areas.

» Plymouth also receives Neighbourhood Renewal
Funding, although this is only transitional until NRF
is phased out in 2010.

Social Exclusion

Sure Start:
NW Plymaouth
Sure Start:
Horth Prospect
LARK Project
:;I
i LLﬁmmsu heary
! |vu-{|\ ik s r-_h_,
apham| Drake d __':__ A =
Sioke E: T, “.  Plympton Erte
2 WI.IH'.FJLM \."-—
~ ' &
- /
: Suton Trlacl R-d“mﬂ_ il
F‘mlmi Dl
I
NDC: - |
Davonport 1
I} e kL]
Kby Erniding with G20 18 w1 4 - 5] G O i . GOOTIEM

Index of Multiple Deprivation 2007

s 29% of Plymouth's lower Super Output Areas
(LSOAs) are ranked among the most deprived 20%
nationally (46/160).

o 16 of these 46 LSOAs (10% of the total) are among
the most deprived 10% in England, with two being
among the most deprived 1%.

+  Plymouth has 12 LSOAs among the least deprived
quintile nationally (8%).

el oof Dpory s BT
Fiymouth - e of Multiple Deprivalion

CLG Ingéces of Deprivarion 2007

Housing

House Prices

s The median house price (Q1 2009) in Plymouth is
£130,000, the lowest of the SW county and unitary
authorities (exc. Isles of Scilly). This is 22.6%
below the SW median (E167 966) and 18.7% less
than England’s (£159,995),

. Plymaut’n's median house price is 12.8% below its
value in the same quarter of 2008 (SW: -10.7%,
Eng: -8.6%).

Median House Prices
(E, year-on-year comparison)

200,000 | 2006
a1
BO000
. oo
0000 &1
0D [prav)

o

England W

P lymouth

CLG Median House Prices Q1 2000 [prowizional)




Housing cont

Page 87

Education

Affordability

s Affordability ratios are calculated as house price
divided by annual workplace-based earnings.

¢ Using median house prices and earnings gives a
median affordability ratio in Plymouth of 6.1, the 2™
lowest among SW county and unitary authorltles
(SW: B.1, Eng: 6.9).

* The lower guartile (LQ) ratio based on lower
quartile house prices and earnings befter reflects
the first time buyers’ market. Plymouth's LQ ratio
is 7.1, the lowest among SW county and unitary
authorities (SW: 8.8, Eng: 7.0).

HM Lard Regisiry House Prices Q1-02 2008 /

MG .ﬂ.rlrl-:rw;.' Sunqay of Houwrs & Enmﬂﬁ' 2008

Homelessness & Temporary Accommodation

¢ Inthe 4" quarter of 2008, Plymouth City Council
accepted 80 households (0.7 per 1000} as being
homeless and in priority need. (SW: 0.4, Eng: 0.6).

« At the end of the quarter, Plymouth was housing 79
households in temporary accommodation, 5 of
which were in bed and breakfast accommodation.

CLG Statulory Homelessmess Slalishics Q4 2008

Planning & Land Use

School Qualifications

¢ |n 2008/09, 48.7% of pupils in Plymouth achieved
5+ GCSEs at Grade A™-C incl Eng & Maths by the
end of Key Stage 4. This was lower than the South
West average (51.6%). and also lower than
England's (49,7%).

» Plymouth LEA's |atest pass rates for Key Stage 2
are slightly lower than the averages for the South
West and England in both English and Maths,

Qualifications (% pass rate, dates in footnote)

|]I]I]

@ England O SW @ Plymouth

DCSF GCSE & equiv inc! Eng & Maths 200809 fprov). K52 2008089 {prov)
NE: prowvisional igures arg based an data provided by Awarding Bodfes,
sulyect fo checking by schools and 20 showld be treated with cautian,
Figures may be difarent in filure revized releases

Planning Decisions

* In the year ending Jun 2009, Plymouth made
decisions on 1,285 planning applications, 89 of
which were for major developments.

+ On time taken to decide applications, Plymouth
was below target for all development types.

Speed of decision by development type
% major % minor % other
within 13 within 8 within 8
weeks weeks weeks
Plymouth 49 56 73
England 70 Tr 88
NI 157 Target &0 G5 B0

School Absenteeism

» The percentage of half days missed due to
unauthorised absence by pupils in Plymouth
primary schools is lower than both the South West
and the England average.

« Al secondary school level, again it is lower than
both the South West and England average and
was the 30" lowest over all LEAs.

% half days missed, Maintained Maintained
unauthorised absence  primary schools secondary schools
Plymouth 04 1.0

South West 0.5 1.1

England 06 1.4

DCSF Pupi Absence in Schools dn England 2008409

CLG Stalistics of Planning Applications yaar ending Jun 08

Land Use

s In 2004-07, 76% of new dwellings in Plymouth
were built on previously developed land. This was
above to the SW figure (59%) and the England
figure (73%). It was also above the Regional
Planning Guidance target of 50%.

» This proportion was above the 2000-032 figure
(57%).

+ In 2004-07, 53 new dwellings per ha were built in
Plymouth (SW: 37, Eng: 40). This was the fifth
highest density of new dwellings among the 45 SW
authorities. Mational and regional Planning
Guidance targets are 30-50 new dwellings per ha.

CLG Land Usa Change i England to 2007

Workforce Qualifications

s 5.9% of Plymouth's workforce has no qualifications,
maore than the SW (6.4%) but less than the Eng
(B.9%) rate.

+ The proportion of workers (26.3%) qualified to
NVQ4 (degree level & equivalent) and above is
lower than both the SW (31%) and Eng rates
(32%).

Qualifications (% of economically active
working age population)

mh““n"“

ONS Annusl Popuiation Sunvey year snding Dec 2008

@Eng

& Flymouth

-]




Page 88

Transport

Travel to Work

s+ The 2001 census measured travel to work areas it
found more people in Plymouth travel to work using
public transport than the SW or England.

Travel to Work - Census 2001

B Driving a c:ar of
van

OFassengerin a
©:al OF van

B Bicycle or
walking

B Public
Transport

W Work mainly at
af from hame

0O Other

S Flymauth

Eng

o 20 0t 60% a0% 100%
ONE 2001 Census Key Sfatisiics

Average Traffic Speeds

« |n 2006, Plymaouth had an average traffic speed
during peak periods of 21.1 mph. This is the 6"
highest speed amaong the 18 largest English urban
areas oulside London, The average for all these
areas was 20.1 mph.

s  Since 1999/00 the average peak speed in
Plymouth has fallen by 1.5 mph. On average, in
these urban areas it has decreased by 0.9 mph
since 1998/00.

DIT Road Statistics 2006: Traffic, Speeds and Congestion

Road Casualties

»  There were 448 road casualties per 100,000
people in Plymouth in 2007 (SW: 422, Eng. 430).

. 6.1% of these casualties resulted in death or
serious injury (SW 11.4%, England 12.2%).

OIT Road Casualties Goeal Britatn 2007

Plymouth City Airport

= |n 2008, Plymouth City Airport handled about
118,000 passengers. This was the 6" highest
number of passengers within SW airports.

« There were about 17% more passengers than in
2007, (SW +4%, England 2.1% decrease)

Civll Aviatio Authonly LK Aipart Statistics 2008

Mote: This is one of a senes of statistical briefs that have baen
produced to support the work of GOSW colleagues. The briefs are
designed to provide an overview of an area and contain a wide range
of factual information. In particular the choice of statistical data
focuses chiefly on the Government's Public Service Agresment
(FPSA) targets. We hope that colleagues outside of GOSW will also
fird the briefs of interest although we regret that we are unable to
amend or tailor them for other purposes. If you have any queries or
comments aboul the statistical brefs, the Regional Intelligence Team
can be contacted an 0117 900 1794,

END



Page 89

Appendix 2: Contextual Indicators




Page 90

Appendix 3: Additional Significant Effects Indicators

Summary Table of Additional Significant Effects Indicators

=3
o
o
Q
=l
o
o
7

>
S
]
@
S
-
b
e
>
Y
o
=
o
S
QL
0
Q
=
=h
Q
)
>
~
L
@
o
Q
7

(Indicators not already reported in Chapter 3 or Appendices 1 or 2)

Indicator Target  Value Source/Comment
Number of Listed No (i) O buildings lost (i) 1998-2008
Buildings lost/at Risk | target
(ii) 377 buildings & structures | (ii) Buildings at Risk
at risk survey 2005 (reviewed
in 2008)
Local authority 2007

7,892 (51% of stock)

In private ownership
89,066 (79% of stock)

Local authority 2008
6,705 (44% of stock)

Private ownership, change in
monitoring procedures meant
data is not comparable

Local authority 2009
5,924 (40% of stock)

Private ownership, change in
monitoring procedures meant
data is not comparable

Number of No 353 2007
homelessness target
acceptances made by 387 2008
PCC

371 2009
Income support No 10,490 Feb-2007
claimants target

10,565 Aug-2007

10,530 Aug-2008
Percentage who travel | No 62% Office for National

to work by car target Statistics: 2001 Census




=1
a
O
Q
~—
8
(72}

>
o
S
®
S
=
>
=
>
o
o
=
o
S
QL
2
Q@
=)
—h
Q
)
>
~
AL
@
o
~—
®

Page 91

Indicator Target Value Source/Comment
Traffic congestion No Data not available Department for
target Transport has yet to
supply this data.
Bathing water quality Excellent 2007 The decline in
Poor 2008 standards in 2008
(i) Plymouth Hoe east followed a period of
Excellent 2009 heavy summer rainfall
that increased storm
- overflows.
(i) Plymouth Hoe west Excellent 2007
Poor 2008 Source: Environment
Agency
Good 2009
Number of days when | No 24 2004/5
air pollution is target 10 2005 calendar year
moderate or high 0 2006
Average Life No Males 77.2 Office of National
expectancy at birth target Females 82.0 Statistics 2009
% of residents satisfied | No Sport & Leisure 35% Plymouth Local
with the cultural and target Parks & Open Spaces 67% | Strategic Partnership

recreational activities
(CIP6)

Results of the Place
Survey 2008/09




Page 92

Appendix 4: Summary of Progress on Targets

Summary of Performance against each Core Strategy Target

CS Target

3.1

All residential parts of the city to have easy access
to local shopping and community facilities by 2021
(to be measured through Sustainable
Neighbourhood Assessments).

On track

CS Target

4.1

The completion of characterisation studies for the
following areas to inform the Area Action Plans
for Devonport, Millbay /Stonehouse, Hoe, City
Centre / University, SuttonHarbour and East End.

Target met

CS Target

4.2

The removal of 5% of buildings per annum
(approximately 21 properties per annum based
on current number of buildings on the list) from
the 2005 Buildings at Risk Register by virtue of
their future being secured

Target met

CS Target

4.3

The completion of at least 4 Plymouth Design
Panel meetings every year to consider major
proposals and strategic design related strategies.

Target met

CS Target

6.1

Delivery in the Plymouth Principal Urban Area of
at least 4 ha per annum employment land, and
4.5 per annum between 2016 and 2021.

On track

CS Target

6.2

Delivery of 13,000 sq m new office development
within the city per annum.

Below future
target levels

CS Target

6.3

A net increase in the number of employees of
approximately 1,800 per annum.

On track

CS Target

6.4

Identification of at least one site to be safeguarded
for a major high quality inward investment
opportunity, including potentially a public sector
office relocation or a private sector regional
headquarters.

On track

CS Target

7.1

To achieve an increase in retail capacity for
comparison goods of between 57,000 and 92,000
sq m net by 2016.

On track

CS Target

7.2

To achieve an increase in retail capacity for
comparison goods of between 106,000 and
172,000 sq m net by 2021

On track

>
T
o
o
=)
s
X
iy
(0]
=
3
3
Q
<
o
=h
o
=
o
«Q
=
oD
2
(2
o
)
2
«Q
@
n




>
©
©
(1)
=
=3
b
»
wn
C
3
3
Q
3
(@]
o,
=
T
o
Q
(0]
w0
wn
(@]
>
o'
(o]
(0]
n

Page 93

CS Target 7.3

To deliver a new district centre at Derriford to
serve northern Plymouth by 2016, and to monitor
its potential to grow in the future.

On track

CS Target 7.4

To deliver a new District Centre at Weston Mill by
2016.

On track

CS Target 7.5

To deliver new local centres at Devonport, Millbay
and Plymstock Quarry by 2016.

On track

CS Target 7.6

To deliver a consolidated retail warehouse location
on Laira Embankment by 2016, which also assists
with the delivery of strategic transport proposals
for Plymouth's Eastern Corridor.

On track

CS Target 7.7

To complete a revised Shopping study for
Plymouth by 2011.

On track

CS Target 8.1

Targets to be developed in relation to the Council’s
work on promoting tourism and leisure trips to the
city.

On track

CS Target 9.1

Delivery of new primary schools in Barne Barton,
Devonport, Millbay, Southway and Plymstock, and
the Whitleigh campus, by 2008-2016.

On track

CS Target 9.2

Delivery of the Peninsula Dental School by 2008.

Target not
met

CS Target 10.1

The delivery of the strategic housing requirement
up to 2021 of some 1,150 dwellings per annum
(equating to 17,250 new homes by 2021). This
annualised figure of 1,150 dwellings per annum
is phased at 1,000 dwellings per annum
(2006-2016) and 1,450 dwellings per annum
(2016-2021).

On track

CS Target 10.2

At least 30% of new dwellings on qualifying sites
to be affordable (equating to 3,300 new affordable
homes by 2021).

On track

CS Target 10.3

80% of new dwellings to be provided on previously
developed land (equating to 13,800 homes by
2021).

On track

CS Target 10.4

20% of new dwellings developed to be lifetime
homes standard (equating to 3,450 homes by
2021).

Below target
but
improving
performance




Page 94

CS Target 11.1

To work towards ensuring that the city's population
have access to a natural greenscape within 400
metres of their home.

On track

CS Target 11.2

To facilitate designation of 100 ha of new Local
Nature Reserve by 2016

On track

CS Target 11.3

To ensure that as a minimum development causes
no net loss of biodiversity of acknowledged
importance.

Target met

CS Target 11.4

To review the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment
on at least a five-yearly basis.

On track

CS Target 11.5

To ensure all non-residential developments
exceeding 1000 square metres of gross floorspace
and new residential developments and new
residential developments comprising 10 or more
units to incorporate onsite renewable energy
production equipment to off-set at least 10% of
predicted carbon emissions for the period up to
2010, rising 15% for the period 2010-2016.

Below target
but
improving
performance

CS Target 12.1

Identification of land consented for mineral
extraction and processing and an appropriate
buffer zone in the North Plymstock (including
Minerals) Area Action Plan.

Target met

CS Target 12.2

Identification of Mineral Resource Protection Area
in the North Plymstock (including Minerals) Area
Action Plan.

Target met

CS Target 13.1

Local waste management targets will be prepared
as part of the emerging Waste Management
Strategy and Action Plan.

Target met

CS Target 14.1

Increasing passenger numbers using
PlymouthAirport to 580,000 per annum by 2021.

On track

CS Target 14.2

Increase the percentage of all households in
deprived areas that are within 30 minutes travel
time by public transport of DerrifordHospital and
TamarSciencePark.

On track

CS Target 14.3

Reduce the number of fatalities and serious
injuries due to road accidents by 60% by 2010 -
including 80% reduction in the number of child
fatalities/serious injuries and a 20% reduction in
minor casualties.

On track




>
©
©
(1]
=}
=
x
s
)
c
3
3
Q
<
o
=h
o
-
o
«Q
=
@D
0
2
o
=)
)
«Q
0]
73

Page 95

CS Target 14.4

Increase public transport (bus) usage by 7.3% by
2010/11.

On track

CS Target 14.5

Ensure traffic growth does not exceed a total of
4.2% (2004-2010) from a baseline of 1,118 million
kilometres in 2004.

On track

CS Target 14.6

Have no declared Air Quality Management Areas
(AQMASs) arising from transport across the city.

On track

CS Target 14.7

Ensure that all new development is located within
400 metres of a bus stop.

On track

CS Target 14.8

Deliver a HQPT service to serve eastern Plymouth
from the occupation of the first homes at the
Sherford new community, and to develop the
HQPT service in line with future development in
the eastern corridor.

On track

CS Target 15.1

A reduction in the % of Plymouth’s residents and
visitors who feel unsafe outside on the streets by
day or night.

On track

CS Target 15.2

Delivery of new investment in healthcare
infrastructure.

On track




Page 96

Appendix 5: Development Progress on LDF Allocated Sites

Central Park AAP

CP1 The Life Centre (Consent for sport and lisure centre)

emerging project |

post

SIS Pa}edo||

5106 elc construction i
proposal developmen construction

CP1 The Solictars_ & Vets Site (Site to be acquired as part of overall redevelopment
scheme)
emergin rajest X ; luj:t]
pnnpssa? da'.-r:amjpmem | mns?rrjctran consicon mﬂ;‘lruclmh
CP2 Home Park (Allocation for new stand for football stadium and complementary
commercial development)

emernging pre

. [=FH]
construction P

proposal consiruction canstruction

CP3 Transport Improvements (This is an Area Action Plan Policy)
emerging project
proposal | development

CP4 Park Enhancements (This is an Area Action Plan Policy)

emergin re ) ol
aing pre app k: | =106 eic P construction "
praposal consiruction construction

CP5 Peverell Park / Qutland Rd Corner (Allocation for approx. 26 homes, 700sgm of

post

re & construction ;
pre app construction

>
o
S
@
S
=
X
=
O
@
<
®
o
S
3
@
>
=
3
X
o
Q
Q
®
[7)]
(7]
o
>
-
O
T

Emergin [ re i
st i construction a2
propasal consiruction construction

— 4

emeqging post
nstruation
proposal i L | construchon

DP0 AUt Al
sqm commercial, 2,323 sqm retail)

amnging project o “ .
pramﬁl ‘ demupn‘ent ‘ preapp

DP02 North of Granby Green (Allocation for approx. 86 dwellings)

amengin | |
aing : 5106 el pre constction | - conskection Im\at construchion
proposal |

: DP03 The Bull Ring (Planning permission for 62 homes, all under construction)

Bmeging project | — - Fin
proposal developmant Pre app P . stlG el pre consbuctin

DP04 Mount Street / Ker Street (Planning application for 129 homes awaiting Commitiee decision)

amenging project
proposal development

DP05 Curtis Street / Duke Street (Allocation for approx. 20 dwellings)

EMEging
propesal

5106 e pre construction | - constrogtion |p93t constrichion
|

pre app 106 = pre-construclion | construction | poat consiruction
|




S9)S p8jedo||vY

>
©
S
)
S
=
>
e
O
)
<
®
o
S
3
o)
>
~—
U
-
o
Q
-
@
[7)]
(7]
o)
>
-
O
T

Page 97

DPO6 Mount Wise (Detailed consent for 450 homes, new hots!, and commercial development)

amenging project
proposal devsiopmant

DPO7 Mount Wise Primary School (Allocation for approx. 40 dwellings)

pre agp pre:constrachion | consfroction |
|

amenging s ) )
B 5106 el pre consbruclion | construction |
propasal | |

DP08 Marlborough Street Primary School (Alcation for approx. 26 dwellings)

amening | : |
g 5106 e pre consbuction | constoction |
proposal | |

DP09 Richmond Walk (This is an Area Action Plan Policy)

Bimening
propasal

DP10 Devonport Guildhall (Alocation for office space, mix of community faciltes)
SMENING |
proposal

DP11 New Primary School (Allocation for new primary school)

pre construction | constoction

pre constrction

Emening
propesal

'DP12 Dental Training School and GP Surgery (Dental School completed)

pre corstruction | construction

IDQS[ constrchon

amenging

5106 et pre constraction | - construction
proposal

DP13 Marlborough Street (This is an Area Action Plan Policy)

srmeang | 106

Brp preconsbruction | construction
propasal

DP14 Sustainable Transport (This is an Area Action Plan Policy)

Bmernging
proposal

DP15 The Green Arc (PCC Working Party looking at all Green Spaces in Devonport)

Emenging
propesal |

pre constuction | consbuction

5106 it pre-corstruclion

i{
Ipost consiriction
|

poat cansiruckion

DP16 Devonport Park (Improverments o park currertly being funded by successful Hertage Lotery Fund bid)

Bmerging PrOject
proposal developmant

pre app ‘ app pre constuction

Millbay/Stonehouse

MS01 Royal William Yard (Brewhouse building, 129 homes completed, Mills Bakery

building, conversion under construction, 79 homes and office space)
Emerging pre
proposal consiruction

MS02 Grain Silo (Now demolished)

pre app 5106 elc

post
canstruction

pre
congirisction

emerging praoject

construction
proposal | development

pre-app app | 2106 et

post
canstruction




Page 98

DB Land btwn W. Appmanthniﬂn St (Qutline consent for up to 1,232 homes,

emerging
proposal

amearging
proposs|

project |
development |

pre

g51016 atc:
iidn anstruction

constriction

construction

post
conslruction

post
canstrichion

MSO05 Trinity Pier (Land will be developed for marine employment uses and should
include a terminal for landing cruise liner passengers and marine related tourism uses)

MSO06 Inner Basin (Area to be developed for marine related employment uses)

Emarging
propasal

MS07 Millbay Marina (Consent for 94 homes, not started)

piroec

development | HERER

pre

] construction

consiruction

pre app app

pest
construction

5106 etc construction

amarging
proposal

MS08 Un

projec
development |

ion Street (This is an Area Action

pre app

pioast
construction

5106 atc copstrection

Plan Policy)

posl
construction

armarging
proposal

MS09 Un

project |
developmient |

ion Street/Western Approach

pre app app

5106 eic : e

' construction
canatruction

(This is an Area Action Plan Policy)

post
construction

amarging

project I

proposal

MS10 Stonehouse Creek (This is an Area Action Plan Policy)

development | Ay e

5106 eic e

SOt construction
2

poast
construction

projgct |

developmenit | pre app

pre
canstruction

for 56 homes awaiting Committee d

5106 et consiruction

pst
construction

ecision)

amarging
proposal

MS12 Sustainable Transport (This is an Area Action Plan Policy)

projecl
development

106 etc s

construction
construchon

past
canstruction

emarging

project

propoesal

development | RTe-app | oo

North Plymstock AAP

pra

5106 eto
construction

constrection

post
construction

NPO1 F’Iymstnck Quarry (F'Ianmng application for up to 1,700 homes, 1.85ha

amarglng
proposal

EI"I'IEIFQ-'II'IIJ
proposa|

priajec]
developmiant |

pre

51 -
ik ransluciion

construction

NPO03 Wakehams Quarry (Allocation for mixed use from 2016 to 2021)

emearging
proposal

NP04 Billacombe Green (Char:

EMERging
proposal

pre

1 T
KR constructon

oonstruotion

pre

5106 atc consiruction

posl
construction

post
construction

post
construchion

green should be preserved and enhanced)

post

consbruciion

construction

S9)IS P3ed0||Y

>
o
©
®
=
=
X
=
O
@
<
D
]
©
3
®
>
=
o
=
o
(@]
=]
(4]
0
(7]
©]
)
—
)
M




S9}IS P3ed0| Y

>
o
O
o
=
=
X
=
@)
@
<
o
(©]
o
3
0]
>
~
U
=
(®]
(@]
=
()
0
()
o
S5
—
)
T

Page 99

NPOS5 Sherford & Sports hub (Planning application for up to 320 homes, sports hub and
highway improvements awaiting Cununttee decision

emerging
proposal

emerging
proposal

NPO7 HQPT route (A flexible mass rapic-transit scheme for the Eastem Corridor)

emerging

NPO8 Improvements to Public Transpo

projec
development

pre apo

pre
construction

'NPO6 North of Elburton options (This is an Area Action Plan Pali

consthection

icy)

st
construction

pre app ]_ &pp

5106 elc

pre
construction

consiruction

post
construction

pre app | app

5106 etc

pre
construction

cansiruction

rt (Enhancements to the existing Pl

post
construction

ymstock

prespp | spp

s106 ete

ore
construction

construction

post
cansiruction

pre
construction

COnSIrUcHon

NP10 National Cycle Network ( All developments should contribute to the
implementation of route 2 along the Eastern Corridor)

posl
construction

pre app

5106 elc

pre
construction

consiructaon

posl
coenstruction

NP11 Countryside Park (A new countryside park that will incorporate the Saltram Estate

and a wider area of

emarging
proposal

emarging
proposal

land)

pre app

5108 efc

pre
construction

canstruchion

post
construction

will farm part of Proposal NP 11)

5106 =lc

ore
construction

construction

post
construction

NP 13 Hazeldene Quarry safeguarding (Land to the north of the existing quarry will be
safeguarded for limestone axtrautlan]

project
develapment

5106 etc

pre
construction

consiructian

post
censtruction

5106 ete

ore
construchon

consiruction

NP 15 Moorcroft Quarry (Land no longer required for mineral extraction should be
safeguarded for waste mnagarrmt uses)

emerging
proposal

Emerging

proposal |

pre app

5108 slc

constructon

post
consiruction

5106 ate

pre
construction

oonstruction

post
construction




Page 100

SHO02 Bretonside (Mixed use redevelopment, approx. 22,000 sgm of office space, 310
homes, retail, leisure and tourism uses.)

emerging ore post
oy e Bp 300 106 = construchior
paposa ARSIFLCHan constructon

SHO03 North Quay House Car Park (Redevelop to provide high quality building,
possibly offices above ground floor retail, café and restaurant uses)

" r i i am | T
emarging praac e pra
t app 5106 et construction
proposa davenopmant -Qnstruchion

SHO4 Exeter Street (Mixed use scheme that could include 26,200 sqm office space,
approx. 240 homes and retail, cafes and restaurants)
.I..I. :.. I I_...:__ construction — Il‘

SHOS5 Friary Park (Mixed use residential, approx. 530 homes, 21,100 sgm office space,
puss.bba new primary school)

Marging post

SHO6 Sutt-:-n Harbour Herltage Trail {This is an Area Action Plan Policy)

SH[I? Sltes East & West Sutton Road (New sustainable neighbourhood, approx. 720
homes, 25,700 sgm of employment and 7,800 sgm of retail, cafes and restaurants)
SHO7 Sites East & West Sutton Road - The Boat Yard (Mixed use office scheme
under construction)

cag

SHO8 Coxside/Barbican Car Park (Retain public parking but remodel building to
contribute more positively to the regeneration of the area)

SHO09 Fish Market (To deliver improvements to the fish market site, additional uses could
Jinclude retail, restaurant, and visitor centre)

EH 1 ﬂ L&ck Bridge (To enhance or repalce existing lock brldgej

SH11 Queen Anne's Battery (To enhance and maximise the potential for marine related
“and cumplemantary employment uses)

pre post
B apr app : canstructic
F | ek 1 4 P i

>
0
Q
©
—
@
o
%)
N
@
(2]

>
T
o
(1)
=]
=
X
=
O
@
<
o
]
©
3
®
>
—
i
=
o
(@]
=
@
0
(7]
©]
)
—
)
M




Page 101

Appendix 5: Development Progress on LDF

Allocated Sites




Appendix 6: 2009 Implementation Schedule

Eﬁmgﬁn_nﬂm

H_.._.mmﬁ.u.:.niam

LM0aEnL ¥l

E. | LITHLS HONOECE T E 10

ey | BSOS D O TOOHDS Syl TYLN3d nE_E

Eoge e W0OHDS AP 3N | 1)

Page 102

9|npayas uonejuswajdw| 600z :9 xipuaddy




Page 103

ADINDINOIANIM 9040

Y3INYOD Qv0d ANYTLNO 'avod Mdvd TvH3A3d S0d0

SLINIWIONVYHNI Myvd TVYLNIOD #0dD

JONVHOHILNI LHOdSNVHL £0dD

Hdvd JNOH 204D

JH1IN3D 3417 3HL L0dD

HdVd TVALNID

YNIHY ISNOHINOLS LIS

YNIFWYIA AYETIIN LOSW

NISYd H3INNI S80S

d3id ALINIYL SOSW

13341S H1vE OSSN

13341S NOINN/HOVOdddY Nd31S3IM NIIMLIE ANVT E0SW

QuvA WYITIM TYAOY LOSW

ISNOHANOLS ANV AVETTIN

L20¢
920¢
520¢
¥20e
£20¢
A4
L20e
0202
610¢
810g
102
9102
510¢
14804
£102
clog
L1102
0102
6002
8002
4002
9002

600Z Jequateq e SE UoNISOd pasiney T
dY'Y 2y} jo uondopy je uoiysod

Appendix 6: 2009 Implementation Schedule




Appendix 6: 2009 Implementation Schedule

AHILLIYE SANNY N33IND L LHS

30aH8 H2071 0LHS

13HAHYIN HS14 BOHS

Hd¥d YD NY2I8HY3/3dISX0D B0HS

avod NOLLNS 'S3TVS LINH4 HLNOWATd L0HS

TEL JDVLIEIH UNOgYYH NOLLNS 90HS

Page 104

OdvA AdYIEd S0HS

1IIYLS H¥3L3IKT 49 - LF FOHS

AdYd 9%D ANY ISN0OH AYND HLHON E0HS

SNOHIANT ONY NOILYLS SN8 3AISNO13HE Z20HS

|Ijijl]111i

TIH AYHEWY
ANY J4YHM INOLSNIHLTS JHYHM TYI24INNDD LOHS

HNOBYYH NOLLNS

LEZ0Z
20T

SE0E
A

EZ0T
2202

L202
020Z
GLOE
glL0Z
LI0E

002

L0
SLoZ
rLoZ
£L0Z
FAR I
LLOZ
0L0z
6002
8002
2002

G00Z Jaquiana( B SE Uolisod pasiney) e
d' aul Jo uondopy je uonisod




Page 105

370H 3LIHM 9LdN

AHHVYND L40HOHOOW S1dN

3LIS TH4aNYT 3401534 MOAY3W NOSTIHD ZLdN

Advd AISAHLNNOD LLdN

TWSOdOHd AHOMLIN FTOAD TYNOILYN 0LdN

INFWIDVYNYIN Ol44%HL
ANY SINIWINOHHWI FHNLONYLSVHANI AYMHODIH 60dN

AD0LSWATd
NI S301AY3S 1HOdSNYHL D118Nd 01 SLNIWINOHJWI 80N

31N0YH 1dOH L0dN

NOLHNET3 40 HLHON SNOILJO LNIWJO13A3A I4N.LNd 90dN

(NOLYNET13 HLYON) gNH S1Y0dS aYO443HS S0dN

R00Z 12qLua2a(] 1e SE uonisod pasiaay
dvY @ui jo uonidopy Je uonisod

Appendix 6: 2009 Implementation Schedule

NIZFHD IgNODYTIE POdN
J AHYEYNO SWYHIHNYM E0dN
BEE 31V1ST WIHLISNANI L1FTHANOd Z0dN
j AHEYND MOOLSWATA LOdN
MIOLSWATd HLHON
%] %] %] [£%] [E %) e %) %] %] (%] (L] L ) %] %] %] (%] (2] [L I %) (%)
o o o o oo | o | o o o o o |10 o o o o o [ e T I e ) o
(%] %] [ o] [ o] [ Lo N %] %] o] - - —_ —_ —_ — — —= —_ —_ o (= T == ] %
=] (7] (4] e (VI LS =3 o= w o | fa ] (4] E-N L %] - o w oo |~




Page 106

Appendix 7: Progress of Strategically Significant
Infrastructure Projects

Ref Project Title Description Current Status
(December 2009)
COM-002 Plymouth City Centre | Relocation of the main library Proposed location
- Central Library service hub, as the current not yet identified
relocation building is too small for the
community it serves. Linked to
redevelopment of Civic Centre
site.
COM-033 Citywide - The reconfiguration of police Ongoing
reconfiguration of estates to allow for
Police Estates Neighbourhood Beat Bases,
Patrol Units, Operational Policing
Hub and a Criminal Justice
Centre.
COM-038 Sherford New Accommodation for a Being progressed
Community - multi-agency community as part of
Multi-agency governance building for the development of
Community Community Trust, Sherford new
Governance Building | accommodating a library and community
information centre, public toilets,
local authority 'hotdesk' and
meeting rooms and police/crime
prevention office.
COM-041 North Prospect - A Child & Adolescent Mental Scheme being
Trelawny Surgery Health Unit to serve the wider developed
Child & Adolescent | city.
Mental Health Unit
EDU-093 University of Consolidation of satellite sites | Ongoing
Plymouth - onto one central campus.
expansion and
consolidation
ENG-002 Sherford - moving Western Power Distribution to Being progressed
overhead power move overhead power cables, | as part of
cables to remove service constraints. | development of
Sherford new
community
ENG-003 Laira Bridge - moving | Western Power Distribution to Removal of

overhead power
cables

move overhead power lines at
Laira Bridge to remove service
constraints.

overhead cables
now no longer
required

=]
=
=
Q
(]
—
=
=
Q
—
S
()
9
L,
D
2L
(2}

>
<
T
®
=
2
b
=
3
o
Q
@
n
»
o
S,
N
=
)
Q
D)
Q
o
Q
3
@
@)
3.
=
Q
)
S




=
=h
=
Q
(@]
—
=
c
Q
~
S
(0]
9
L.
(0]
£
()]

>
©
T
®
=]
=3
X
=
LY
o
Q
®
n
n
o
S
(09}
=
Q
Q
®
Q
2]
Q
<
2]
Q
3.
=
Q
)
S

Page 107

Ref

Project Title

Description

Current Status
(December 2009)

ENG-010

Derriford/Seaton -
CHP potential

Hospitals and mixed use
development would provide good
base heat loads for CHP or
biomass heat schemes. Lack of
existing permanent development
on these sites allows for
significant sustainable energy
infrastructure to be incorporated.

Study of potential
undertaken

ENG-021

City Centre - CHP
potential

City centre redevelopment would
provide a base load for CHP
and/or district heating scheme.

Study of potential
undertaken

GRS-002

Derriford Community
Park - Seaton Valley

The Derriford/Seaton AAP
proposes the creation of a new
community park in the Seaton
valley, on what is currently
inaccessible farmland. Proposal
for 70 hectares of new
accessible green space and
links with existing Local Nature
Reserves.

Design study
undertaken

GRS-026

Central Park - Life
Centre

Development of sporting,
community, cultural and health
and well being facilities at
Central Park. Including:
swimming pools, sports hall,
fitness facilities, creche and
catering facilities, Health Clinics
and climbing facilities.

Funding agreed.
Design in
progress.

GRS-047

East of Plymouth -
Countryside Park

Delivery of new landscape and
biodiversity-focused countryside
park in the eastern corridor,
providing a local/sub regional
facility. This would also take
pressure off the protected
landscapes. Good access from
Park and Ride and HQPT is
essential.

Design study
undertaken

GRS-064

Sherford New
Community - Sports
Hub

Including a sports centre and
swimming pool, football pitches,
tennis courts, cricket pitch and
gym. Also reprovides any
facilities lost by King George V
school.

Being progressed
as part of
development of
Sherford new
community




Page 108

Ref Project Title Description Current Status
(December 2009)

HEA-001 Vanguard Project - | Strategic Plan for the Ongoing
reorganisation of refurbishment and development
health facilities in the | of the Estate, which aims to
city. improve the patient and staff

experience within the built
environment, relocate services
to maximise clinical efficiencies
and reduce the costs of
maintaining the infrastructure.

TRA-001 Bretonside - Bus and | The redevelopment of Options currently
Coach Station Bretonside bus and coach being
replacement station with offices, housing, investigated

retail, and leisure and provision
of a new high-quality public
transport interchange on this site
or another appropriate
alternative site,with improved
pedestrian access.

TRA-002-001 | Central Park - Construction of a public Elements of this
Transport transport interchange, including | being delivered
Interchange Park and Ride on the planned through Life

HQPT route, new highway and | Centre
approach roads, and development
reconfigured car parking

facilities.

TRA-004 Derriford - Transport | Replacement of the existing bus | To be progressed

Interchange bays at Derriford Hospital with a | through Derriford
multi-modal transport and Seaton AAP
interchange to serve the new
Derriford Community
TRA-006 HQPT 1 Eastern The public transport vision is for | Funding agreed.

Corridor

a limited stop High Quality Public
Transport (HQPT) system. This
will provide all of the
developments along the Eastern
Corridor with the service, which
will connect the Langage
commercial area and Sherford
with the city centre and beyond
via Deep Lane Junction.

Design work in
progress.

=1
=4
=
0
7
~—
=
C
o
~—
=
o®
Y
Q.
®
2l
(72}

>
<
T
®
=
2
b
=
3
o
Q
@
n
»
o
S,
N
=
)
~—
D)
Q
o
Q
3
@
Q
3.
=
Q
)
S




=
=h
=
Q
(@]
—
=
c
Q
~
S
(0]
9
L.
(0]
£
()]

>
©
T
®
=]
=3
X
o
LY
o
Q
®
n
n
o
S
(09}
=
Q
Q
®
Q
2]
Q
<
2]
Q
3.
=
Q
)
S

Page 109

Ref Project Title Description Current Status
(December 2009)

TRA-007 HQPT 2 East-North | A High Quality Public Transport | Major Scheme
link - High Quality system, linking development in | Bid being
Public Transport the eastern corridor with prepared. Design

employment areas in the north | work in progress.
of the city, Sherford - Marsh Mills

- Forder Valley - Plymouth

International Business & Medical

Park - Derriford.

TRA-008 HQPT 3 Northern High quality, high frequency Major Scheme
Corridor - High route along the A386 northern | Bid being
Quality Public corridor to link with the City prepared. Design
Transport route Centre and Line 1 to enable work in progress.

development in the north of the
city including Derriford and
Plymouth Airport.

TRA-010 Western Corridor A site to the west of the city for | Options currently

Park & Ride facility | Park & Ride commuters from being
Corrnwall. Part of a semi-circle | investigated
of similar facilities serving the
city.

TRA-011 Manadon - junction | Implementation of junction Design work in
efficiency efficiency improvements at progress
improvements Manadon and Marsh Mills

interchanges to maximise
existing highway capacity at
these key nodal points.

TRA-011-001 | Marsh Mills - Implementation of junction Design work in
junction efficiency efficiency improvements at progress
improvements Manadon and Marsh Mills

interchanges to maximise
existing highway capacity at
these key nodal points.

TRA-013 Millbay Cruise Liner | Provide high quality waiting Being progressed
Facilities - improved | facilities, drop off & set down through Millbay
Landing/Interchange | areas for hackney carriages and | and Stonehouse
facilities private hire vehicles, coach and | AAP

bus pick-up & set-down areas

TRA-018 Plymouth City Airport | As part of the Airport runway Airside works to

- Overview expansion programme and the | be undertaken

Airport masterplan a number of
projects to upgrade transport
facilities in the surrounding area
have been identified.

funded by sale of
southern runway
land for
development.




Page 110

Ref Project Title Description Current Status
(December 2009)
TRA-019 HQPT- wider city Introduce an HQPT system Key elements
network. across the city. being progressed
through eastern
and northern
corridor schemes
TRA-021-002 | Plymstock Quarry - | Creation of two main access Access
Vehicular Access points from the A379 , together | arrangements
with two secondary vehicular included in
access points from the Ride and | submitted
Colesdown Hill. masterplan
TRA-026 Rail - Re-opening of | Assess viability of re-opening the | Funding and
the Tamar Valley Tamar Valley Line extension design progress
Line to Tavistock from Bere Alston to Tavistock. subject to major
housing
expansion at
Tavistock.
TRA-029-007 | Sherford New Provision of a Park and Ride Being progressed
Community - Park & | Interchange at Deep Lane, as part of
Ride Interchange at | Sherford. development of
Deep Lane Junction Sherford new
community and
eastern corridor
HQPT
TRA-043 Rail - North Road Replacement of the existing Design study
Railway Station station with a modern transport | undertaken.
redevelopment interchange, together with a
comprehensive reconfiguration
of the surrounding built
environment and road network.
TRA-053 City Centre - HQPT | It is essential that any Included in City
redevelopment or reconfiguration | Centre AAP
of the city centre highway
network provides an integrated
system of HQPT priority
measures.
TRA-056 City Centre Strategic | Improvements to City Centre Included in City
Road Network Strategic Road Network and Centre AAP

Improvements

improvement to pedestrian/cycle
facilities. Bus movements to be
prioritised

=1
=4
=
0
7
~—
=
C
o
~—
=
o®
Y
Q.
®
2l
(72}

>
<
T
®
=
2
b
=
3
o
Q
@
n
»
o
S,
N
=
)
~—
D)
Q
o
Q
3
@
Q
3.
=
Q
)
S




=
=h
=
Q
(@]
—
=
c
Q
~
S
(0]
9
L.
®
2
()]

>
©
T
®
=]
=3
X
=
LY
o
Q
®
n
n
o
S
(0]
=
Q
—
®
Q
2]
Q
3
2
Q
3.
=
Q
Q)
S

Page 111

Ref Project Title Description Current Status
(December 2009)
WAS-001 SW Devon - residual | Provision of a long-term Facility
waste treatment sustainable waste management | procurement
services solution for the residual underway.
municipal waste produced by Commissioning
SW Devon Councils including scheduled for
Torbay 2014.
WAT-011 High Quality Public | Modelling needs to be Being progressed
Transport Routes - undertaken to gain a better as part of
Flood Risk Mitigation | understanding of the flood development of
Measures regime along the proposed HQPT schemes
routes, particularly at Billacombe
Brook. Enlarged culverts may
be required and routes need to
be built above predicted flood
levels.
WAT-019 North Plymouth A plan needs to be developed to | A site for the
Water Treatment deal with water treatment in the | relocation of the
Works northern sector of the city. current Treatment
Works at
Crownhill has
been identified at
Roborough
Down. Capacity
exists for the
forseeable future,
but construction
on the new site is
currently not
scheduled until
after 2015.
WAT-039 Sherford New Further information on waste Being progressed

Community - waste
water treatment

water treatment and
management options is required.

as part of
development of
Sherford new
community




Page 112

Appendix 8: Relationships between Targets and Indicators

Summary of Targets and Indicators

8.1 The following diagrams summarise the relationship between each of the
strategic objectives and targets of the Core Strategy. The relationships between the
Strategic Objective and its supporting targets, together with the associated core
output indicators, contextual indicators and significant effect indicators have been
illustrated by colour coding these different elements.

Key objecthve | target | indicator diagrams

Corg Qutpul Mdsanors

Sirategic Obecive Targets Contexual Ingeatnrs i

Signilicant Efects Indcainrs

503 - Delivering sustzinable linked communities

A resldenbal p:l.rls-nl Ampunt & new resdential
L0310 develsn et ity 10 Rave 245y develaamant vasha 30 ming publie
sucsiainabde hvked accesy 1o local tarmpori ime of GP, peimary
communies Hroughoul ihopping and schoal, secondary Sl
1R Cily commuriny lacies by EmACry T i NEA, Ml o re il
202 cenire, hosphial

5004 - Delivering the quality city

The completen of chariie satan
sludies [or the fallowing AR s
Devpapan. Milnay | Sionafause, Hos,
L.ify Lenire [ Linieruty, 5 uton

Harbour and East End
304 o capstalise on

Plymouth's unigue
naurE and buil hesitige Tow remonal of £ of tmslktg rpm Wmber of ke
e 2005 Buidmgs ot Risk Begaier per
and crease well annum by viriug of their Fanure being Esuddhngs lose | &1
tesigned, sale, wibrani, eruted Tisk
s, suskreable
nekghbos hoods

A major development 1o conviie o
wreanng g well des d erveigment, by
prevading £ and value iz a
neighbous hood = leim of the design
nefaned ob poies oudingd in e relavant
sustarahie neighbourhood shedy

o
>
o
=3
=
O
o
=
o
=)
(2]

>
)
°
@
S
o
X
e
Y
@
)
=
o
=]
7]
=
S
®
o
o)
@
=
®
@
5
o'
-
%]
@
[}
7}




SJ0}JedIpu| pue

>
o
o
o
=)
=
X
o
Py
@
[
=
o
>
o
=
S
(]
o
@
—
3
®
®
>
o'
-
Q
o)
—
o

Page 113

505 - Delivering regeneration
5005 10 prepare A sefies
of BAPs for the areas in Wﬁ:bﬂu
ERCCk ot e, s Biepivation
developrsent pressee o curesd approved
BRPOTENAY oF Sonsdnity LD ' "
113 Ehare
! 506 - Delivering the economic strategy
el o ey e
Fhymaouth Principal employmesi by type
b aed ol At least T L B e
‘mﬂm E mphoyrmiend land avaiabiy by bype
4.5 pa betwean 2006 Lodses of amployment Bad
Emmiﬂl#.ﬂu mzm. | I' - ﬁ" 'I' - — 'Hﬁ“"'
through the LOF that Delvery of 13,000 B
supporls the Councils “rﬁm;ﬂh e
Aczion Plan, helping 1o The city pes annum developrment
rgke Phymouth & place Aot of compléced oliice
‘mw*"m A netingraaye = DRyRIODMBNT i lwT CANTeS
naneral envronment iritsbsindd, ' '
comwirge o bring employees ol | Gross value added per | par kaad |
serilainalie g osperty Apgrax 1,800 pa
and welleng for al = | Unemploymen |
ilentilicaton of il
least oo Sibe B0 b Bardge Roaie pfioes
s:.rap;;luuruu [ |
T qualty NG
irnand i e [ bl I
OBy

Incoma supgaet claimanis




Page 114

Q

S

S07 - Delivering adequate shopping pravisian E
=

s o

An increase in retall capacity loo 8

:mm#ﬂhmn 57 00H} o

and 92,00 s m nat by JO18 a

An inciease B fetail capacey o
comparson goods of beoween 106,000
angd 173,000 5 m by 2007

A v dioatrict cent'e af Derifond to serve

507 to promile new portiern Plymouth by 2016, and 10 A of

shopping develogment Nkt it potersal to grow n the futwe | COMpleted retail
which contribuses in 8 wary That Iy semgiamentary s the deveiopment

pesitely to delnering City Ceentre thicagh the Pian Mansm

Plymouti's vision lor Mansge prooess

wulhuﬂthﬂlhﬂlﬂ'r Ampurt of
,.m”. aith TI'JI:FH A rera dhadtien eenine a4 Waeston Ml By :*H*Fﬂﬂ '1:::.#
sustanable knked 0is BURATY BRI,

M Incal cenies 21 Devonpan,
Millbavy, and P lymoitock Guarry

>
k=]
-]
®
3
e
x
0
A
D
)
=£
o
>
(72)
=
©
2}
o
@
L
2
@
@
>
o'
-
Q
@
L)
(7]

A corsolidaied retail warehouse
location o Lara EmBaniment hlr 2008

A revised shopping study for Plymouth
by 2011

Tjt_ﬂ. - ﬂl-lhﬁ‘:ll;t;l-lfﬂlhhlrl facilivies and the mk-ug.lllﬂr Timme BTy

50F 1o laciitane the Ampunt of compleied leiswe
creanon of Blymouth a3 develapment
- fpbertiete] -

g i Targets 1o be Amourt of completed leisure
and lelswre sector and 4 N ot
I:Emme..m vl develapment in cenires .

wacially inclushe
EVERING | Fgha Tme % ol nesidents salisted with the

RLORCTY cuhural and recreational acikiies




Page 115

Q

>

& | 500 - Delivering educational improvements

5- — S

8

(_'5: 5m.@mlw wrmmmm :ﬂmmm

@ ma:munuu'l Southway and Plyedteck, and the BV level B4
BekE N0 [ enahle ‘Wihidey Campuys, by 2008 - 2016
TveTyone 0o shane in % of 16 year oks
Phymouth's growing Dradivery of the Peninsula Dental achienng 5+

PrOsReITy el GLCSES

5010 - Dedivering adequale housing supply

>
)
]
o
S
o
X
&
Py
0
o
=
o
>
(7]
>
©
(7]
o
@
~—
=
®
®
>
o'
-
Q
@
~—
(2]

Desivery of the Nt addinonas dwefings
Sraegc houting
FRCRITEMENt Up 10 Frojecied net addnional dwelings
2021 of some LI
W#ﬁﬂb mmmnmm
R |
% of new and converted dwellings an
nﬂml-hldﬂlhﬂ:ltuﬂ
% dwelings completad at iess than
Hprr‘ru..lﬂ-!ﬂnrhluﬂmm
0% of row ber ha Li
i |
S01010 ensire that 4§ homes by 2021 cantibution o miced
Plymouth residents have Hurspr & househelds
lnlm:mnﬁ!:uﬂrd [ ]
home within & Average household soe
qilakey fwing E I
Snronment mumh | Howseroid senure |
Pty
Hmﬁ." | Dweiling type |
develcped land | Numbe: of dweling |
L3, B0 P s By
F1er il | Househokd composmon |
| Ethnicity |
| Peouliton densey 1
20 of new | Age sruciure
developedsobem | Decenl hemes
lgtime Barme
standand (3,450 Mo of homelesiness ALcaptanes




Page 116

SOL1L o S a spalial
framewik

plaring
thegagh the LDF that
suppons me Ciy

| i 5-U1i f III;Hwﬁun th emviranment

The chy's popalabion have

ACErss L A adlural gf epescape
weithm 300 metes of ther home

Dexignanon of 100 hecrares
of pew Local Hature Reseive
by 2016

A% a minimum develoomeni
Caugih no net bodd of
Becdversity of acknowledge
A LN

Revew the Soaiege Fiood
Risk Axseasment on al keast a
free yearly basls

To ensune that 4l maoe new
gevelooments o porale
ansie renewable energy

proshuction equipment, to ofl-

sl al leasd 10 or predieabed
carhon emaLions ior the
parad up oo 2000, rsing o
13% dor the period 2010-2016

the EA on llpod delence

in areas and
population ol Bedvorsity
impomance. change in
prviy hahRas and
apecies, and change in
designabid & eds

Renemabie eneigy
cagacity insabed by fype

which are In lavourable
cesdnon

sJ0)edlpu| pue

it e

i 5012 - Defivering fwure mineral resources

5012 10 defives an
appraptiale
botween the seod o
salegesid the kang 1erm
suppdy of minerals and
deliery of wategcally
i e devalopmang
in the asien Cofndor;
halping ta make
Miymennth a place whare
people, businessey and
AN oUts g N
emdranment comerge bo
hring sbhout susiainable
praspenty hn:. witll bing

Iderafcalion of land
congenned for mineial
extraclion and proteysing
anil an appepelse bulfe:
2ané in the Morsh Phymatock
Gng Mesialy ARF

Igarelicaton ol Mingral
Resource Probection Area in
thee Moeth Pimslock {inc
Mrarals) AAF

Productian ol prenarny land
warl agaregaies

Froducion of Lecondary
AGC S

Peodettion of recytled

>
k=]
-]
®
3
e
x
0
A
D
)
=£
o
>
(72)
=
©
2}
o
@
L
2
@
@
>
o'
-
Q
@
L)
(7]




SJ0}JedIpu| pue

>
©
S
)
S
=
>
)
Py
®©
)
=
o
>
@
=
S
(7]
o
o)
~—
=
®
o)
>
o'
m )
Q
o)
~—
7}

Page 117

5013 - Delivering sustainable waste management

5013 1o estabish a

Apatal phanfeng
tramewerk intha LDF
that suppots the
Regponal and Councis
Waste anagemen
Stralegy, kelping 1o
maks Plymouth a plade
whee people and
businesEes produce Bss
wasle and ane piovided
weith long 1enm
sustainable and
affordalle waste
managemen| asd
pearmenl laciies

Capacity ol new
wase
FanAgEmEn|
faciies by type

To e develoned through the emesging m""""m"","_fm

Washe Management Sralegy arising

Wasne reuted
recycled,

50014 - Dadivering sustainable ranspost

InCreasing passangs: RETIHEN Amaunt of development in

whing Plymouth Algot o UCO: A B and D
FAQUDD pa by T021 oo phying wih £3¢ parkeg
_ siancias
Ircrease the % of 28 hogsehoigs
mgrmmrmwttwmnhn T i
e Bavel me by ju Amosant ol retigannal
ranspen of Demiieed Hospial mrrqu:ﬂmm
Tamar Sclence Park e pusie Barspart Hire
ol GF, primary school,
Ingrease public ranspon bas| Smighoymant e, s
usage by T.0% by 2010 - 2011 retal cessre and hospral
5004 1o rechioe the Retluce the nuenber of fatalses '
need 1o tavel and and serigus injuties due to road Alr quaity when
OEEVEE & BUSAa i etey : : polon ‘m“ﬁnurm
Fanspert nenwork thas 4 th&wmm “u, o
supports Prymoath’s i sumber of chitd fatakoes |
hﬂ‘llur;nnrmm. LETiOUL e and 0K
Emﬂhﬁwﬂm”h FREUENON i MIROF £15uAAS | Commuung idsance. |
[T - |
- Ensune raffse growih does not
ki euceeda loilof L2 bitawen | Commiangmove |
okt O e bt 2004 and 2010
CHY's COMmmulies Engure that all new
developmen i iocaied wihie Mo ol Bus purneys n
400 ol 5 Dot K100 ang aoeer] Plymauth
Phtuimﬂtﬂh'nd.l::]ilr
MANAGEMENT areas ansing lrom !
ranspori across the ity % who w‘.u-whh!
Diglver 4 HOPT Letide o seye
sasiern Flymauth fnom e
ton of B lest homes, a1 Mo ol people hilled o
i 5 hetford new comsaniy, senously imured in raad
and i deveion the HOPT RIS i
LEnaLe i fing with future
duveinpmans in the sasiern
coiritior | Teallic cangmsbian I




Page 118

5015 - Delivering community well being

& reduciion in % of
Flymoulh's residenti
And wisioes whi el
unzale ocutide on the
ety by day o night

W residems hveg Emiting long
mrm Aness

| Lile eupectansy 1
% resigents who leel gale |
aule i

| Crime rates per 1000 population |

sJ0)edlpu| pue

>
o
S
@
S
=
X
oo
Py
@
)
=
o
=]
7]
=
S
(7]
o
@
@
=
®
@
>
o'
-
%]
@
[}
7}




Page 119

Appendix 8: Relationships between Targets

and Indicators




Page 120

Appendix 9: Plan Monitor Manage Process

Plymouth’s Local Development Framework
plan monitor manage framework in relation to site specific proposals

DEVELOPMENT
PLAN DOCUMENT

monitoring

and risks

of progress
to delivery

PLYMOUTH
DELIVERY
FRAMEWORK
DATABASE

Strategic Development
Panel assesament

risk is not considered
potentially prejudicial to
achievement of DPD
visian [ strategic
objectives

development trajectory
amended if appropniate

risk is considered
potentially prejudicial to
achievement of DPD
vision | strategic
objectives

IMPLEMENTATION
STUDY

potential alternatives
identified & reported,

development frajeclory
amended if appropriate

LDF ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT

implementation can be
progressed through
narmal DM function

implementation would
benefit from prao-active
support in intrepreting

the policy framework

DPD vision ! objectives
remain appropriate but the
specific proposal may
need some adjustment or
amplification

DPD vision { objectives
can na longer be achieved,
need significant revision

BUSINESS AS
USUAL

SUPPLEMENT THE
DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT
PROCESS (SITE
DEVELOPMENT
STATEMENT)

SUPFLEMENT THE
DPD (SFD)

FORMAL REVIEW
OF DPD

>
T
T
®
=
a
b
e
Y
o
S
<
o
3.
=
o
=
<
O
S
[
Q
®
LY
o
Q
®
o
»




Page 121

Appendix 9: Plan Monitor Manage Process




Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 123 Agenda ltem 7

CITY OF PLYMOUTH

Subject: Plymouth City Council’s Housing Service
Committee: Growth & Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel
Date: 19 February 2010
Cabinet Member: Councillor Ted Fry
CMT Member: Anthony Payne, Director, Development & Regeneration
Author: Stuart Palmer, Assistant Director Development &
Regeneration (Strategic Housing)
Contact: Tel: (01752 (30) 6716
e-mail: stuart.palmer@plymouth.gov.uk
Ref:
Part:

Executive Summary:

1.

2.

As part of the Housing Options Review prior to Stock transfer, a range of services were
determined as necessary to address the housing challenges inherent in Council priorities.
These tackle a range of aspirations for improvements across the healthy, wealthy and
safer and stronger vision for Plymouth and the housing service leads on Corporate
Improvement Priority (CIP 5), ‘Providing Better and More Affordable Housing ‘, but also
contributes to CIP’s 2,3 ,4,7,9,and 12

. The service was brought together under the Development and Regeneration Department

following Stock Transfer in November 2009, and is made up from the existing services of
Housing Strategy and Renewals:

Housing Strategy and Policy

Affordable Housing delivery

Empty Homes and House let

Home Energy Efficiency

Devonport Regeneration

Private Sector Housing

e Neighbourhood Regeneration and Renewals.

Combined with the retained housing Operations Services of:

e Homelessness, Prevention and Temporary Accommodation
e Housing Register (Devon Home Choice)

e Anti Social Behaviour

e Family Intervention Project

And added from transfer were:

4.

5.

e The Ride Gypsy & Traveller site
e Monitoring the delivery of Transfer promises and developing the partnership with PCH
e North Prospect Regeneration

The service has a proposed budget of £3M of which half is funded through income and
external grants.

Over the next year it will bring in just under £50M of inward investment in both new
homes and tackling regeneration and poor standards. This is in addition to the funding for
PCH to deliver its promises to tenants and North Prospect regeneration project.

It is likely that an Audit Commission inspection of our services will follow the transfer
within the next 12 months or less.



Page 124

7. We have already started an external Peer Challenge of our Private Sector Housing
Services and the panel may be interested in the outcome of this and the subsequent
improvement plan which will follow. Another service (Family Intervention Project) has
received two external evaluations and is considered to be ‘high performing’ by the
government but will be reviewed as part of the Family Support Review.

8. We intend to carry out a strategic review of Homelessness and Housing Advice services
during the year to ensure they are fit for purpose and geared to our existing demands
and address or aim of prioritising prevention.

9. The service takes the lead for the Council in developing the relations between Plymouth
Community Homes (PCH) and the Council, and also in monitoring the delivery of the
transfer promises. There is a governance arrangement set out within the transfer contract
(see Appendix A) which includes two presentations to all members of the council from
PCH during the year to demonstrate progress to date. The Panel may consider it
appropriate to host these two sessions opening them out to all councillors who may have
an interest in the achievements of PCH in delivering the promises that the Council made
to tenants as a result of stock transfer.

Conclusions

This report sets out the main structure of Plymouth City Council’s Housing services, and
some background information on the challenges and implications for each team.

The service is broad reaching and supports both the growth and regeneration agendas, as
well as many community related issues. It provides a co-ordinated and cohesive approach to
tackling the specific housing related issues that Plymouth experiences, but we are carrying
out reviews to ensure that it is efficient and focuses on what is needed.

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action:

1. That the panel considers the scope of the strategic housing service and considers areas
that it may be particularly interested in exploring or reviewing such as the Peer Challenge
outcome.

2. That the Panel considers whether it wishes to host the two presentations by Plymouth
Community Homes on the delivery of the transfer promises

. Background

Set out below is the broad structure of the Councils retained housing services following stock
transfer and some headline information on what each part of the service is focusing on, and
delivering so far.

Various parts of the service are currently being reviewed to ensure they meet our needs, and
are performing effectively, these are Neighbourhood Regeneration, Private Housing services,
Homelessness and the Family Intervention Project.



Plymouth City Council Housing Services

Assistant Director
Strategic Housing

Private Sector Housing &
Regeneration

Housing Strategy &
Development

Housing Options

Anti Social Behaviour

Housing Business
Support

Private Rented Housing
HMO licensing

Housing Renewals
Major Adaptations
Neighbourhood
Management

(North Prospect,

Stonehouse and others)

Efford Building
Communities Initiative

East End Renewal

Housing Strategy
Housing Market
Assessment /Housing
Needs

New Affordable
Housing

North Prospect and
Devonport
Regeneration.
Empty Homes

Home Energy

Homelessness
Housing Advice

Temporary
Accommodation

SHIP Hostel

Housing Register &
Nominations

Choice Based Lettings
(Devon Home Choice)

The Ride — Gypsy &
Traveller Site

Anti Social Behaviour
Unit

- ASB Strategy

- Respect Parenting

Family Intervention
Project
- Anti Social
Behaviour
- Youth Crime
- Child Poverty

Administration/Support

Performance
Management

Heath & Safety

Customer feedback &
Have Your Say

Transfer Promises
monitoring and PCH
Partnership
co-ordination

Finance

Freedom of Information &
Subject Access Requests

G| obed




Page 126



Page 127

2. Private Sector Housing & Regeneration

2.1.

Private Sector Housing:

610 Houses in Multiple Occupation licences issued since 2006 with 193 HMO's investigated &
114 inspected to date during 2009/10

452 complaints in private rented sector formally dealt with during 2008/09 with 438 resolved to
date during 2009/10.

127 Disabled Facilities Grants completed during 2008/09 with total spend of £1.3 million. The
target of 130 completions in 2009/10 has already been exceeded with 136 completions and
199 approvals to date and spend of over £1.2 million.

New loans package for home improvements introduced in April 2009, with 89 new enquiries
and 12 approvals to date during 2009/10.

81 properties occupied by vulnerable people 'made decent' in 2008/09 with 53 at quarter 3 of
2009/10.

151 'Category 1 hazards' removed in 2008/09 with 118 at quarter 3 of 2009/10.

Private Sector Housing Strategy approved February 2009; Assistance Policy approved
February 2009; Licensing of HMO’s Policy approved April 2008; Enforcement Policy approved
January 2006 (currently being updated); Stock Condition Survey October 2005 (being updated
for 2010).

Peer Challenge self assessment completed February 2010 with visit from Peer Challenge team
to take place March 2010.

2.2. Neighbourhood Regeneration

Delivery of Neighbourhood Management programmes, including wardens service, in North
Prospect and Stonehouse with resulting improvements in neighbourhood service delivery;
resident groups enabled to become more influential with service providers; education
campaigns / community events undertaken. Of those engaged in the programme:

- 51% have not been involved in neighbourhood activity before

- 76% now feel able to get involved in local activity

61% feel people from different backgrounds get on together

- 59 % feel local services have improved

- 88% are satisfied with their neighbourhood as a place to live

Delivery of the Efford Building Communities Initiative, including development of 40 unit extra
care scheme, new community library and new church with community space on Torridge Way;
physical improvements to open space including Efford Valley, Yeo Close, Trefusis Gardens;
work with young people to include sport and use of role models, developing skills through
family learning activities and IT. Of those engaged in the programme:

- 100% now felt able to get involved in local activity

- 100% had worked with residents they had not worked with before

- 88% worked with different age groups

- 75% felt people from different backgrounds got on well together

- 100% felt the buildings on Torridge Way had improved

- 63% are satisfied with neighbourhood services

- 88% are satisfied with their area as a place to live

Establishment and/or continued support of community partnerships and residents groups,
including Heart of Efford Community Partnership; East End Partnership and Development
Trust; North Prospect Partnership; existing and new residents groups in Stonehouse
Delivery of £800k East End Healthy Living Network, completed in 2009. Delivery of new
healthy living activity, in partnership with the PHDU, in Efford and the East End, including
fitness classes, healthy eating, weight management, health promotion. Of those engaged in the
programme in Efford:

- 82% felt their health was generally good

- 91% feel they live a healthy lifestyle

- 68% consider themselves to be active

- 61%eating 5 portions of fruit and veg a day

£14 million East End Community Village (business centre; community resource centre; 30 unit
extra care scheme; 16 unit affordable housing; primary care centre; public realm



3.1.

3.2

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

Page 128

improvements; total refurbishment of Astor Park) completed during 2008/09 winning the Local
Government Chronicle national regeneration award 2008

e New approach to working in neighbourhoods being developed for 2010/11 as part of corporate
move to locality working

Housing Strateqy & Development

Affordable Housing

¢ |n 2008/09 we enabled the delivery of 290 new affordable homes, exceeding our target of 215,
placing us in the top quartile nationally on delivery.

¢ |n 2009/10 we are on track to deliver 389 new affordable homes, exceeding our target of 226
and improving further our performance.

e Our LAA target over the three year period 2008/11 for new affordable homes is 678, we are on
course to deliver approx 979 - a 45% increase despite the current housing market slowdown.
Hence no LAA refresh.

¢ |n 2008/09 we secured £12.1m of social housing grant to support our affordable housing
programme.

e In 2009/10 we have secured over £50m of investment; made up of £20m of social housing
grant , matched by an equivalent amount of RSL funding, £4m kickstart funding, £3m Home
Buy Direct and £4.5 Infrastructure funding.

Empty Homes
¢ |n 2008/09 we were directly involved in bringing 84 empty homes back into use, exceeding our
target of 78
¢ |n 2009/10 we reduced to 50 to reflect our priorities and moving resources from empties into
affordable housing — but remain on track to exceed this target also.

Home Energy
¢ |n 2008/09 we achieved 27,791 tonnes lifetime carbon dioxide savings as a result of Plymouth
schemes, exceeding our target of 20,000, which resulted in 1894 households benefitting from
energy efficiency measures in the city.
e Completion of a new energy strategy in March 2010 will evidence whether we have achieved
our targets for tackling Fuel Poverty NI 187 — improving the energy efficiency rating of homes
occupied by households receiving income based benefits.

Strategies
e 2009 saw the production of a new housing strategy, empty homes strategy and home energy
strategy, all key in identifying our housing needs and challenges and setting out our plans for
addressing theses issues; copies available on PCC website

Current Projects

e We have launched a home energy pilot project to tackle hard to treat properties and promotion
of renewables.

¢ We have secured Government Kickstart One funding to house builders of £3.9m for 3 projects
to support the completion of 201 homes on sites that are presently stalled due to the current
housing market slowdown. Another site is currently being approved for Kickstart Two funding.

e We have secured planning and funding to replace the SHIP Hostel with a new State of the Art
facility in Millbay.

e Cabinet have approved a package of City owned sites and funding that has helped secure
£44m of HCA funding for the redevelopment of North Prospect to support wider Stock Transfer
across the City, and which will deliver over 200 new affordable homes by 2011

e Major future projects include supporting the development and regeneration of key strategic
sites including Sherford, Devonport, Millbay and Plymstock Quarry.

¢ We will become increasingly reliant upon S106 opportunities to help achieve our affordable
housing targets as Government funding decreases



4.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

5.1.

5.2.

6.1.

Page 129

e To progress the development of a Local Housing Company to in partnership with the private
sector to bring forward higher levels of affordable housing on PCC owned sites.

Housing Options

Homelessness and Housing Advice
We achieved 430 homelessness preventions last year and on current performance we are due to
do more than 500 this year. We again managed to reduce the number of households who made
statutory homelessness approaches down to 627 decisions last year.

SHIP Hostel
A brand new hostel is planned to replace the current ship hostel this year - one of few direct
access hostels available — with 44 single and 2 double rooms. Building should start on site in late
February 2010

Housing Register & Nominations

e Last year 1848 households were housed from the Plymouth Housing Register, of which 1234
were accommodated by PCC and 614 by RSL’s, there are currently 7100 households on the
register.

e A new way of allocating homes giving people more choice has been introduced, Devon Home
Choice went live in early January 2010

e Housing Advice — the team deal with around 600 contacts per week from people who need
housing advice.

Anti Social Behaviour Unit

Anti Social Behaviour
ASB strategy produced this year articulating a multi agency whole systems approach to tackling
anti-social behaviour. ASBU undertakes 160 + multi agency meetings per year and successfully
obtained 25 various legal orders this financial year already. Reported ASB is down this year by
7.7% from last year. National Indicator 21 Plymouth is 3 % points above the national average (NI
21 is perception of how successful people feel the police and local Authority is at tackling this).

Family Intervention Project

e 58 Families either have received or are receiving intensive support to address ASB and reduce
the likelihood of homelessness. Estimated that such families can cost agencies £80k - £250k
per year (depending upon each situation), each family costs £14k to provide FIP services with
extremely good and effective outcomes. FIP staff are assisting in delivering parenting
programmes and this is attracting significant Government funding to expand its criteria and
capacity.

e We have successfully bid to extend the service to tackle problems in youth crime and young
people with particular emphasis on tackling Child Poverty and Intergenerational worklessness
— total government grant for 2010/11 is £566k.

Housing Business Support

Administration/Support
This small team provides administration and support across services but particularly for the Private
Sector Housing and Strategy & Development teams, and takes a lead co-ordinating health and
safety at work for housing services.



6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

Page 130

Finance
The team processes payments to contractors for all private sector work, in particular Disabled
Facilities Grants and Home Improvement Loans, and has responsibility for co-
coordinating/monitoring budgets across services.

Performance Management
The team assists with performance management and co-ordinates the performance monitoring,
statutory data requests and housing balanced scorecard, and maintains records, coordinates
responses to complaints etc through customer feedback & Have Your Say. They also manage any
Freedom of Information & Subject Access Requests

Transfer promises monitoring and PCH Partnership co-ordination
We have the lead responsibility to co-ordinate the council’s partnership arrangements with
Plymouth Community Homes, and also monitor the transfer promises which should be delivered by
Plymouth Community Homes. There will also be a corporate group of officers to co-ordinate
around service level agreements both from and to Plymouth Community Homes.



Page 131
Appendix A

PLYMOUTH HOUSING STOCK TRANSFER

POST TRANSFER GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE AND
TERMS OF REFERENCE

Plymouth e
Community Homes P/‘)@le—é

Joint Project Aims
e To develop a successful and collaborative partnership.
e To ensure the delivery of decent homes for the city.

e To ensure that the ongoing operation of both organisations are not
compromised by the transfer terms

Post Transfer Objectives

e To ensure that where possible, Plymouth City Council and Plymouth
Community Homes work in partnership to achieve common aims.

e To effectively manage the impact on those services and staff retained
by Plymouth City Council affected by the Housing Stock Transfer.

e To ensure that communications with key stakeholders will be
maintained effectively throughout the transfer process

This document is intended to explain the governance structure.
It is based on the terms of reference for the different meeting
groups.




Page 132

Post Stock Transfer Meeting Structure

Plymouth Community Homes Joint Plymouth City Council

1L Il

PCH Formal Presentation of Progress Report to Council
(twice annually)

Quarterly Partnership Meetings

Consultation with These will follow the internal Consultation with

PCH Board as |iai§on meet.in_gs e V\.’i” deal with PCC Board and
any issues arising which cannot be

required <« . . <> Councillors as
dealt with at an operational level. required
\\
PCH Quarterly Core Meetings / CIG Quarterly Core Meetings
management meetings
Any issues to be brought forward Any issues to be brought
from the joint operational forward from the joint
meetings operational meetings

Formal — Officer level: PCC / PCH Joint Operational Meetings.
(min monthly on day to today issues) e.qg:
New Initiatives / Joint SLA’s / protocols Operational Issues
Ventures Formal between Formal between service
Formal between service service providers to providers to discuss day to
providers to discuss day to discuss day to day day operational issues
day operational issues operational issues
Internal PCH Internal PCC
operational meetings operational meetings
(informal and as (informal and as

required) required)




Page 133

Formal: PCH Presentation of Progress Report to Council (twice annually)

While the Association will covenant to deliver the promises to tenants, the Council made
the commitments to tenants in the Consultation Document.

The Chief Executive of the Association (or his nominee) will present a twice yearly
progress report to the Council, hosted either by the Cabinet Member(s) with responsibility
for housing or by the appropriate Chair of Scrutiny.

This presentation will be open to all Council Members to attend. Board members of the
Association and tenant representatives will also be invited.




Page 134

Formal Joint: Plymouth City Council and Plymouth Community Homes
Quarterly Partnership Meetings

Purpose - To discuss:

Progress on the ‘promises’ to tenants (format to be agreed)

Each Party’s relevant strategic direction and objectives and how the Parties can work
together to achieve these objectives, where appropriate

Financial issues as a result of transfer and the robustness of financial plans.

Note. Financial issues to remain objective regarding the transfer agreement and terms
stated, not to revisit the deal and the subsequent financial position.

Monitoring and reviewing the Service Level Agreements

Monitoring the use of proceeds in the event of the Association’s disposal of any part of
the Property

Issues raised by the Council’s Post Transfer Core Officer Group that cannot be
addressed at an operational level. This will include Core Officer Group recommendations
on decisions that need to be made at a corporate level and at the formal Partnership
Meeting.

Progress of the North Prospect Project as set out in Schedule 24.

Frequency — quarterly, starting January 2010

Membership: To be agreed but suggested from the following:
Association

Chief Executive
Director of Housing and Neighbourhoods
Finance Director

Council

Director of Corporate Support
Assistant Director Strategic Housing
Monitoring Officer

Reporting Mechanism — Minutes of quarterly meeting circulated to Post Transfer Core Group
(Council), Management Team (Association) and Operational meetings and for them to cascade as
appropriate.




GROWTH AND PROSPERITY - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
TRACKING RESOLUTIONS -

GiFéy = Completed

Panel Date

Minute
Number

Resolution

Action By

Progress

Target Date

Comments

26 Jan 09

55b

2 Red Risk Audit items (Hoe
Foreshore and maintenance of
parks and playgrounds
environment):

It was resolved that a Task and
Finish group, comprising of six
Members, would be set up to
investigate this matter.

Councillors K Foster, Coker, Smith, McDonald,
Roberts and Delbridge were selected for the Hoe
Foreshore T+F group and a meeting to discuss
the PID took place in March 09 with Gill Peele,
Mike Hocking, Judith Shore, Nick Jones and
Councillors K Foster and Coker in attendance.

A meeting was set for the T+F group on 1 June
09 however this was postponed due to risk
assessments not being completed. A T+F Group
meeting took place on 3 July 2009; Councillor
Viney replaced Councillor K Foster as chair. The
minutes were attached to the Panel’s 20 July
2009 agenda.

It was resolved that a site visit would take place
in August 2009 and members would report back
to the Panel on 28 September.

At its meeting on 20 July, the Panel agreed that
the matter of the maintenance of parks and
playgrounds environment should be re-activated
until a satisfactory response was received.

At its 28 Sep 09 meeting, it was resolved under
minute 19, Tracking Resolutions, that the Panel
recommend to the Management Board that the
Parks/Playgrounds Risk Assessment be
transferred to the Customers and Communities
OSP Panel for further consideration as it was
now their new terms of reference. This was
approved by the Management Board on 4 Nov
09.

Mid - End
July 2009

| Wal| epuaby

col abhp 4

S 0UF 70U

0



Panel Date | Minute Resolution Action by Progress Target date Comments
number
20 July 09 9 The possibility of Councillor Waiting for a response from DSW.
representation on Destination South
West be investigated. At its 28 Sep 09 meeting it was resolved under
minute 19 — Tracking Resolutions that the Panel
agreed to raise the issue of DSW funding and
representation with the Director for Development
and Regeneration and the Assistant Director for
Economic Development at the next meeting
(should they be able to attend). The Panel would
then consider whether they wished to invite the
Director of DSW to a future meeting.
Tracking Resolutions, Destination Southwest
would be an item on the next agenda. The
Business Manager is to brief the U
Director/Assistant Director for Development & Q
Regeneration on the issues surrounding funding (e
and representation and will arrange for either a) @
attendance at the next meeting or b) a written a;
response. oS
At 7 December 09 meeting it was resolved that
the AD for Development and Regeneration
(Economic Development) be invited to attend a
future meeting once the DSW strategy had been
completed, in order to provide the panel with an
update.
7 Dec 09 42 The Panel considered the option to This has been added to the agenda of the next 25 January
appoint a co-opted representative business meeting on 25 January 2010. 2010
and resolved that this would be
considered again at the next
meeting after the Director for
Development and Regeneration had
helped to present his plans for the
delivery of the future growth agenda.
7 Dec 09 37 Worklessness. Resolutions
1. That the Department for to be

Development & Regeneration take

submitted to




on the ownership and leadership of
the Worklessness agenda on behalf
of the Council and that links across
Plymouth City Council are
accordingly established to a) ensure
the councils role is clearly
understood and b) that from an
Economic Development perspective
that skills development aligns with
the economic drivers of the city and
key sectors

2. that Plymouth City Council take
on a leadership role

3. That HR work with Assistant
Director Economic Dev and his team
to develop a strategy for Plymouth
City Council recruitment under the
Worklessness agenda and that CMT
endorse this.

the
Management
Board on 6
Jan 2010.

7 Dec 09

39

Corporate Improvement Priorities —

Resolved that the Head of Transport
Strategy be requested to return to
the 25 January 2010 meeting to
discuss further what measures need
to be undertaken to progress
Accessibility Action Plan targets.

The Head of Transport Strategy has been invited
to 25 January 2010 meeting.

25 Jan 2010

XS IN-1a)=0|

UF 770U

7 Dec 09

43

Tracking Resolutions —

The  Business  Manager  for
Development and Regeneration
informed the panel that a resolution
had been passed from the
Devonport, Stoke, St Peter and the
Waterfront Area Committee to the
Management Board on 2 December
2009 in which the Growth and
Prosperity Panel be asked to
consider driving speeds on the Hoe.

This item was subsequently added to the Panel’s
work programme.




Resolved that this be noted but
meanwhile the Business Manager
for Development and Regeneration
identify whether the Transport &
Highways service were already
looking into this issue and to
consider this item at a future
meeting.

gg| obed



Page 139 A
. genda ltem 11

-§§.¥

P/y?%ow%

T Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny

Work Programme 2009/10

Issues Panel May Wish to Scrutinise

Worklessness 28 23 | 7 22
BID Veto 26

Carbon Reduction Commitment 26 22
Strategic Housing Functions 19

Local Development Framework Annual

Monitoring Report 19
City and Sub Regional Governance 25
Eastern Corridor Briefings 19

Destination South West: Aims and
Objectives and consideration of future 7
Plymouth City Council membership.

Joint Finance and Performance Monitoring
including LAA Performance Monitoring
(subject to the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board referring issues to the
Panel)

Monitor CIPs that the Panel is responsible
for —

CIP 5 (Providing better and more affordable
housing)

CIP 10 (Disposing of waste and increasing
recycling)

CIP 11 (Improving access across the city)
CIP 12 (Delivering sustainable growth)
(referred to the Panel from the Overview

and Scrutiny Management Board 7 October
2009 Meeting)




Page 140

Issues Panel May Wish to Scrutinise d o 7 L
Plymouth City Development Company
Quarterly Scrutiny Reports )
Task and Finish Groups
Hoe F(_)reshqre 3 |17 30 4
(S) — site visit (S) S) (S)
Skateboarding bylaw 28 4
Plymouth Citybus Limited (joint) 1

29

Driving Speeds on the Hoe




	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	6 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 2009 ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT
	LDF

	7 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL HOUSING SERVICES
	10 TRACKING RESOLUTIONS
	11 WORK PROGRAMME

